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Finanecial Highlights

Fiscal Years Ended December 31

(in thousands) 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Income Statement Highlights"

Gross premiums written™ $ 740,110 $ 636,156 $ 388,983 $ 223,871 $ 201,593
Total revenues 709,640 555,767 382,555 222,589 208,029
Net income™? 38,703 12,207 12,450 24,300 46,700
Balance Sheet Highlights

Total investments $2,055,672 $1,679,497 $1,521,279 $ 796,526 $ 761,918
Total assets $2,879,352 $2,586,650 $2,238,325 $1,122,836 $1,117,668
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $1,814,584 $1,622,468 $1,442,341 $ 659,659 $ 665,792
Long-term debt $ 104,789 $ 72500 $ 82,500 $ — $ =
Total liabilities $2,333,047 $2,055,086 $1,802,606 $ 777,669 $ 791,944

(1) Includes Professionals Group since the date of consolidation, June 27, 2001. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 was increased by $1.7 million due to the adoption of SFAS 141 and 142. See Note 14 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements. In accordance with SFAS 142, we wrote off the unamortized balance of deferred credits that related to business combinations com-
pleted prior to July 1, 2001. The cumulative effect increased net income per share (basic and diluted) by $0.07 per share.
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About ProAssurance raf

ProAssurance Corporation is a specialty i insurer WIth

in assets and more than $740 million in gross writte | pr
Through its subsidiaries ProAssurance is the nation's | |
writer of medical professional liability | lnsurance; i
top ten writers of personal auto coverage in Michig




TO MY FELLOW

SHAREHOLDERS,

Marech 15, 2004

By every measure, 2003 was our most successful year since the
creation of ProAssurance in 2001. We returned our Professional
Liability segment to profitability and believe it to be poised to
achieve the financial goals we've set for this line of business.
Our Personal Lines segment again generated industry-leading
returns. As we enter 2004, we are Ever Vigilant in running a
customer-focused and financially strong insurance group that
provides security for its policyholders and strong returns for
its shareholders.

In Professional Liability, our largest
business segment, the operational
discipline that has been a hallmark
of ProAssurance has allowed us
to succeed in today's turbulent
liability environment.

Our commitment to rate adequacy has not wavered, and we
have already filed for increases in nine of our states so far in
2004. Now that rates are at what we believe are appropriate
levels, we do expect to see some slowing in the rate of overall
premium increases, which has been at 28% for the past two
years. This certainly will be welcome news for our customers.

Because of our close ties to the medical community and the
physician leaders in our management, we understand the
effect our rate increases have had on our insureds. But the
failure of more medical malpractice insurers in 2003 brought
fresh lessons of the disastrous consequences of failing to
properly operate a business. We have chosen to protect our
balance sheet and ultimately, the financial well-being of those
We insure.

The compounding effect of our rate increases and the continuing
re-underwriting of our book has driven significant improvements
in our combined ratio. The Professional Liability combined ratio

has declined from 124.5% in 2002 to 111.6% in 2003. We
expect that ratio to continue to show improvement in the next
few years as price increases work their way to our bottom line
and we see claims for recent years reach maturity.

Qur success in Professional Liability is based upon our experi-
enced staff and regional operating model. Our regional approach
to underwriting ensures that our coverage decisions reflect
the latest developments in each state. We are confident that
market conditions in 2004 will allow us to begin adding well-
underwritten business to our book at advantageous pricing,
thus further enhancing our ability to meet our underwriting and
profitability targets.

Our hands-on, local approach is also vital to our claims success.
Our edge is in the venue-specific knowledge that allows us to
conclude over 90% of all claims filed against our insureds with
a favorable outcome. We recognize the upfront costs expended
in defending a claim. However, our success helps us control our
ultimate loss and legal costs and produces tremendous policy-
holder loyalty. We believe this localized approach to basic
insurance decisions is one of the reasons we have succeeded
where other companies have failed.

In 2003, we also saw great progress toward our goal of
becoming a key player in the Excess & Surplus Lines market
for professional liability risks. Many of the risks that have fallen
outside the standard market have found a home with our new
company, Red Mountain Casualty. Red Mountain allows us to
customize our pricing and coverage terms to meet the needs of
these unique, yet potentially insurable risks. Red Mountain
generated $20 million in premium in 2003 and could easily
build to $30 million in 2004.

The success we've enjoyed in our operations gives us confi-
dence in our ability to raise capital as needed to support our
organic growth as well as potential mergers or acquisitions
opportunities. As an example, our sale of convertible debentures
last summer allowed us to eliminate variable rate debt and a
variety of restrictive covenants imposed by our lenders, thus
giving us additional financial flexibility at attractive terms.

Looking toward growth and future capital needs, we have filed
a $250 million universal shelf offering that gives us the flexi-
bility to move quickly to raise capital through an offering of
equity, debt, or a combination of both. The ability to obtain
capital will allow us to take advantage of any opportunities
that may present themselves to us. Our recent renewal rights
transaction with the OHIC Insurance Company is one such



example. We believe that the capacity crunch in our sector,
and the inability of competitors to effectively raise capital, will
provide us with additional opportunities to grow our business
within our established business footprint.

The issue of capacity, whether to support growth or to fund an
acquisition, is something we are constantly and carefully eval-
uating. Should we see that our new business and premium
growth are straining our capacity, we likely would move to
obtain enough capital to give us room to grow and assure the
rating agencies of our commitment to balance sheet strength.
We would also pursue additional capital, if needed, to fund
an acquisition.

While we are committed to a strong balance sheet with
growth, we do not intend to seek additional capital unless
we have a justified need. We will not burden the Company
with debt for which we have no use, nor will we issue equity
that would have a long-term dilutive effect on our current
shareholders.

But often the most important transactions are the ones that
are not executed. Rest assured that we will apply the same
diligence and skill to our evaluation of mergers and acquisi-
tions that we apply to our underwriting and claims efforts. Our
goal is to write profitable business that will allow us to
achieve our financial targets. We will not acquire simply for
the sake of acquisition, nor will we commit blindly to top-line
growth at the expense of profitability.

We will learn much about the future of Tort Reform in the com-
ing year. Tort reforms failed twice at the federal level in 2003
and will likely be a key campaign issue in this fall’s election. At
the state level, the past 18 months have been fruitful for those
supporting Tort Reform as a way to balance the scales of jus-
tice. We are waiting to learn if the Supreme Courts in those
states will uphold those reforms. If the reforms are upheld, we
could see a new era of stability in medical liability rates. If they
are overturned, rates are likely to resume their rapid ascent
toward unaffordability.

We expect to succeed no matter what the outcome of the Tort
Reform fight. Opportunities will abound for a strong, respon-
sive medical liability insurer. We are equipped and ready to
capitalize on those opportunities, no matter how the business
environment evolves.

Along with our excitement regarding
Professional Liability, we are equally
enthusiastic about the ability of
our Personal Lines segment to
bolster our earnings.

In 2003, MEEMIC Insurance Company’s combined ratio was a
stellar 87.9%, marking the ninth consecutive year that
MEEMIC has earned an underwriting profit. We see no reason
that MEEMIC's success should end, absent an unpredictable
weather-related catastrophe loss.

| do want to compliment MEEMIC’s management and employ-
ees for the high quality execution of MEEMIC's business plan.
At MEEMIC, we focus on the best risks from a preferred mar-
ket, Michigan educators and their families. Our ability to select
the best risks from that pool and then efficiently handle their
claims allows MEEMIC to be an integral part of the profit pic-
ture at ProAssurance.

In 2004, we expect MEEMIC to produce solid earnings and
generate the capital required to support its planned growth in
Michigan’s parochial schools, colleges and universities. We
also expect MEEMIC to expand beyond its Michigan base in
2004. Peer-to-peer selling plays a key role in our policy persis-
tency and overall success in Michigan, so we are identifying
qualified educators outside of Michigan to serve as our sales
arm. Our growth outside of Michigan won't be explosive or
immediate, but our success in Michigan allows us the luxury of
moving deliberately in this expansion, thus creating a model
for successful expansion for the future.

While we are pleased to tell you about our 2003 results in
both Professional Liability and Personal Lines, we believe the
best is yet to come. With our merger solidly behind us and the
effects of price increases being realized in our income state-
ment, we expect a combined ratio of approximately 100% for
2004, and foresee further improvement in 2005. We are thus
confident in our ability to reach our ultimate goal of a Return
on Equity of between 12% and 14%. In reaching those financial
goals we will also meet the equally important goal of main-
taining a balance sheet whose strength is beyond question.

Every employee at ProAssurance is working each day to meet
this goal while exceeding our customers’ expectations. Our
success is due to their diligence and dedication; | am grateful
for their efforts.

| am equally grateful to the agents and defense attorneys who
represent us and our insureds with honest, effective advocacy.
I would also like to thank the insureds who serve on our advi-
sory committees; they really make the difference in keeping us
up-to-date with the emerging
changes in medicine and den-
tistry as well as the insurance
needs of our clients.

Finally, | am most grateful to
those of you who join with us
as investors in ProAssurance.
| hope you'll continue to
share in our success in the
years ahead.

A. Derrill Crowe, M.D.
Chairman and CEQ



l00KING

CUSTOMERS

Ever Vigilant

ProAssurance's financial strength is now more important—and more evident—
than ever before. The power of our balance sheet allows us to respond when
other insurers can't, and gives our customers the confidence that we can keep
our promise of insurance protection.

As one of America’s leading specialty insurance groups, our singular focus is on
uncompromising financial stability that supports our dedication to excellence.

Our commitment to responsive service enhances our position as an industry
leader and enables us to deliver the performance that our insureds and
investors have come to expect.

MARKET CAPITALIZATION 5348
SINCE INCEPTION 5318

(in millions) $230
$192

$186

$103

9/11/91 12/31/91 12/31/92 12/31/93 12/31/94 12/31/95 12/31/96



Professional Liability

The Professional Liability market has been shaken by signifi-
cant contractions in the past few years. While thousands of
American physicians face the specter of bankrupt companies,
abandoned markets or restricted coverage, ProAssurance’s
insureds have learned not to fear because they know our firm
financial foundation is their assurance that we remain solidly
behind them.

This unquestioned dedication to financial strength goes hand-
in-hand with our unparalleled commitment to the defense of
non-meritorious claims. We understand our insureds’ desire to
protect their hard-won reputation, and we are committed to
the strongest advocacy on their behalf, while at the same
time seeking reasonable, expedient settlement of claims that
have merit.

We are recognized as an industry leader because we combine
our experience and knowledge to provide the complete cus-
tomized coverage our insureds demand.

81

$496

$379

12/31/98 12/31/99 12/31/00

Personal Lines

For more than fifty years MEEMIC Insurance Company has pro-
vided security and value to educators and their families in
Michigan. We offer a full range of auto and home insurance
products tailored to meet the budgets and lifestyles of the
people we serve. Our representatives are a part of the educa-
tional communities they serve, which ensures that we maintain
our reputation for integrity and unmatched service.

As MEEMIC expands beyond Michigan, we remain dedicated
to the premise that educators deserve a specialized insurance
company that understands their unique and evolving needs.

$1,013

$936

$606

$453

12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03

3/1/04
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an 'accelera{ed filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule
- 12b-2). Yes ___ No
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PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

General

, We are a holding company for specialty property and casualty insurance companies focused on
‘'the professional liability and the personal lines insurance markets. Our executive offices are located at
100 Brookwood Place, Birmingham, Alabama 35209 and our telephone number is (205) 877-4400. Our
stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “PRA” :

Our website is www.ProAssurance.com. On our website we make available all of the reports that
we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), including otr annual report.on Form
10K, our quarterly reports on Form 10Q and our current reports on Form 8K, We provide access to these
reports, as well as Forms 3, 4 and 5 detailing stock trading by corporate insiders, through our website as
soon as reasonably practical after they are filed with the SEC. We provide access to these reports for at
least one year after their filing. We also provide similar access to news releases issued by the Company,
and to major investor presentations made by our exécutives. '

We have a regional orientation, applying a focused underwriting strategy to local markets where
we have built a strong reputation -among our customers and producers. Our profgssional liability business
is concentrated in the southeast and midwest and serves physicians, dentists, other healthcare providers
and healthcare facilities. We believe we-are-the fourth largest-active writer of medical professional liability
insurance in the United States.-Our personal lines segment focuses on educators and their families in
Michigan. We believe we are the tenth largest writer of personal automobile insurance in Michigan.

By concentrating on specialty: markets where customers have specialized needs, we seek to
provide vaiue added solutions through-our underwriting ‘expertise and ‘our emphasis on strong customer
service. Our regional presence allows us fo maintain active relationships with our customers and be more
responsive to their needs. We seek to maintain a strong financial position.to protect our customers, We
believe these factors have allowed us to establish a leading position in our markets, enabling us fo
compete on a basis ofher than just.price. o ST »

For the year ended December 31, 2003, we generated $740.1 million of gross premiums written,
$623.5 million of net premiums earned and $709.6 million of total revenues. As of December 31, 2003,
we had cash and invested assets of $2.1 billion, total assets of $2.9 bilfion and stockholders’ equity of
$546.3 million. - - '

Corporate Organization and History : _

We were incorporated in Delaware to serve as the holding company for Medical Assurance, Inc.
(Medical Assurance) in connection with its acquisition of Professionals Group, Inc. (Professionals Group)
in June 2001. Our principal operating subsidiaries are The Medical Assurance Company, Inc,,
ProNational Insurance Company, Red Mountain Casualty Insurance Company, Inc., and MEEMIC
Insurance Company. Our financial statements and other financial information include Professicnals Group
onty from the date of acquisition in compliance with purchase accounting rules. We also write professional
liability insurance through Medical Assurance of West Virginia,

We are the successor to 11 insurance organizations. Our predecessor company, Medical
Assurance, was founded by physicians as a mutual company in Alabama and began in 1977. We
demutualized and became a public company in 1991. Medical Assurance expanded through internal
growth and the acquisition of professional liability insurance companies with strong regional identities in
West Virginia, Indiana and Missouri, along with books of business in Ohio and Missouri.



Professionals Group traces its roots to Brown-McNeeley Fund, which was founded by the State of
Michigan in 1975 to provide medical professional liability insurance to physicians. Physicians Insurance
Company of Michigan, which ultimately became ProNational, was founded in 1980 to assume the
business of the Fund. That company also expanded through internal growth and the acquisition of books
of business in illinois and Indiana and the acquisition of a professional liability insurer in Florida.

MEEMIC Insurance Company was founded as a mutual company by Michigan teachers and has
provided personal lines insurance to the educational community in that state since 1950. Professionals
Group became affiliated with MEEMIC in 1997 and acquired majority ownership of MEEMIC Holdings,
Inc. (MEEMIC Holdings) in 1999, _ : o

‘In each acquisition we retained key personnel, allowing us fo maintain a local presence and
preserve important institutional knowledge in claims management and underwriting. We believe that this
ability to utilize local knowledge in claims and underwriting is a critical factor in the operation of our
companies. Our successful integration of each organization demonstrates our ability to grow effectively
through acquisitions. : . '

Segment Overview

We conduct our business through two operating segments, each of which maintains a strong
position in its local markets: '

~+ & Our professional liability segment, which represents our commercial lines business, primarily

.. focuses on providing medical professional liability insurance. We provide protection against

. claims -arising out of the death, injury or disablement:of a person resulting from a negligent
-deviation from the standard of care by the professionals we insure. Ce

e OQur personal lines segment offers personal automaobile, and to a lesser extent, homeowners, boat
- . and umbrelia insurance primarily fo teachers, administrators; professors and other members of
..~ the educational community and their families- in Michigan. Personal lines insurance provides
- policyholders with protection against claims resulting. from bodily injury and property damage
liability and physical damage to property. . E ,

The foiIoWihg table illustrates 6ur gross premiums written for our two primary segmenté for each
of the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31 '
2003 2002 2001
Professional liability $ 643,323 73% $ 461}15 73% $ 315,698 81%
Personal lines 196,787 27% 174,441 2% 73,285 19%

- Total ‘$ 740,110  100% -3 636,156  100% $ 388,983  100%



Professional Liability Segment

- In our professional liability segment, our top five states represented 74% of gross premiums
wntte'n for the year ended December 31, 2003. The following table displays the distribution of those gross
premiums.

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 . 2001
Ohio $ 123205  23% S 91571 2% ¢ 51,520  16%
. Alabama : 106,437 . . 20% 83,818 ' 18% T4917°  24%
 Florida RV 80,649 ~ 15% T1366-  15% 29510 oy
. Michigan ' 64,727 - 10%: - 52203 1% 22404 0 TR
- Missourf LT 33887 6% 23786~ 5% 13348 4% ¢ e
All other states 144418 26% - 138974 3% 123900  4ov% | -
Total $ 543,323 100%  § 461,715 100%  $ 315698  100%

... Forthe year ended December.31, 2003, our professional liability segment produced a combined
ratio of 112%. The combined ratio is the sum of the underwriting. expense ratio (the ratio of underwriting
expenses to earned premiums) and net loss ratio (the ratio of net losses and loss adjustment expenses to
net earned premiums). S e .

... Acombined ratio below 100% génerally,_ihdicates.p_roﬁtab[e underwriting prior to the consideration
of. investment income. However, if.investment income is considered, companies writing professional

liability insurance may be profitable with combined ratios above 100%.. Thus; the combined ratio.may not

always be indicative of our ultimate. results because of the “long tail’ nature of the professional liability

business. : .
.. Theterm "long-tail’ refers to the ‘I'on'g.,pe‘rio_dr6f'time'}bétv\}e‘eﬁ,'éégllgeigiing the-premium for insuring a
risk and the ultimate payment of losses, often exceeding five years.,Ih_is_{f..lgng‘,tai],"___aljgws us to invest the
premiums we collect until we pay losses, which results in a higher level of invested assets and investment
income as compared to other lines of property and casualty business.

‘ In order to measure the effect of investment income, we .also measure our results. by calculating
our operating ratio, which is the.combined ratio offset by the benefit of investment income generated from
our.cash and invested assets. This ratio-is’expressed as a percentage of .net premiums earned, For the
year ended December 31, 2003 our professional liability segment produced an operating ratio. of 98%. A
ratio below 100% indicates profitability for the segment. S e :

Personal Lines Segment

Business in our personal lines segment is currently confined to Michigan. The followiﬁg table
displays gross premiums written in- this segment,

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 00101y
Michigan $ 196,787  100% _ $ 174441  100% $ 73285 100%

M The year ended December 31, 2001 includes gross premiums written since June 27, 2001, the date of
consolidation of Profassionals Group and Medical Assurance.



Personal lines insurance is generally referred to as “short tail’, due to shorter time ‘periods
‘between insuring the risk and the ultimate payment of claims. As a result, there is less trme fo invest
premiums collected, which- makes it necessary to achieve an underwriting profit in order to'generate a

satisfactory return on equity. For the year.ended December 31, 2003, MEEMIC reported a combined ratio
of 88%.

Recent Events
Details of Financing Transaclions

In early July 2003 we received $104.6 million from the issuance of 3.9% Convertible Debentures,

due June 2023, :having .a face value of $107.6 milion. We ufilized a substantial portion of the net
- proceeds to repay our outstanding term loan. We are using the balance of the net proceeds for general
corporate purposes, inctuding contributions. to the capital-of our insurance subsidiaries to support the
growth in insurance operations. See Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for more
information regarding the Convertrble Debentures

In the fourth quarter cf 2002 ProAssurance sold 3,025,000 shares of common stock at a price of
$16.55 per share in an underwriifen public offering. ProAssurance received net proceeds from the
offéring in thé amount of approximately $46.5 million. ProAssurance used the proceeds from the offering
to support the growth of the prcfessmnal |labﬂlty insurance- busuness and for general corporate purposes. ’

Purchase of Minority Shares of MEEMIC

“-Of-January 29,-2003 MEEMIC Holdings, the parent company of MEEMIC insurance Company,
purchased ‘all. of theissued and- ‘outstanding shares of its common stock, other than those held: by
ProAssuranice’s subsrdlary, PrcNatlcnal Insurance Company (ProNatiohal). MEEMIC Holdings used its
intérnal fuhds in the “approximaté amount of $34.1 ‘million fo acquire all of the 1,062,298 shares of its
‘common stock not owned by ProNational, to pay for outstanding options for 120,000 shares, and'to pay
the expenses of the transaction. The funds were derived from MEEMIC Holdings' cash and investment
rescurces. ‘A a resuit-of thé transaction, MEEMIC Holdings was dellsted from the NASDAQ stcck market
and became a whot!y-OWned subsrdrary of PrcNatlonaI '

Mamm

- ©ur senior managemeht team is’led by A. Derrilt Crowe, M.D., our Chairman and Chief Executive
Offi cer and Victor T. Adamo, Esa., our President and Chief Operatrng Ofﬁcer Dr. Crowe has acted as the
Chief Executive Officer of Medrcal Assurance since its folinding in 1977. He has applied- @ hands-on
mandgement stylé in devéloping our underwriting and claims strategies and was instrumental in
establishing us as a leading professional liability speclahst Mr. Adamo has held various positions with
Professionals Group since 1985, becoming its CEO in 1987 and being named President in 1989. He is
largely responsible for building Professionals Group into a successful regional professional liability
ccmpany

Dr. Crowe practlced medrcme as hrs pnncrpal occupation for more than 25 years and Mr. Adamo
was in the private practice of law for 10 years, providing them with knowledge of medical and legal issues
that are critical to our insurance. operafions. We also have a knowledgeable and experienced
management team with established track records in building and managlng successful insurance
‘operations. In tctal our senior management team has average experience in the insurance industry of 23
years.



Products and Services

Professional Liability Segment

- We offer professional liability insurance for providers of medical and other healthcare services.
Although we generate a majority of our premiums from individual and small group practices, we aiso
insure several major physician groups as well as several hospitals. We also offer professional liabitity
insurance for providers of legal setvices, and we offer professional .office package and workers'
compensation insurance products in connection with our professional fiability products. We believe our
size, financial strength and flexibility of distribution differentiates us from our competitors. The following

table illustrates the distribution of our gross premiums written of our professional liability segment by type
of coverage for the periods indi_cated.. ’ o .

Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001

Professional Liability—
. Physicians & Dentists . $ 488,625 90% $ 410,560 B9% $ 228,138 72%
Professional Liability—Other (1) 42,408 % 37,576 8% 39,080 12%
" " Total Medical Professional Liability 531,033 7% 448,136 97% 267,219 84%
Professional Liability—Legal o 8,567 2% 58688. 1% . 21134 1%
Other Commercial Lines {2) $ 3,723 1% 7,611 772% 46,345 15%

Total Comrmercial Liability 12,290 3% 13,579 3% 48,479 16%
Professional Liability Total $ 543,323 100% $ 461,715  100% $ 315,698 100%

 primarily includes misceltaneous healthcare providers, hospitals and other health care facilities. ,

@ Pritarily inchides workers’ compensation and commercial multi-peril coverages. Prior to 2000 we marketed this coverage
to a wide range of accounts, primarily through fronting arrangements. However, in 2000 we began non-renewing these
-coverages for any insured who was not a professional liability policyhalder. Qur exit from this business allowed us to
redeploy needed capital to professional lizbility and allowed management to focus its attention on our core professional

liability business. .

There are two predominant types of professional liability insurance policies, occurrence and
claims-made. Occurrence coverage provides permanent insurance protection against claims arising from
incidents that occur during the policy period, regardless of when these claims may be reported. Due to
the long-tail nature of the professional liability business, it may be many years before insurers become
~aware of claims under occurrence policies. - ‘ - o



Claims-made coverage provides protection against only those claims reported during the policy
period, resulting from incidents that occurred while continuously insured on a claims-made basis.
Therefore, most claims are known, although not resolved, at the end of the policy period. This allows us
‘1o estimate our loss reserves for claims-made coverage with more certainty. The basic claims-made
policy does not provide protection against claims which are reported after the policy period ends; the
insured must either continue to renew the claims-made policy or purchase extended reporting coverage in
order fo have permanent protection. In the event of death, disability or qualified retirement, most insureds
receive extended reporting coverage as part of the policy terms.

‘In October 2002, we started offering professional liability insurance to medical and other
healthcare professionals who generally do not qualify for standard coverage because of their ¢laim history
or other factors. This business is written on an excess and surplus lines basis, which provides us with
greater flexibility in establishing prices and ferms of coverage. Red Mountain Casualty insurance
Company, Inc. is the main subsidiary in which this business is written-and we believe if provides profitable
opportunities to expand our business. In 2002 this line of business produced $3.0 million in premiums and
in 2003 this line of business produced $20 million in premiums.

Personal Lines Segment

Our personal lines business is written through our subsidiary, MEEMIC, which primarily serves
educational employees and their families in Michigan. Private passenger automobile insurance is our
primary line of business. To provide for the other insurance needs of our auto customers, we also offer
homeowners, boat and umbrella policies. The following table illustrates our gross premiums written for
each of our personal lines classes of business for each of the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31
2003 " z002 2001 (1)

" Personal Autormoblle - $ 161,389  82% . § 147,168  84% 62,422  85%
“Homeowners . 34,571 18% © 26,600 - 16% "~ 10,637 ©  15%
Boat (2) 616 - 497 - 163 -
Umbrefia (2) 201 T 178 - $ 63 . -
Total : $ 196,787  100% - . $ 174441  100% $ 73,285  100%

" The year ended December 31, 2001 includes gross premiums written since June 27, 2001, the date of
consolidation of Professionals Group and Medical Assurance.
@ ess than 1%

Marketin

Professional Liability Segment

We primarily write insurance in the southeast and midwest and are licensed to do business in
every state but Connecticut, Maine, New Hampshire, New York and Vermont. Based on gross premiums
wriften in 2003, Ohio, Alabama, Florida, Michigan, and Missouri represented our five largest states.

We utilize direct marketing and independent agents to write business. In Alabama, we rely solely
on direct marketing, and in Florida and Missouri, direct marketing accounts for a majority of our business.
We use independent agents to market our professiconal liability insurance products in other markets. For
‘the year ended December 31, 2003, we estimate that approximately 62% of our gross professional
liability premiums written were produced through independent insurance agencies. These local agencies
usually have one to three producers who specialize in professional liability insurance and who we believe
are able to convey the factors that differentiate our professional liability insurance product. No single
agent or agency accounts for more than 10% of our total direct premiums written.



We focus our marketing efforts on sole practitioners and small groups of physicians. We generally
do not target large groups or facilities because of the diffi culty in underwriting the individual risks and

because their purchasmg decision is more focused on price. Qur marketing efforts differentiate our
professional liability insurance products by emphasizing:

» excellent claims service and the other services and communications we provide to our customers,

¢ the sponsorship of risk management education seminars as an accredited provider of continuing
medical education, o

* risk management consultation, loss prevention semlnars and other educational ‘programs,

» . legislative oversight and actlve support of proposed Ieglslatlon we believe will have a posntave
effect on liability issues affecting the healthcare industry,

s the preparation and dissemination of newsletiers and other prlnted material with information of
interest to the hea!thcare industry, and

. endorsements by, and attendance at meetmgs of, the state and local medical soc:ehes and .
E related organizations.

These communications and services have helped us gain-exposure among potential insureds and
demonstrate our understanding of the insurance needs of the healthcare industry and promote a
commonality of interest among us and our insureds.

Personal Lines Segment

Our personal lines insurance products are personal automobile, homeowners, boat and umbrella
policies. We market these products to members of the educational community and their famifies in
Michigan. Our policies are sold through our exclusive agents who are typically current or former teachers,
school administrators or other education professionals. We refer to this sales method as peer-to-peer
~ selling. We currently are ficensed in Michigan, Minnesota, Ohio and Wisconsin, but write insurance only
in Michigan. Our plans include expansmn mto at least one nelghborlng state within the next 18 months.

~ Qur sales representatives also have access o other insurance products underwritten by other
carriers in Michigan who pay us commissions for their sales. In general, these carriers offer produicts that
we do not currently offer, or insure a class of business that does not meet our underwriting guidelines. By
offering complementary insurance products, our sales representatives provide our customers with the
convenience of being able to purchase a full range of insurance products through a single agent, thus
‘allowing our representatives to compete with mdependent agents We also benefit by having potential
customers for products we may offer in the future,

- We conduct quarterly meetings with our sales representatives, establish benchmarks and goals,
‘and conduct technical training and sponsor continuing education programs. Our representatives provide
us with important information about market conditions and feedback from our customers regarding their
insurance requirements and our level of service provided. This information is used to develop new
products and new product features. We recruit and train new sales representatives to work in under-
represented areas of the siate. Sales representatives are paid a fixed commission with some opportunity
for contingent bonuses, based upon the representaftive’s production and ioss ratios.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, one sales representative accounted for approximately
5% of our direct premiums written within our personal lines segment. The top 10 sales representatlves
accounted for approximately 34% of our direct premtums written in 2003.



Underwriting

Professional Liability Segment

Because we focus our primary efforts on sole practitioners and small groups, our underwriting
-process is driven by individual risk selection rather than by account, and our pricing decisions are focused
on achieving rate adequacy. We assess the quality and pricing of the risk, primarily emphasizing loss
history, practice specialty and location of practice in making our underwriting decision. Our underwriters
work closely with our local claims departments, This includes consulting with staff about claims histories
. and patterns of practice in a particular locale as well as monitoring claims activity.

Our underwriting focuses on knowledge of local market conditions and legal environment.
Through our five regional underwriting offices located ‘in Alabama, Florida, Indiana, Missouri and

Michigan, we have established a local presence within our targeted markets to obtain better information
more quickly. ‘

Our underwriting department establishes guidelines to classify risks by practice specialty and by
location. Our underwriters work with our field marketing force to identify business that meets these
established underwriting standards and to develop specific strategies to write the desired business. In
performing this assessment, our underwriters may also consult with internal actuaries regarding loss
trends and pricing and utilize loss-rating models fo assess the projected underwriting results of certain
insured risks. Our agents are permitted to bind professional liability coverage within our underwriting
' guidelines, but binding authority is exercised only after authorization from our underwriting staff.

Our underwriters are also assisted by our local medical advisory committees that we have
established in our key states. These committees are comprised of local physicians, dentists and
representatives of hospitals and healthcare entities and help us ‘maintain close ties to the medical

communities in these states, provide information on the practice of medicine in each state and provide
guidance on critical underwriting and claims issues. .

Personal L'ih.es Segment

. - As we evaluate risks, we rely {o a significant degree on information provided by our sales
representatives in underwriting' risks. The majority of our sales representatives are, or were, teachers.
This enhances the sales representatives’ ability to act as field underwriters since they have a general
understanding of lifestyles and insurance needs within the educational community to effectively pre-
screen applicants. We believe that the educational community in Michigan provides better thanh average
risk-selection, which confributes to our historically profitable underwriting results.

, Our- underwriters then evaluate and accept applications'_ for insurance submitted by the sales
representatives based on consistently applied underwriting guidelines. Our system allows for some
flexibility in the application of these guidelines by individual underwriters, and underwriting supervisors
regularly audit their work and ensure exceptions fall within acceptable limits. Qur underwriters monitor
policyholder deviations from the underwriting guidelines to assist in. decisions related to canceliation and
non-renewal. : ' :

Claims Managemerit

Professional Liability Segment

We have claims offices throughout the states in which we write business in order to provide
localized -and timely attention to claims. Our claims department investigates the circumstances
-surrounding a medical incident from which a covered claim arises against an insured. Upon investigation,
and in consultation with the insured and appropriate experts, we evaluate the merit of the claim and either
seek reasonable settiement or aggressively defend the claim. If the claim is defended, our claims
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department manages the case, including selecting defense attorneys who specialize in medical liability
cases, planning the defense and obtaining medical and/or other professmnal experts to assist in the
analysis and defense of the claim. :

Our cla|ms department establlshes the appropriate case reserves for each clalm and monitors the
level of each case reserve as circumstances require.

The department also decides when and if to settle all but the most sngmt‘ icant claims, which are
currently reviewed by an internal committee made up of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, our
Senior Vice President ~ Claims, and our outside legal counsel. In each of the states in which we operate,
‘we meet regularly with our local medical advisory committees to examine claims, attempt to identify
,potenttally troubllng practlce patterns and make recommendattons to our staff.

We aggresswe[y defend claims against our msureds that we believe have no merit or those we
believe cannot be reasonably settled. As a result of this policy, many of our claims are litigated, and we
engage expertenced tna! attorneys in each venue to handie the Iltlgatlon in defense of our pot[cyholders

Qur aggresswe clalms management approach generally resutts in mcreased loss adjustment
-expenses compared to those of other property and casualty lines or other companies specializing in
professional liability: insurance. However, we believe that our approach contributes to lower overall loss
‘costs and results in greater customer loyalty. The success of this claims. philosophy is based on our ability
to develop. relationships with attorneys who have significant expenence in the defense of professional
liability claims and:who are able to defend claims in an aggressrve cost-effi c;ent manner

We began offering our professional Ilablllty claims management to self—msurlng enttttes on a fee-
for-service basis in 2003. While we do not expect this to become a major source of revenue for us, we-
believe it will allow us to leverage our claims-management expertise to produce some addltlonal income
as [arger groups and facilities decide to self-insure thetr malpractice rlsk o

.F’ersona! Lines Segment

In respohding to clalms we emphasrze timely lnvestlgatlon evaluatton and falr settlement while
‘conirolling claims expense and maintaining adequate reserves. We have a:year-round, 24-hour claim
reporting telephone service for insureds and third-party claimants. This reporting methddology enables us -
to more quickly complete initial ¢laim handling and ultimately reduce mdemnity payments such as rental
and storage. . :

s =0ur ‘elaims operation is centralized in Auburn Hills, Michigan, but we also employ resident
ad;ueters located in cities throughout Michigan. These employee adjusters settle a majonty of our claims,
“and independent multi-line adjusters are used on a contract basis when claim volume rises. We have also
established a network of auto repair shops and other repair facilities that provide damage appraisals and
repairs according to established company guidelines. An inspection audit program ensures that repairs
'.are completed tlmely, economically and to the satlsfaction of the customer

Audlts of liability claim files are conducted -regularly by clalms department managers .and
Teinsurers. We decide which claims we seek to settle and which claams we defend Htstoncally, |ess than
1% of all claims result in litigation. :

Qur claims department actively monitors all litigation including selecting defense aftorneys who
specialize in insurance defense cases, planning the defense, and obiaining professional experts to assist
in the analysis and defense of the claim. The department establishes the appropriate .case reserves for
each c!alm and monltors the level of each case reserve as c:rcumstances requ:re :
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Investments

Our overall investment strategy is to focus on maximizing current income from our investment
portfolio while maintaining safety, liquidity, duration of liabilities and portfolio diversification. The portfolio is
generally managed by professional third party asset managers whose results are evaluated periodically by
management and its consultants. The asset managers typically have the authority to make investment
decisions, subject to investment policies, within the asset class they are responsible for managing.

‘Rating Agencies

‘ Our principal insurance subsidiaries are rated “A-" (Excellent) by A.M. Best, its fourth highest
category out of 15 categories. Standard-& Poor's rates our principal insurance subsidiaries “A~" (Strong),
its seventh highest category out of 21 categories, and maintained a negative outlook on the rating at
December 31, 2003, - . ‘ R O

‘In devéioping these 'ratings, AM. Béét and Standard & Poor's evaluaté an insurer’s ability td meet
its obligations to policyholders, and are not directed toward the protection of stockholders. These ratings
are neither ratings of securities nor a recommendation to buy, hold or sell any security.

Our West Virginia-based subsidiary, Medical Assurance of West Virginia (MAWV), which:accounts
for less than two percent of ProAssurance’s book of business, is rated "B" (Fair) by Best. Best downgraded
MAWV on December 24, 2003 as a.resuit of.our decision to terminate a reinsurance contract. between
MAWYVY and our Alabama-based subsidiary, The Medical Assurance Company, inc.:Standard & Poor's
downgraded MAWYV on December 19, 2003, then withdrew the rating at our request.

Competition o ' L .

Competition depends on several factors including pricing; size, name recognition, service quality,
.market commitment, breadth and flexibility of coverage, method of sale, financial stability and ratings
assigned by A.M. Best and Standard & Poor's. Many of these factors, such as market conditions, the
ratings assigned by rating agencies, and reguiatory conditions are out of our control. However, for those
-factors over which:we do have control, such-as setvice quality, market commitment, financial strength and
stability, we believe we have competitive strengths that make us awviable competitor in those states where
we are currently writing.insurance. . e o Co S EEREERPI

Professional Liabilfty-siegmeht'

We compete with insurance companies and self-insuring entities in the medical professional liability
market. Many of the-competing companies concentrate on a single state and have an extensive knowledge
of the local markets. We also compete with large national insurers that may have greater financial strength
and other resources thanwedo.. -+ -« .. - C “e EER

Self-insuring entities are emerging as an alternative to the fraditional insurance market as insureds
seek greater control over the professional liability premiums. We assist groups with the formation and
administration of self-insuring entities, and eamn-fee:income for the management and services we provide.
We do not expect this to become a major source of ‘revenue for us, but we hope to produce additional
income to offset some of the potential lost business as growth in this segment of the market removes
potential insureds from the traditional insurance market. :

We believe that we have a competitive advantage in the current market due to our size, geographic
scope and name recognition;:-as well as our heritage-as a policyholder-founded company with a long-term
commitment to the professional liability insurance industry. These advantages have been achieved through
our balance sheet strength, claims defense expertise, strong ratings and ability to deliver a high level of
service to our insureds and agents. We believe that these competitive strengths make us a viable
.competitor in those states where we are currently writing insurance. :
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_ Since 1999, insurance companies focused on medical professional liability coverage have
experienced higher claim costs on business written in prior years than they had reserved for in’itially. This
has resulted in significant losses, reduced capital to support current and future business, and higher
premium rates to meet expected higher claims costs. '

Reduced profitability, reductions in surplus and capacity constraints have led many professional
liability carriers focused on medical professional liability coverages to withdraw from, or limit new business
in, one or more markets. For example, in 2002 The St. Paul Companies, then the leading writer of medical

professional liability insurance withdrew from the market and in 2003 Farmers Insurance Company exited
medical professional liability insurance. ‘ o

-In 2002 several medical liability insurance companies were forced from the market due to financial
difficulties and in 2003 The Reciprocal of America was placed under reguiatory supervision. The failure of
these companies placed hundreds of physicians at personal risk.in the event of a judgment against them.
We believe these events have heightened the sensitivity of our target market to this issue.

_Given the continued reduction in capacity and the uncertainty surrounding several writers in the
medical professional liability market, we believe there will be a “flight to quality” as irisurers place greater
emphasis on financial strength and stability. We believe this trend will continue through 2004 and into at
least the first half of 2005. - ' :

'Persoha! Lines Segment

Personal lines insurance is highly competitive and some of these competitors are substantially
larger than we are and have much greater financial, technical and operating resources. Competition
depends on several factors including the price and quality of insurance products, the quality and speed of
service and claims response, financial strength, sales and marketing capability, technical expertise and
ratings assigned by A.M. Best and Standard & Poor’s. : :

We believe we have a competitive advantage because of our peer-to-peer sales model. Our
approach of “teachers serving teachers and their families” as well as management's emphasis on high
quality customer service have contributed to high customer loyalty with a long-term policyholder retention
rate of nearly 95%. o G R o

Insurance Regulatory Matters

We are subject to regulation under the insurance and insurance holding company statutes, of
various jurisdictions, inctuding the domiciliary states of our insurance subsidiaries and other states in which
our insurance subsidiaries do business. :

General

Insurance companies are also affected by a variety of state and federal legisiative and regulatory
measures and judicial decisions that define-and qualify the risks and benefits for which insurance is sought
‘and provided. These include redefinitions of risk exposure in such areas as medical liability, product liability,
environmental damage and workers’ compensation. In addifion, individual state insurance departments may
prevent premium rates for some classes of insureds from reflecting the level of risk assumed by the insurer
for those classes. Although there is limited federal regulation of the insurance business, each state has a
comprehensive system for regulating insurers operating in that state. In addition, these insurance regulators
periodically examine each insurer's financial condition, adherence to statutory accounting practices, and
compliance with insurance department rules and regulations. '

Our operating subsidiaries are required to file detailed annual reports with the state insurance
regulators in each of the states in which they do business. The laws of the various states establish
supervisory agencies with broad authority to regulate, among other things, licenses to transact business,
premium rates for certain types of coverage, trade practices, agent licensing, policy forms, underwriting and
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claims practices, reserve adequacy, transactions with affiliates, and insurer solvency. Many states aiso
regulate investment activities on the basis of quaiity, distribution and other quantitative criteria. States have
also enacted legislation regulating insurance holding company systems, including acquisitions, the payment
of dividends, the terms of affiliate transactions, and other related matters. Our insurance subsidiaries are
domiciled in Michigan, Alabama and West Virginia.

7 Applicable state insurance laws, rather than federal bankruptey laws, apply to the liquidation or
reorganization of insurance companies. - '

[Insurance Regulatidn Concerhing Change or Acquisition of Confrol

The insurance regulatory. codes in our operating subsidiaries’ respective domiciliary states each
contain similar provisions. (subject to certain variations) to"the-effect that the acquisition of “control” of a
domestic insurer or of any person that directly or indirectly controls @ domestic insurer ¢annot be
consummated without the. prior approval of the domiciliary-insurance regulator. In general, a presumption of
“controf" arises from the direct or indirect ownership, control, possession with the power fo vote or
possession of proxies with respect to 10%: (5% in Alabama) or more of the voting securities of a domestic
insurer or of a person that controls a domestic insurer. A person seeking. to acquire control, directly or
indirectly, of a-domestic insurance company or of any person controlling a -domestic insurance company
must generally file an application for approval of the proposed change of control with the relevant insurance
regulatory authority.

In addition, certain state insurance laws contain provisions that require pre-acquisition notification
to state agencies of a change in control of a nori-domestic insurance company admitted in that state. While
such -pre-acquisition notification statutes do not authorize the state agency to disapprove the change of
control, such statutes do authorize certain remedies, including the issuance of a cease and desist order
with respect to the non-domestic admitted insurer’s :doing business:in-the state if certain conditions exist,
such as undue market concentration. T seo ‘ S

Statutory Accounting and Reporting. - I S

Insurance companies are required to file detailed annual reports with the state insurance regulators
in each of the states in which they do business, and their business and accounts are subject to examination
-by such regulators at any time. The financial information in these reports is prepared in accordance with the
accounting requirements of the state regulatory authorities. The accounting principles differ from Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP") and are referred to as Statutory Accounting Practices (“SAP").
Insurance regulators periodically examine each: insurer's financial:condition, adherence to SAP, and
compliance with insurance department rules and regulations. o ' . s

Regulation of Dividends and Other Payments from Our Operating Subsidiaries

We are a legal entity separate and distinct from our subsidiaries. As a holding company with no
other business operations, our primary:sources of cash to meet our ‘obligations, including principal and
interest payments with respect to indebtedness, are available dividends and other statutorily permitted
payments, such as tax allocation .payments and.management.and:other fees, from our operating
subsidiaries. o - C oL e e e :

Our operating subsidiaries are subject to' various state statutory and regulatory resfrictions,
applicable generally to any insurance company in its state.of domicile, which. limit the amount of dividends
or.distributions an insurance company may pay to its stockholders without prior regulatory approval. The
restrictions are generally based on certain levels or percentages. of surplus, investment income and
operating income, as determined in accordance with SAP. Generally, dividends may be paid only out of
earned surplus. In every case, surplus subsequent.to the payment of any dividends must be reasonable in
relation to an insurance company's outstanding liabilities and must be adequate to meet its-financial needs.
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State insurance holding company acts generally require domestic insurers to obtain prior approval
of extraordinary dividends. Under the insurance holding company acts governing our principle operating
subsidiaries, a dividend is considered to be extraordinary if the combined dividends and distributions fo the
parent holding company in any 12 month period are more than the greater of either the insurer's net income
for the prior fiscal year or 10% of its surplus at the end of the prior fiscal year. ’

If insurance regulators determine that payment of a dividend or any other payments to an affiliate
(such as payments under a tax-sharing agreement or payments for employee or ‘other services) would,
because of the financial condition of the paying insurance company or otherwise, be a detriment to such
insurance company's policyholders, the regulators may prohibit such payments that would otherwise be
-permitted without prior approval. - - : oo : ' B B

Risk-Based Capitai

In order to enhance the regulation of insurer solvency, the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (NAIC) specifies risk-based capital (RBC) requirements for property and casualty insurance
companies. These RBC requirements are designed to monitor capital adequacy and to raise the level of
protection that statutory surpius provides for policyholders.: The NAIG’s RBC model: law stipulates four
levels of regulatory action with: the degree of regulatory intervention increasing as the level of surplus falls
below a minimum amount as determined under the model law. At December 31, 2003, all ProAssurance’s

-insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimurn level and, as a result, no regulatory response or dctioh was
_ required. ‘ R

‘Investment Regulation -

Qur operating subsidiaries are subject to state laws and regulations that require diversification of
investment portfolios and that {imit the amount of investments in certain investment categories. Failure to
comply with these laws and regulations may cause non-conforming investments {o be treated as non-
admitted assets for purposes of measuring statutory surplus and, in some instances, would require
divestifure. We believe that our operating subsidiaries are in compliance with state investment regulations.

Guaranty Funds

Ali fifty states have separate insurance guaranty fund laws requiring admitted property and casualty
insurance companies doing business within their respective jurisdictions to be members of their guaranty
associations.

These associations are organized to pay covered claims (as defined and limited by the various
guaranty association stafutes) under insurance policies issued by Insurance companies that become
insolvent. Such guaranty association laws create post-assessment associations, which make assessments
against member insurers to obtain funds to pay association covered claims after the ingsolvency of an
insurer occurs. These associations levy assessments (up to prescribed limits) on all member insurers in a
particular state on_the basis of the proportionate share of the premiums written by member insurers in the
covered lines of business in that state. Maximum assessments permitted by law in any one year generally
vary between 1% and 2% of annual premiums written by a member in that state. Some states permit
member insurers to recover assessments paid through surcharges on policyholders or through full or partial
-premium tax offsets, while other states permit recovery of assessments through the rate filing process.

Shared Markets

Our operating subsidiaries are required fo participate in mandatory property and casualty shared
markef mechanisms or pooling arrangements that provide certain insurance coverage to individuals or other
entities that are otherwise unable to purchase such coverage in the commercial insurance marketplace. Our
operating subsidiaries’ participation in such shared markets or pooling mechanisms is not material to our
business at this time. ' '
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Possible Legislative and Regulatory Changes

In recent years, the insurance industry has been subject to increased scrutiny by regulators and
legisiators. The NAIC and a number of state legislatures have considered or adopted legislative proposals
that alter and, in many cases, increase the authority of state agencies to regulate insurance companies and
insurance holding company systems.

In addition, several committees of Congress have made inquiries and conducted hearings as part
of a broad study of the regulation of insurance companies, and legislation has been introduced in several of
the past sessions of Congress which, if enacted, could result in the federal government assuming some role
in the regulation of the insurance industry. Although the federal government does not regulate the business
of insurance directly, federal initiatives often affect the insurance business in a variety of ways. Current and
-proposed federal measures that may significantly affect the insurance business include changes in medical
patient protection laws such as the “Patients Bill of Rights,” tort reform and environmental laws.

. - The Legislatures in various states are currently considering,-or being asked to: consider, changes to
the laws governing medical liability lawsuits. The changes are collectively called Tort Reforms. There are
also Tort Reform proposals being considered at the Federal level. In general, the changes would place
limits of non-economic damages, allow insurers more flexibility in paying large judgments, and would aiter
some of the rules governing legal proceedings and qualification of expert witnesses. In certain states, Tort
-Reform legislation may also place limits on the ability of medical liability insurers to raise or maintain rates
at adequate levels. .

We do not believe it is possible to predict the outcome of any of the foregoing legisiative,
administrative or congressional activities or the potential effects thereof on us.
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Emgloyegs

_ At December 31, 2003, we employed 617 persons, including 424 employées in ‘ouAr Professional
Liability segment and 193 employees at MEEMIC. None. of our employees is represented by a labor union.
We consider our employee relations to be good.

Forward-Looking Statements

Any written or oral statements made by us or on our behalf may include forward-looking statements
that reflect our current views with respect to future events and financial performance. Forward-looking
statements (identified by words such as, but not limited to, “believe”, “expect’, “intend”, “anticipate”,
“estimate”, “project” and other analogous expressions) include among other things statements concerning:
liquidity and capltal requirements, return on equity, financial ratios, net income, preiniums, losses and loss
reserves, premium rates and retention of current business, competition and market conditions, the
expansion of preduct lines, the development or acquisition of business in new’ geographlcal areas, the
availability of acceptable reinsurance, actions by regulators and rating agencies, payment or. perfon'nance
of our obligations under the debentures, payment of dividends, and other matters

- These forward-looking statements are based upon.our estimates and anticipation. of future events
that are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to vary materially from the
-expected results described in the forward-looking statements. Due to such risks and uncertainties, you are
urged not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. All forward:looking stateménts included in
this document are based upon information available to us on the date hereof, and we undertake no

obligation ‘to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

Risks that could adversely affect our operations’ or cause actual results to differ materially from
anticipated results include, but are not limited to, the following:

¢ underwriting losses on the risks we insure are higher or lower than expected,

¢ unexpecied changes in loss frends and reserving assumptions which might require the reevaluation
of the liability for loss and loss adjustment expenses, thus resuliing in an increase or decrease in
_ the liability and a corresponding adjustment to earnings,

+ our ability to retain current business, acquire new business, expand product lines and a variety of
other factors affecting daily operations such as, but not limited to, economic, legal, competitive and
market conditions which may be beyond our control and are thus difficult or impossible to predict,

* changes in the interest rate environment and/or the securities markets that adversely impact the fair
value of our investments or our income,

o inability on our part to achieve continued growth through expansion into other states or through
acquisitions or business combinations,

. general economic conditions that are worse than anticipated,
» inability on our part to obtain regulatory approval of, or to implement, premium rate increases,
» the effects of weather-related events,

« changes in the legal system, including retroactively applied decisions that affect the frequency and
severity of claims,
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* significantly increased competition among insurance providers and related pricing weaknesses in
- some markets, :

- » - changeés in the avaflabiiity, cost, quality or bo-lllectibi!ity_of reinsurance,
+ changes to our ratings by rating agencies,
. ‘re_gu]atory and Iegis!ra_tivelz_ _a_ctigns or decisic_)_ns that adyers_ely affect us, and,
e - ‘our abifity to utiliz,:gflq_ss' t’:’g;ryfbnvards and '_ot.helr deferred tax assets.
ATEM2. PROPERTIES =~ = * 7 |

_A':,Wi_-';bwn a1’56.0005quar§ otofﬁce bUiIding .lc:cé:ted "ih,B:irlllnin'gham', Alébam.a.ﬁhére we 6'urrént!y

‘occupy approximately’ 55,000 square . feet .and..plan to occupy approximately . 14,500 square feet of

additional office space. The rémaining office space is leased to unaffiliated persons or is available to be

leased. We also own a 53,000 square foot office building in Okemos, Michigan that we fully occupy. Both
_buildings are currently unencumbered. MEEMIC leases its principal executive offices in Auburn Hills,

‘Michigan. MEEMIC. owns, primarily for investment purposes, an 11.5-acre vacant parce! of iand in Auburn

Hills, Michigan. We lease other office faciliies in various locations and lease computer and operating
“eguipment under cancelable and non-cancelable agreements. . : , ,
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Our insurance subsidiaries are involved in various legal actions, a substantial number of which
.arise from claims made under insurance policies. While the outcome of all legal actions is not presently
determinable, management and its legal counsel are of the opinion that these actions will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations. '

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

Not applicable.

Executive Officers of ProAssurance Corporation

The executive officers of ProAssurance serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Set forth
below are the current executive officers of ProAssurance and a brief description of their principal occupation
and employment during the last five years.

A. Derrill Crowe, M.D.

‘Victor T. Adamo, Esq.

: .Dr. Crowe has served as Chairman of our Board and our Chief Executive
- Officer since we began operations in June 2001. Dr. Crowe has also
- served as President, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of

Medical Assurance since its formation in 1995, and as President, Chief
Executive Officer, and a director of Medical Assurance Company since its
founding in 1977. Dr. Crowe also serves as chairman of the board of

MEEMIC Holdings. (Age 67) ‘

Mr. Adamo has served as oﬁr Vice -Chairman, President, and Chief

Operating Officer since we began operations in June 2001. Mr. Adamo
also serves as President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of
Professionals Group. Mr. Adamo has served as a director of ProNational
since 1990, and was its Chief Executive Officer since 1987. Mr. Adamo is

. the Chief Executive Officer and a director c_:f MEEMIC Holdings. (Age 56)
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Paul R. Butrus

Howard H. Friedman

James J. Morello

Frank B. O’Neil

Lyﬁi_i M. Kalinowski

Mr. Butrus has served as our Vice Chairmian and a director of
ProAssurance since we began operations in June 2001, Mr. Butrus has
been Executive Vice President and a director of Medical Assurance since
its incorporation in 1995. Mr. Bufrus has . been employed by Medical
Assurance Company and its subsidiaries since 1977. (Age 63)

Mr. Friedman was appointed as our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, and Secretary in June 2001. Mr. Friedman has served in a number
of positions for Medical Assurance since 1886, most recently as Senior
Vice President, Corporate Development of Medical Assurance. Mr.
Friedman is an Associate of the Casualty Actuarial Society. He also serves
as a director of MEEMIC. (Age 45) :

“Mr. Morello was .appointed as our Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting

Officer and Treasurer in June 2001. Mr. Morello has been Senior Vice
President and Treasurer for Medical Assurance since its formation in 1995,
Mr. Morelle has been employed as Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of
Medical Assurance Company since 1984. He also serves as a director of
Medical Assurance’s insurance subsidiaries and as treasurer for
ProNational. Mr. Morello is a certified public accountant, (Age 55)

Mr. O'Neil was appointed as our Senior Vice President of Corporate
Communications and Investor Relations in September 2001. Mr, O’'Neil
has been Senior Vice President of Corporate Communicafions for Medical
Assurance since 1997 and employed by Medical Assurance Company and

its subsidiaries since 1987. (Age 50)

Mr. Kalinowski has been President of MEEMIC Holdings and MEEMIC
since September 2001. Mr. Kalinowski previously served as President of
MEEMIC from January 1993 to May 1997 and as Executive Vice President
of MEEMIC from May 1997 to September 2001. Prior to joining MEEMIC in
1983, Mr. Kalinowski was the President of Southern Michigan Mutual
Insurance Company and previously served ‘as Director of Financial
Analysis for the Michigan Insurance Bureau (now the State of Michigan
Office of Financial and Insurance Services). Mr. Kalinowski has been a
director of MEEMIC Holdings since 1998. (Age 52)
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PART I

TEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

At March 1, 2004, ProAssurance Corporation (PRA) had 3,605 stockholders of record and
29,105,971 shares of common stock outstanding. ProAssurance's common stock currently trades on The
New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “PRA".

Quarter . 2003 - 2002

High Low - High Low
First . $§ 2392 $ 2069 - § 1822 $ 15.99
Sscond . 3050 2340 - 19.70 Si6.01 -
Third 28.90 24.50. 18.00 14.20

Fourth 32.97 26.86 - 211 15.78

ProAssurance has not paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does not currently have a
_ pohcy to pay regular dividends.

ProAssurance's insurance subsidiaries are subject to restrictions on the payment of d1v1dends to
the parent. Information regarding restrictions on the ability of the insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends is
“incorporated by reference from the paragraphs under the caption “Insurance Regulatory Matters —

Regulation of ledends and Other payments from Our Operatmg Subsidiaries” |n Mem 1 on page 14 of
_thls 10-K.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Selected Financial Data

‘Gross premiums written (1)
Net premiums written (1)

Premiums earned (1)
Premiums ceded (1)
Net premiums eamed (1)
Net investment income (1)
Net realized investment gains (losses) (1)
Other income (1)
Total revenues

Net losses and loss adjustment expenses (1)

Inceme before cumulative effect
‘of accounting change '
" "Net income (1) {(3)
Income per share before cumulative
" effect of accounting change (1) (2)
" Basle '
_ Diluted
Net income per share: {1} (2) (3)
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of
shares outstanding: (2)
Basic
Diluted

. Balance Sheet Data (as of December 31)

Total investments

Total assets

Reserve for losses and loss
adjustment expenses

Long-term debt '

Total liabilities

- Total capital

Total capital per share of commeon
stock outstanding (2)

Common stock outstanding at
end of year (2)

Year ended December 31

;- 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 740,110 $ 636,156 $ 388,983 $- 223,871 $.201,593
668,900 537,123 310,291 194,270 156,823
698,347 576,414 381,510 218,287 207,492
(74,833) (99,008) (68,185) (38,701) (43,068)
623,514 477 408 313,345 177,596 164,424
73,619 76,918 50,782 41,450 30,273
5,992 (5,308) 5,441 913 1,787
6,515 6,747 3,987 2,630 2,545
709,640 555,767 382,555 222 580 208,029
551,376 448,029 298,558 155,710 104,657
38,703 10,513 12,450 24,300 48,700
38,703 12,207 12,450 24,300 46,700
$ 13 § 040 5 051§ 104 5. 195
$ 133 §. o039 $ 051 . § 104 § 195
$ 134 $ 047 $ - 051 $ 104 $ 195
$ 133 $ 046 $ 051 $ 104 $ 195
28,955 26,231 24,263 23,291 23,992
29,144 26,254 24267 -23,291 24,008
$2,055,672 $1,679,497 $1,521,279 $ 796,526 $ 761,918
2,879,352 2,586,650 2,238,325 1,122,836 1,117,668
1,814,684 1,622,468 1,442,344 659,650 665,792
104,789 72,500 82,500 - -
2,333,047 2,055,086 1,802,606 777,669 791,944
546,305 505,194 413,231 345,167 325724
$ 1877 $ 17.49 $ 16.02 $ 1522 $  13.92
20,105 28,877 25,789 22,682 23,401

(1) Operating results include the operating results of Professionals Group since the date of consolidation, June 27, 2001. See Note 2

to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) The Board of Directors declared a special stock dividend in December 1999 (5%). All nst income per share and total capial per
share data on this page have been restated as if the dividends had been declared on January 1, 1999, Additionally, treasury
stock is excluded from the date of acquisition for purposes of determining the welghted average number of shares outstanding

used in the computation of net income per share of common stock.

(3) Net income for the year ended December 31, 2002 was increased by $1.7 million due to the adoption of SFAS 141 and 142. Sge
" Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements. In accordance with SFAS 142, we wrote off the unamortized balance of deferred
credits that related to business combinations completed prior to July 1, 2001. The cumulative effect increased net income per

share (basic and diluted) by $0.07 per share,
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and notes to the consolidated financial statements appearing elsewhere in this report: Throughout the
discussion, references to ProAssurance, “we,” “us” and “our” refers to ProAssurance Cerporation and iis
subsidiaries. The discussion contains certain forward-looking information that involves risks and
uncertainties. As discussed under “Forward-Looking Statements,” our actual financial ¢ondition and
operating results could differ significantly from these forward-looking statements,

C;ltical Ac_countmg Policies

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted (GAAP) in the United States of America. Preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions in certain circumstances that affect the
amounts reported in our consofidated financial statements and related footnotes. We evaluate these
estimates and assumptions on an on-going basis based on historical developments, market-conditions,
industry frends and other information that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. There
-can be no assurance that actual results will conform to our estimates and assumptions, and that reported
results of operations wifl not be materially adversely affecied from time-to-time by the need fo make

accounting adjustments reflecting changes in these estimates and assumptions. Management considers
an accounting estimate to be critical if:

* it requires assumptions {o be made based on data that was not final at {he time the estimate
was made; and

. changes in the estimate, or the selection of a different estimate, could have a material effect
on our consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

We believe the following policies used in the preparatlon of the consolidated financial statements
are the most sensitive fo estimates and judgments.

Reserve for Losses and Loss Aa]'ustment Expenses (reserve fof !osses)

Our resetve for losses represents our estimate of the future amounts necessary to pay claims
and expenses associated with investigation and settlement of claims. These estimates consist of case
reserves and bulk reserves, Case reserves are estimates of future losses and loss adjustment expenses
(losses) for reported claims and are established by our claims departments. Bulk reserves, which include
a provision for insured events that have occurred but have not been reported to us as well as
development on reported claims, are the difference between (i} the sum of case reserves and paid losses
and (i) an actuarially determined estimate of the total losses necessary for the ultimate settlement of all
reported claims and incurred but not reported claims, including amounts already pald The estimates take
‘into consideration our past loss experience, avaitable industry data and projections as to future claims
frequency, severity, inflationary trends and settlement patterns. Independent actuaries review our
reserves for losses each year and prepare reports that include recommendations as to the level of
reserves. We consider these recommendations as well as other factors, such as known, antlcmated or
estimated changes in frequency and severity of claims and loss retention levels and premium rates, in
establishing the amount of our reserves for losses Estimating casualty insurance reserves, and
particularly professional liability reserves, is a complex process. These claims are fypically resolved over
an extended period of time, often five years or more, and estimating loss costs for these claims requires
multiple judgments involving many uncerfainties made over an extended period of time. Our reserve
estimates may vary significantly from the eventual outcome. The assumptions used in establishing our
reserves are regularly reviewed and updated by management as new data becomes available. Any
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adjustments necessary are reflected in then current operations. Due to the size of our reserves, even a
small percentage adjustment to these estimates could have a material effect on our resuits of operations

for the period in which the change is made. See the discussion under “Overview” in this section for a
history of our loss reserve development. ‘ ' ‘

Reinsurance

Our receivable from reinsurers represents our estimate of the amount of our future loss payments
that will be recoverable from our reinsurers. These estimates are based upon our estimates of the
ultimate losses that we expect to incur and the portion of those losses that we expect to be allocable to
-reinsurers based upon the terms of our reinsurance agreements. We also estimate premiums ceded
under reinsurance agreements wherein the premium due to the reinsurer, subject to certain maximums
and minimums, is a percentage of the losses reimbursed under the agreement. Given the uncertainty of
the ultimafe amounts of our losses, these estimates may vary significantly from the eventual outcome.
- Our estimates of the amounts receivable from and due to reinsurers are reguiarly reviewed and updated

by management as new data becomes available. Our assessment of the collectibility of the recorded
amounts receivable from reinsurers is based primarily upon public financial statements and rating agency
data. Any adjustments necessary are reflected in then current operations. Due to the size of our
receivable from reinsurers, even a small adjustment to these estimates could have a material effect on
our results of operations for the period in which the change is made. At December 31, 2003, we
considered all of our receivable from reinsurers to be collectible. '

Investm_ents

We consider our fixed maturity securities as available-for-sale and our equity securities as either
available-for-sale or trading portfolio securities, )

Our available-for-sale securities are available to be sold in response to a number of issues,
including our liquidity needs, changes in market interest rates and investment management strategies,
among others. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value. The related unrealized gains and
losses, net of income tax effects, are excluded from net income and reported as a component of
stockholders' equity.

We evaluate the securities in our available-for-sale investment portfolio on at least a quarterly
‘basis for declines in market value below cost for the purpose of determining whether these declines

represent other than temporary declines, Some of the factors we consider in the evaluation of our
investments are:

. the extent to which the market value of the security is less than its cost basis,

=  the length of time for which the market value of the security has been less than its cost basis,
= the financial condiion and near-term prospects of the security's Issuer, taking into
- consideration the economic prospects of the issuers’ industry and geographical region, to the

extent that information is publicly available, and

= our ability and intent to hold fhe investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
' anticipated recovery in market value. ‘
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_ A decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale security below cost that we judge to be other
than temporary is realized as a loss in the current period and reduces the cost basis of the security. n

subsequent periods, we base any measurement of gain or loss or decline in value upon the adjusted cost
basis of the security. ' '

Since January 1, 2003, we have designated certain of our equity security purchases as trading
portfolio securities. A frading portfolio is carried at fair value with the holding gains and losses included in
realized investment gains and losses in the current period. Therefore results of current operations reflect
both positive and negative changes in the market value of these securities. : '

Liguidity and Capital Resources and Financial Condition

Our primary need for liquid funds is to pay losses and operating expenses in the ordinary course
of business and to meet our debt service requirements.

Our operating activities provided positive cash flow of $283 million during 2003. Our operating
cash flows are primarily derived from net investment income received and from the excess of premiums
collected over paid net losses and operating costs. Timing delays exist between the collection of
premiums and the payment of losses, particularly so with regard to our professional liability premiums. in
periods of premium growth such as in 2003, premium collections generally exceed losses paid in the
calendar year. ' ' : '

We believe that premium adequacy is critical to our long-term liquidity. We continually review
rates, particularly professional liability rates, and submit requests for rate increases to state insurance
departments as we consider necessary to maintain rate adequacy. We achieved average overall rate
increases of 28% in 2003 and 2002. We are unable to predict whether we will continue to receive
approval for our requests for higher rates.

We transfer most of the cash generated from operations into our investment portfolio, primarily
into investment grade fixed maturity securities. Our investments, cash and cash equivalents at December
31, 2003 total $2.103 billion, an increase of ‘$280 million as compared to December 31, 2002. At
December 31, 2003, our investment portfolio includes net before-tax unrealized gains of $53.0 miliion.

Our fixed maturity portfolio has a market value of $1.791 billion, including net before-tax unrealized gains
of $48.8 million.

Substantially all of our fixed maturities are either United States government or agency obligations
or investment grade securities as determined by national rating agencies. The fixed maturity securities in
our investment portfolio had a dollar weighted average rating of “AA,” at December 31, 2003. Our fixed
maturities are purchased with the intent to hold such investments to maturity; however, we consider these
- securities as available-for-sale because we may dispose of the securities prior to their maturity in order fo
meet the Company's then current objectives. Our investment policies implement an asset allocation that
uses length to maturity as one method of managing our long term rate of return. The weighted average
maodified duration of our fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2003 is 3.5 years. The average length
to maturity of the fixed maturity portfolic was shoriened somewhat during 2003. Throughout 2003 longer
term fixed maturity securities were available only at historically low rates, and we maintained a shorter
portfolio so as to provide additional investment flexibility should market interest rates rise. We regularly
-evaluate the interest rate environment, and adjust our duration targets to maximize investment yield.

Changes in market interest rate levels generally affect our net income to the extent that
reinvestment yields are different than the original yieids on maturing securities. Additionally, changes in
market inferest rates may also affect the fair value of our fixed maturity securities. For a more detailed
discussion of the -effect of changes in interest rates on our investment portfolio see “ltem 7A —
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.” - -
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. Qur current investment policy requires that the market value of our equity investment portfolio not
exceed 50% of our capital at the end of the prior year. At.December 31, 2003, equity investmenis
represented approximately 2% of our total investments, and approximately 9% of our capital. Our equity

investments are diversified primarily among domestic growth and value holdings through common and
preferred stock.

Our net reserves for losses (net of amounts receivable from reinsurers) at December 31, 2003
are approximately $1.370 billion, an increase of $209.3 million over net reserves at December 31, 2002.
Substantially all of this increase is in our professional liability segment, a “long tailed” business. A
characteristic of a “long tailed” business is that there is a long length of time between the occurrence of
an insured event and significant payment on that event. Because of this characteristic, it is not.unusual for

reserves to increase, especially during periods of business growth. Activity in the net reserve for losses
.during 2003 and 2002 is summarized below:. ' '

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
In Thousands

Balance, beginning of year - $  1,622468 3 1,442,341 $ 659,659

" . Less reinsurance recoverables - 462,012 374,056 166,202
Net batance, beginning of year 1,160,456 1,068,285 493,457
Net reserves acquired from Professionals Gfoup - - 557,284 .

. Incurred related to: ) s : : ' ' B
- Cument year - . 562,256 439,600 303,387
Prior years ) : ‘ (10,880) 8,429 . 13,818
Change in death, disability, and retirement reserve  ° = . C o~ {18,647)

Totdl incurred _ - 551,376 448,029 298,558
Paid related fo:
: Currentyear = : . : (94,824) (84,376) (137,121)
. Prioryears . . . , L - (247,235)- (271,482) - -~ (143,893)
Total pald . Lo . . (342,059) (355,858). - . (281,014
- Netbalanceendofyear - -+ . 4360773 1160456 1,068,285
" Plus reinsurancé recoverables B 444817 462012 374,056
Balance, end of year $1,814,584 $ 1,622,468 $ 1,442.'341

As of December 31, 2003, our insurance subsidiaries had consolidated reserves for losses and-
loss adjustment expenses on a GAAP basis that exceeded those on a statutory basis by approximately
$19.7 million, which is principally due to the portion of GAAP reserves that are refiected for statutory
accounting purposes as unearned premiums. These unearned premiums are applicable to extended
reporting endorsements (“tail’ coverage) issued without a premium charge upon death, disability, or
retirement of an insured. ‘ -

We use reinsurance to provide capacity to write large limits of %ability, to reduce losses of a
catastrophic nature and to stabilize underwriting results in those years in which such losses occur. The
purchase of reinsurance does not relieve us from the ultimate risk on our policies, but it does provide
reimbursement from the reinsurer for certain losses paid by us.

The effective transfer of risk is dependent on the credit-worthiness of the reinsurer. We purchase
reinsurance from a number of companies to mitigate concéntrations of credit risk. .Qur reinsurance
brokers assist us in the -analysis of the credit quality of our reinsurers. We base our reinsurance buying
decisions on an evaluation of the then-current financial strength and stability of prospective reinsurers.
However, the financial strength of our reinsurers, and their corresponding ability to pay us, may change in
the future due to forces or events we cannot control or anticipate.
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At December 31, 2003 our receivable from reinsurers approximated $444.8 million. The following

table identifies our reinsurers from which our recoverables (net of amounts due to the reinsurer) are $10 -
-million or more as of December 31, 2003;

A. M. Best Net Amounts Due
Reinsurar Company Rating S From Reinsurer
' Michigan Catastrophic Claims Association . Not rated $ 86,470
Hannover Rueekverslcherung AG A $ 53,776
General Reinsurance Corp Art $ 43,661
PMA-Capital Insurance Company o B . $ 28,893
Gerling' Global Reins Corp - : NR-3 . $20,933 '
Américan Rein Co -~ e , At A Y- 1L A
~ Lioyd's Syndicate 435 " A- 313478
- 8t Paul Re]nsurance Company 1td {(Uk Corp) . ‘ A S $12,209
- Transatlant:c Reinsurance, SA . A+t ) . ‘ ' $1 0;745 -
AXA Reinsurance SA ' A- $10,458

_ We have not expenenced any dlff culties in collectlng amounts due from remsurers due to
financiat mstablllty of the reinsurer. As of December 31, 2003 we do not believe we have any reinsurance
recovérables that are uncolfectible. Should future events lead us to believe that any. reinsurer is unable to

meet its obllgat:ons to us, adjustments to the amotints recoverable would be reflected in the results of
curient operat:ons o .

The Michigan Catastrophic Claims Association (MCCA) is an unincorporated nonprofit
association created by Michigan faw, and every insurer engaged in writing personal protection automaobile
insurance coverage in Michigan is required to be a member of the MCCA. The MCCA charges an annual
assessment, based on the number of vehicles for which coverage is written, o cover the losses reported
by all member companies. Michigan law provides that the MCCA assessments charged to member
companies for this protection can be recognized in the rate-makmg process and passed on‘to
policyholders. We treat any amounts due from the MCCA as relnsurance and the assessments due fo
MCCA as ceded premiums

- Two of our reinsurers, Gerling Global Reinsurance Corporation of America (Gerling) and PMA
Capital Insurance Company (PMA)} have discontinued reinsurance Operatlons and are no longer
accepting new business. Neither company participates in our current reinsurance treaties but both have
been part of previous reinsurance programs. Approximately 58% of recorded receivables from these
reinsurers relates to our estimates of.loss development and its allocation to the various reinsurance
treaties. Based upon information available to us, including statements made by Gerling and PMA, we
anticipate that both companies will meet their obligations to us.

As our premiums have grown, so has our need for capital to support our insurance operations
and maintain our ratings. We have experienced significant growth with respect to our professional liability
premiums and expect continued growth in 2004. This growth has primarily come as a result of increased
prices but is also a result of reduced competition in the professional liability market. We have taken
actions to obtain additional capital in order to support growth by our insurance subsidiaries and believe
‘we have the ability to ralse the capltal requrred to support our current plans for growth.

In late 2002, we raised $46.5 million through the sale of our common-stock in an underwntten
‘public offering. In early July 2003 we received $104.6 million from the issuance of 3.9% Convertible
Debentures, due June 2023, having a face value of $107.6 million. We utilized $67. 5 million of the net
proceeds to repay our term loan and did not replace the’ re!ated line of credit.
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- . Through -December 31, 2003 approximately $36.0 million of the net proceéds have been
contributed. to the capital of our professional liability insurance subsidiaries to' support the 'gréwth in
insurance operations. In February 2004 we contributed an additional $20.0 million to the capital of our
insurance subsidiaries. After making those confributions fo our subsidiaries, we have $15.0 miliion
available at the parent holding company for general corporate purposes,

On February 9, 2004 we filed a universal shelf registration statement with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) that wouid allow us to offer from time-to-time up to $250 million in common
stock, preferred stock or debt securities. We may sell any class of the registered securities or
combinations thereof in one or more separate offerings at a total price up to the amount registered with
the amount, price and terms of the securities sold in each offering to be determined -at the time of sale.
We have no present commitments to sell securities under the shelf registration. Our ability to sell any of
these securities will depend in part on our ability to continue profitable operations and maintain. the credit
ratings assigned to us by A. M. Best and Standard & Poor's. Any sale would require us to file a
supplemental prospectus that specifies the terms of the securities to be sold. If securities are sold, we
expect that the net proceeds will be used for general corporaté purposes, which may include contributions

.to the capital and surplus of our subsidiaries, the repurchase of outstanding debt securities, or the
repayment of other indebtedness. - g

~ On January 29, 2003 ProAssurance's subsidiary, MEEMIC ‘Holdings repurchased 1,062,298
outstanding common shares and 120,000 vested options for its cammion stock that were not owned by
ProAssurance’s subsidiary, ProNational. The total cost of the transaction approxiriated $34.1 millioh, The
funds used for the purchase were dérived from MEEMIC Holdings’ cash and investrhent resources. As a
result of the transaction MEEMIC Holdings is now a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of ProAssurance.
Goodwill of approximately $7.6 million was recorded related to the transaction. R

Off Balance Sheef Arrarigements / Contractual Obligations

L We have no qffrbaféngg sheet éfraﬁg__eméhfs' that_hé{ie or are fe_?sonably likely to ﬁév(e,.ai matertal
current or future effect.on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses;
results of operations, liquidity, capita_l‘exp‘enditures;or.capit_al resources. c

A s\él'i!e&u!é of our cdﬁtfacfﬁél'bﬁiigafibné at becember 31, 2003 fbiloWé:

. Payments due by period
... . .. ... lessthan ’ ] . " Morethan .
- Fofal 1 year * 13 years  3-5 yoars ~_ _Syears ¢
TR ‘ In Thousands ' N
Long-term debt obligétions $104,600 § - $ 7 - 0§ - $ 104800
"Operating léase obligations - 9,487 ___ 3855 4898 - 880 — B4 v
‘ " “Total $ 114087 % 3655  § 4808 0§ 880 . $ 104654

-Our operating iease obligations

communijcations lines and equipment. .

.are primarily for the rental of office space, office equipment, and

Parent Holding Company -

The parent holding company. is a legal entity-separate and distinct from its subsidiaries. Because
the parent holding company has no other business operations, dividends from its operating subsidiaries
represent a significant source of funds for its obligations, including debt service. The ability of those
insurance subsidiaries to. pay dividends is subject to limitation by state insurance regulations, See our
discussions under "Regulation of Dividends....from Our Operating Subsidiaries” in Part I, and in Note 17
of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for .additional information. regarding  dividend
limitations.
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Overview

_ ProAssurance Corporation is an insurance holding company and its operating results are almost
entirely derived from the operations of its insurance subsidiaries. ProAssurance operates in two industry
.segments: professional liability insurance and personal lines insurance. T

. The professional liability segment is our largest segment, representing over 73% of 2003 written
premiums and 84% of total assets. This segment principally provides liability insurance for providers of
health care services in the south and midwest, and, to a limited extent, providers of legal services in the
midwest. The principal operating insurance subsidiaries of this segment are: The Medical' Assurance
Company, inc., ProNational Insurance Company and Red Mountain Casualty Insurance Compariy, Inc.

We also'write professional liability insurance through Medical Assurance of West Virginia, Inc.

Our personal lines segment provides personal property and casualty insurance primarily to
members of the educational community and their families in the state of Michigan. Our personal lines
segment includes - the operations of a single insurance company, MEEMIC Insurance Company
(MEEMIC), which we acquired in June 2001 as a part of the Professionals -Group consolidation
transaction. . ' ‘ ' : S

Corporate Strategy

Our objective s to build value for our stockholders through superior underwriting of classes of
business in which we have a comprehensive understanding and which offer us the opportunity to
generate competitive returns on capital. We target.a return on equity of 12% to 14% over the.long term.
Over the five years ending December 31, 2003, however, we achieved an average.return on equity of
6.9%, with a high of 14.4% in 1999 and a low of 2.3% in 2002. : . EER

We emphasize disciplined underwrifing and do not manage our business to achieve a certain
‘level of premium growth or market share. In our-professional liability business; we apply our- ocal
knowledge ‘to:individual risk selection, and determine the appropriate price based on our assessment of
the 'specific characteristics .of each risk. In our personal lines business, we target the educational
community, which we believe provides a preferred, stable and predictable group of risks. -~ -~ . -

in addition to prudent risk selection, we seek to control our-underwriting results through effective
claims management. We investigate each professional fiability claim and have fostered a‘strong culture of
aggressively defending those claims that we believe have no merit. We manage these claims at the local
level, tailoring.claims. handling to the legal climate of each state, which we believe differentiates us from
national writers. In-our personal lines business, we seek to quickly and efficiently resolve claims through
an established network of auto repair shops and other repair facilities, focusing on minimizing the cost of
handling each claim. . . , T :

By concentrating oh specialty markets where customers have specialized needs, we seek to
provide value added solutions through our underwriting expertise and our emphasis on strong customer
service. Through our regional underwriting and claims office structure, we are able to.gain a strong
understanding of local market conditions and efficiently adapt our underwriting and claims strategies to
regional conditions. Our regional presence also allows us to maintain- active relationships with our
customers and be more responsive to their needs. We believe these factors have allowed us to establish
a leading position in our markets, enabling us to compete on a basis other than just price. We also
believe that our presence in local markets allows.us to moniter and understand changes in:the liability
climate and thus develop better business strategies in a more fimely manner than our competitors.

Our goat is to build upon our position as a leading writer of professional liability and personal lines
JInsurance and expand within a defined geographic area, while maintaining our commitment to disciplined
‘underwriting and-agaressive claims management. According to A.M. Best, we are the fourth largest active
medical liability insurance writer in the nation, and we believe we are the largest medical liability writer in
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our states of operatlon The withdrawal and reduced capacity of several compstitors in the medical
professional liability market has provided new business opportunities. We believe that our strong
reputation in our regional markets, combined with our financial strength, strong customer service and
proven ability to manage claims, should enable us to profitably expand our position in select states. In our
personal lines business, we estimate that we currently- insure approxumately 16% of the educational
community (active and retired teaching professionals and service employees) in Michigan. We expect to
increase our penetration of the educational community by appointing additional agents and broadening
our existing relationships with educatlonal institutions and their employees

We have succeSSfully acquired and integrated companies and books of business in the past and
believe our financial size and strength make us an attractive acquirer. The current professional liability
climate may also provide us with the opportunity to undertake additional mergers or acquisitions of
companies or books of business within or adjacent to, our states of operation. We continually evaluate
these opportunltles to leverage our core’ underwrltlng and clalms expertlse

We have sustained our financial stability’ during d:ff cult market conditions through responsible
prlclng and loss reserving practices. We are committed to mamtamlng prudent operating and financial
leverage and conservatively investing our assets. We recognize the importance our customers ard

producers place on the strong ratings of our principal insurance subsidiaries and we intend to manage our
business to protect our financial security.

Growth Opportunities and Ouﬂook

We expect to achleve our growth in our. Profe55|ona| Liability segment primarily as a result of (i
the withdrawal of competitors from actively writing business in certain states, and (||) mcreased prices in
our professional liability business.

. We believe we are vie‘wed as a market leader because of our financial strength and stability, and
" our ability to deliver excellent service-at the local level. This reputation dliows us fo take advantage of
marketing conditions that are improving as price increases are implemented and earned. Cur stability
also makes us an attractive insurer in light of the highly publicized insolvencies in our mdustry, as well as
the regulatory actions 1aken against several former competitors.

Jn- 2003 and in 2002, our professional liability segment achieved average gross price increases of
approximately 28% on renewal business (weighted by premium volume). In 2004 we expect professional
liability pricing to continue to increase, although not at the levels of 2002 and 2003. We expect to-increase
the number of policies written as our competitors’ withdraw from markets and their capacity becomes
increasingly constrained. We also expect our balance sheet strength to become a further differentiating
factor in the market. Additionally, we plan to appoint new agents in underserved areas |n the states where
we write business and we believe that will bring us additional business as well.

We expect our future growth in professional liability wili be supported by controlled expansion in
states where we are already writing business. This includes states we recently entered such as Arkansas,
_Delaware, North Carolina and Virginia, that we believe have relatively favorable medical and legal
climates. We also expect to expand into additional states within, or adjacent to, our existing business
footprint as opportunities present themselves,

We also believe there wilt be additional opportunities for profitable expansion of our professional
liability business as insurers continue experiencing financial difficuities, requiring them fo reduce their
business or completely exit the marketplace. This may also lead to opportunities to expand through the
acqwsmon of other companies or books of business.

‘In the Personal Lines segment, our strong capitalization provides operatlonal flexibility allowing
growth and expansmn capabt!ttles for current and new product lines in Mlchlgan, and expansmn outside
of the state.
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L W_e: believe we can achieve our growth in both segments while improving our combined ratio. As
with all Property and casualty companies, we expect the beneficial impact-of price increases and any
development of losses to be fully reflected in our financial results over time. We recognize the effect of

higher prices as the associated premiums are earned which generally occurs over the course of the year
after the policy is written. - '

Segments

Revenues and expenses are attributable to the operating segments with the exception of
corporate income, which consists of investment income earned directly by the parent holding company
and int_etj_est',ex.pense_ related to fong-term debt held. by the parent..We experienced: a. significant
improvement in earnings during the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the years. ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, primarily due to improvement by the .professional liability .segment, as
shown in the table below: ' '

2003 2002
VE 8
2002 - 2001
: T © . .77 o Increase Increase
.. 2003 2002 - o 2001 -- - -{Decrease): - .{Decrease)
_ : o . In Thousands. o
Income before income taxes, minority interest _ T '
and cumulative effect: : R S
Professional Lability Segment © -$20,657 - - $(14,637) 5 1,547 - ;$365,294 7 " § (16,184)
. Personal Lines Segment . . - 33124 o-31,0685 - 11573 o - 2,089 - {9492 - -
_ Corporate (unallocated to segments) (3,447} 2818) - - (2151} .. .. (629). . (667). .
. Consolidated <~ $50,334 i $13610 . $10,969: - .:$36724':°$ .- 2,641 - - ..

: ~-Our. professional liability segment. operates in a- challenging ‘environment.- Beginning -in 2000,
virtually all providers of medical professional liability began to recognize adverse trends in-claim severity,
causing increased estimates of current and -prior'losses. Throughout.the industry, prémiurns previously
‘considered adequate to cover expected losses and provide some profit were found to be.inadequate; We
began to address these trends in 2000 by 'seeking. to. increase premium rates:in order td.more -closely
align revenues with expected. losses. We have implemented rate iricreases in all states, even when this
has resulted-in non-renewal of business: We have been:more selecfive in our underwriting criteria and
have elected to not-renew business that we:did not expect to write profitably: At the- same time, we have
also worked to contain losses and to improve operating efficiencies. Our:ability fo successfully implement
premium rate increases has been’ the most significant. factor in impreving:the underwriting results of this
segment. . : :

Investment income is a substantial revenue source for the professional liability segment because,
on average, premiums:are collected several years before-the related losses are paid. Additionally, we
consider realized capital gains to be a significant part of our investment strategy and. realized capital
gains and losses can have a substantial effect on our revenues. Prevailing market interest rates have
been at historically low levels in recent years which has reduced our investment income. The decline in
investment income somewhat offsets any improvement that results: from premium . increases. In. an
attempt to mitigate that risk, state regulators require us to take interest rates into account-as we develop
our rates. '

Qur personal Iineé segment opefatés in.a hi'ghlly competifi\(é: en\}ironmént dominéi_ed by larger
insurance organizations. We must provide ‘a high lével of service white operating. efficiently in order to

competitively price our products and obtain positive.financial results. The personal lines segment has
contributed significantly to our consoclidated profits-since the segment was acquired in June 2001, -

_ Investment income is a less signiﬁcarit co_rribonént 'er reveriues for the personal lines segment
than for the professional fines segment because the length of fime between-the collection of premiums ,
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and the settlement of claims is genera!ly short; approximately 75% of claims are paid wnthln one year after
the claim is filed. Investment incomé has increased only slightly because increases in the investment
portfollo have been offset by declmes in ylelds ‘

Losses and Remsur ance

Losses are the largest component of expense for both the professional liability segment and the
persconal lines segment. In 2003, the consolidated net loss ratio {the income statement line “Net losses
- and loss adjustment expenses” divided by the income statement line “Net premiums earned”) is 88.4%,

reflecting a net loss ratio of 96.9 % for the professional liability segment and 65.8% for the personal lines
segment.- As discussed in critical accountlng policies, net losses in any period reflects our estimate of net

losses related to the premiums eamned in that penod as well as any changes to our estimates of reserves
required for net losses of prior periods. - T

The estimation of losses is particularly difficult for our professional liability segment. Loss
reserves associated with medical professional Ilabihty coverage tend to be higher than those associated
with most other types of property and casualty insurance for two primary reasons. First, overall costs of
providing professional. liability insurance coverage historically have been among the h|ghest of the
property and casualty insurance lines. These costs can be attributed principally to increases in both the
frequency and severity of professional liability claims. Second, the complexity of professional. liability
claims increases losses. In addition, delays between the collection of premiums and the payment of
losses are generally longer for professional liability insurance than cther property and casualty lines.
Frequently, injuries are not discovered until years after an incident, or the claimant may delay pursuing
the recovery of damages. As a result of the delay; a component of the loss reserves for occurrence
coverage- and “tail’ coverage inciudes an estimate of fie claims that have been incurred but not yet
reported (IBNR).

Medical professional-liability loss experience is volatile- and cyclical. Over the past twenty-five
years, the industry has experienced :several periods of increasing claim frequency and-severity, followed
by periods of relative stability: At other times, due to tort reform, favorable judicial decisions, favorable
~ economic: condifions or.other unknown factors, claim frequency or severity have decreased. Malpractice
claims generally require an extended period of time to resolve, and the average life of a claim can be five
years or more. The. combination of ‘changing conditions and the extended time required for claim
resolution resuit in-a loss cost estimation process that requires actuarial skill and the application of
judgment, and such estimates require periodic revision. We believe it is prudent to establish initial losses
that are based on histarical experience-as well as on facts and-circumstances known at the balance shest
date. To the extent that actual résults deviate from. expectations, reserve estimates are subsequently
adjusted.

: Losses for the personal lines segment are delineated between property and liability loss due to
their differing characteristics. Losses for property claims comprise approximately 70% of the personal
lines loss expense. Such-claims are typically settled and paid without litigation within one year after the
claim is reported. Losses for personal liability claims more closely resemble medicai professional liability
‘losses and are more complex to estimate. Injuries and their severity may not be discovered until several
years after an incident and the delay between the collection of premlum and the payment of losses is also
longer than property losses and subject to litigation.

We reinsure professional liability risks under treaties pursuant to which the reinsurer agrees to
assume all or a portion of all risks that we insure above our individual risk retention of $1 million per claim,
up to the maximum individual limit offered (currently $16 million). Historically, per claim retention levels
have varied between the first $200,000 and the first $2 million depending on the coverage year and the
state in which ‘business was written. Periodically, we provide-insurance fo policyholders ahove the
maximum limits of our reinsurance treaties. In those situations, we reinsure the excess risk above the
limits of our reinsurance treaties on a facultafive b351s whereby the reinsurer agrees to insure a par‘tlcular
risk up to a designated limit. .
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We currently reinsure our personal lines risks in excéss of $250,000 per loss. Individual property
risks are covered up to $1 million per risk and casualty risks are covered on an excess of loss basis up to
$3 million per oceurrence. Qur Personal Lines segment is also covered by Catastrophe reinsurance which
provides additional protection from significant aggregate loss exposure arising from a single event such
as windstorm, hall, tornado, earthquake, riot, blizzard, freezing temperatures or other extraordinary
events. We have purchased catastrophe reinsurance for automobile physical damage, homeowners and
boat property damage in five layers up to $29.5 million in excess of $1.5 million with each layer subject to
a retention of 5%. Since we began offering umbrella policies in 2000, we have a quota share reinsurance
arrangement under which we retain 5% and cede 95% of our liability on these policigs.

Our risk retention tevel is dependent upon numerous factors including the price and availability of
reinsurance, volume of business, level of experience, our analysis of the 'pdtential';undenvriting"results
within each state and our assessment of our financial capacity to assume greater risk. Our 2003-2004
reinsurance treaties renewed with no change in ferms or conditions from the prior year. We have
structured the program to include a broader participation of reinsurers to further diversify our credit risk.

The following table, known as the Loss Reserve Development Table, presents information over
the preceding ten years regarding the payment of our losses as well as changes to (the development of)
our estimates of losses during that time period. The table includes losses on both a direct and an
assumed basis and is net of reinsurance recoverables. The gross liability for losses before reinsurance,
as shown on the balance sheet, and the reconciliation of that gross fiability to amounts net of reinsurance
are reflected below the table. We do not discount our reserves to present value: '

Tfie following definitions may be helpful in understanding the Loss Reserve Developrﬁent Table:

= The line entitled “Reserve for losses, undiscounted and net of reinsurance recoverables” reflects
the :Company’s reserve for losses. and.loss adjustment expense, less the receivables from
reinsurers, each as showing in the Company's consolidated financial statements at the end of
each year (the Balance Sheef Reserves). . . ... : ‘ : :

»  The section entitled “Cumulative net paid, as of’ reflects the cumulative amounts paid as of the
end of each succeeding year.with respect to the previously recorded Balance Sheet Reserves.

* The section entitled “Re-estimated .net liability as of reflects the re-estimated amount of the
liability previously recorded as.Balance Sheet-Reserves that inciudes the cumulative amounts
paid and an estimate of additional liability based upon claims experience as of the end of each
succeeding year (the Net Re-estimated Liability). ) - -

= The line éntitled "Net cumuiati\}e 'redundancy,i (deﬁci'ency);" reﬂ,e'cts'thé difference between the
previously recorded Balance Sheet Reserve for each applicable year and the Net Re-estimated
Liability relating thereto as of the end of the most recent fiscal year.

Information presented in the following tabie is cumulative and, accordingly, each amiount includes
the effects of all changes in amounts for prior years. The table presents the development of our balance
sheet reserves; it does not present accident year or policy year development data. Conditions and trends
that have affected the development of liabilities in the past may not necessarily occur in the future.
Accordingly, it may not be appropriate to extrapolate future redundancies or deficiencies based on this
table.
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Analysls of Losses and Loss Reserve Development

include Professionals Group.

(b)

- reservas were acquired on June 27, 2001.

in each year reflected in the table, we have utilized actuarial methodologies, including incurred
loss development, paid loss development and frequency-severity projections, to estimate reserves. These
techniques are applied to the data and the resultlng prolecttons are evaluated: by management to

establlsh the estimate of reserves.
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(In thousands)
Dacumhur n, .
1983 (s} 1694 (s} 1985 {a) 1986 {a) 1997 a) 1998(n) ~ 4900(s) - 2000 (s} 2001 {5) 2002 2003

Reserva for losses ’
undlscounied and net of ) . . . . .
welnsurance recoverables  § 272,382 § 205541 § 352521 5 440040 §  4B4S22 5 400741 5 485,279 § 493457 5 1,088,285 5 1160456 $ 1,388,773
Cumulative net pald
as of: :
One Year Later 21,296 24,102 27,502 45,380 87,383 89,884 122,852 ;43.592 271,482 472386
Two Years Laler 40,988 42,116 58,760 08,664 128,758 192,718 238,872 254,855 488,820
Three Years Later 53,1868 58,703 80,061 135,892 194,139 257913 . 313,003 321,957
Four Years Laler 81,153 65,520 107.005 173,362 227587 208,501 58,877
Five Years Latsr 88,410 76,261 120,692 191,874 252,015 331,786
SboYears Later 73,308 81,722 120,043 - 204,013 266,068 -
Seven Years Later 78,718 82,505 135,820 212,282 -
Eight Years Later 76,621 84,649 138,534
Nina Years Later 77713 © 85,008 :
Ten Yoars Later 77.825 T
Ro-astimeted Net Liabifty As OF |
End of Year $ 202302 2055941 § 352521 § A4DO40 § 464122 § 480741 § - 488,270 § 493457 § 1,088,285 1,188,458
One Yeur Later 251,445 268,154 325212 - 983,363 ATB814 427,095 463,770 507276 1,076,714 1,148,578
Two Yedrs Later 220,385 230,243 260,518 -34T.258 364,188 288,308 468,934 520,698 1,060,435
Thréo Years Later 94,212 200,311 . 237.280 204,875 333,530 400,333 - 488,428 -§27,085 °
Four Years Latar 150,098 157,836 180,110 264,714 323,202 414,008 487,368
Flve Yaers Lator 428,379 122,670 173,148 ‘250,185 - 320,888 416381
Slx Years Later 108403 105778 188,628 245808 321,232

- @aven Years Later " 62,954 © e,787 180,784 250,827
Eight Years Later 8a,828 84,102 BT -
Nine Yaars Later 23,251 05,825 :

° Ten Yoars Laler 83,8680
Neit cumulative redundancy ' . o . : . .- <
{deficlency) 155,.432 180,018 : 190,804 188,113 142,690 . es_.auu (1..037) (33g28) . {1,150) 10,880

- Orginel gross lablbty - end of year 355,735 432,937 548,732 814,720 660,801 - 845,788 858650 1,442,344 1.822468 -
Lesa: rel i @0.194). - - (80.418) (108697 . _(150.698) - {170.860)  (170.607)  (166207) . (374.088). - @s201%) -
Origingl net llabllity - snd of year 206,841 352,501 440,040 484,122 480747 - 438279 483457 1088285 1,160,458
Gres re-sstimatod Habiiy - lalest 124,451 188,756 208,676 421.1'5'1 530,440 508,120 830,089 1,419,582 1,588,773 '
Re-estimated rel b (28,328) {26,041) {47,648) (100,518) __ (115088)  (i10,764) . ($02.984) (50,148) . (419,187)
Het re-estimated liability - latast 95,626 184,717 260,827 321,282 415,381 487,368 527086 1080435 1.149.576
Groan cumulstiva mdundancy o - Lo - L LT I
{deficlency) .. 28284 . 248470 250,156 192,080 130,182 87,668 29,500 22,755 53,005
(a) Reflects reserves of Medical Assurance excluding Professionals Group reserves, which were acquired on June 27, 2001.

Accordingly, the gross and net reserve developmient (reserves-recorded . at the end of the year, as originally estimated,
less reserves re-estimated as of subsequent years) relates only to the operations of Medical Assurance and does not

Reflects reserves of PRA following the consolidation of Medlcal Assurance and Professmnals Group Accordingly, the
gross and net reserve development (reserves recorded at the end of the year, as originally estimated, less reserves re-
-estimated as of subsequent years) does not Include any development related to Professionals Group ressrves since these



Prior'to 2001, our reserve for losses was:solely for our Professional Liability Segmenit; beginning

in 2001 ‘our reserves also include our Personal Lines segment. Our reserve for losses developed

favorab

ly in many prior years for several reasons:

Substantially all of our.business was derived from medical professional liability insurance written
in Alabama until we began to geographically expand our business in the mid to late 1990s. We
utilized a rigorous and disciplined approach to investigating, managing and defending claims.
This philosophy generally produced results in Alabama that were better than industry averages in
terms of loss payments and the proportion of claims closed without indemnity payment.

~ Our volume of business in the iate 1980's .and early 1990's, while substantial, was not of a

sufficient size to fully support the actuarial projection process; thus, our data was supplemented
with industry-based data. Ultimately, actual results proved better than the industry data, creating

redundancies.

‘Our reserves established in the late 1980's and early 1990's were strongly influenced by the
dramatically increased frequency and severity that we, and the industry as a whole, experienced
during the mid-1980s. Some of these trends moderated, and in some cases; reversed, by the late
1980s or early 1990s. However, the ability to recognize the improved ‘environment was delayed

" due to the extended time required for claims resolution. When these negative trends moderated,

the reserves we established during those periods proved to be redundant.

‘We establish our initial reserves in the Personal Lines segment at a level to give consideration to

“our estimate of rising costs and-increasingly unpredictable litigation trends. Because losses in this

segment mature: sooner than in Professional Liability, we ‘are able to recognize reserve

 development earlier if these anticipated costs and trends do not materialize as expected.

" The professionéi_l‘ liability legal environment deteriorated once again during the past se'Veral_ years.

Beginni

ng-in 2000, we recognized adverse trends in claim severity, causing increased estimates of

certain loss liabilities. As a result, favorable development of prior year loss reserves slowed in 2000 and
reversed in 2001 and 2002. We have addressed these frends through increased rates, stricter
underwriting and modifications to claims handling procedures.” : ' :

Due to the size of our reserves, even a small percentage adjustment can have a material effect

.on our.results of operations for the period in which the change is made.
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Results._of. Operations —
December 31,2002 -

Year .ended ‘Det_;emher 31, 2003 Compared: to  Year Eng_ied

- Our consolidated net income is $38.7 million, or $1.33: per diluted share, for the year ended
December. 31, 2003 .as compared fo $12.2 millionor $0.46 per diluted share for the year ended
December 31, 2002, Selected financial data for each period is summarized in the table below."

" Year Ended December 31 .Ir.lcrease

2003 2002 {Decrease)
: B fn Thausands S B
Revenues : . - : G s
: ,—.Grosspremlumswﬂtten Coe . § 740, 110 $ 636,156 7 -3 -103:954
Net premiums written : $ 668,909 B 537123 "$..131,786
Premiums eamed . $ 698347 $ 576414 $ 121,933
Premiuins ceded . - - (74,833) (89,006) : 24 173
Net premiums eamed : . 823,514 - 477408 - - 146,106
Net investment income . - L. 13618 76918, - (3209)
Net realized investment gains (Iosses) . _ . 59892 . :{5,308) - 11,208
“Qtherincome . o ‘ - 6,515 6747 (232)
Total revenues : 709;“0 555,767 I 163,873
Expenses: _ o ]
" ‘~lossesand loss’ adjush'nent expenses ‘ : ' 576,043 569,099 T 6,944
-+ Reinsurance recoveries 5 ‘ : - {24,867) o . (121,070) - 96,403
- Net losses and loss adjushnentexpenses .- .. 651,376 448,029 - 103,347
Underwntlng, acquisition and ingurance expenses . _ 104 216._ e 91,2683, ... 12,963
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 305 7 = Tt 306
Interest expense ‘ 3,408 2,875 534
. Totalexpenses. .. L 858,308 542457 . 117,149
Income before Income taxes R ‘ T 50,334 ss0 d8724
" Income taxes (beneﬁt} ' o At460 . . (188) . 14,638
Income before mihority interest and
- dumulative-effect of accounting change - - B . 38,884 13,798 _ 25,086
Less: Minority interest ) ) ' 181 3285 (3.104)
Income before cumulative effect of :
accounting change 38,703 10,513 28,190
Cumulative effact of accounting change,
net of fax - 1,694 (1,694)
Net Income $ 38,703 & 12,207 $ 26496
Net loss ratio * 88.4% 93.8% (5.4%)
Undervriting expense ratio * ' 18.7% 18.1% (2.4%)
Combined ratio 105.1% 112.9% (7.8%)
Less: Investment income ratio * 11.8% 16.1% {4.3%)
Operating ratio 93.3% 96. 8% (3.5%)
Decamber 31
2003 2002
Total assets $ 2,879,362 § 2,586,650

<

Net reserves for losses 1,369,773 $ 1,160,456

* Ratios shown are expressed as a ratio of net premiums eamed.
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The operating results of each of our reportable industry segments are discussed separately in the
following sections. Revenues and expenses are attributed to the operating segments with the exception
of corporate income, which consists of investment income earned directly by the parent holding company
and interest expense related to long-term debt held by the parent. - T

Our effective tax rates for both years is significantly iower than the expected 35% statutory rates
because we earned approximately 23% of our net investment income from tax-exempt sources in 2003
and 25% in 2002. After adjustment for tax exempt income, we experienced a taxable loss for the year
ended December 31, 2002. )

: _Minority interest in both 2003 and 2002 relates entirely to the minority interest in the income of
MEEMIC Holdings. Asdiscussed under-“Liquidity and Capital Resources” we purchased this minority
interest on January 29, 2003, In 2003, earnings were allocable to the minority interest only for the period
from January 1 to' January 29. In 2002, earnings were allocable to the minority interest for the entire
period. .+ .. . S B
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PROFESSIONAL-. LIABILITY SEGMENT -

I : . .

Operatmg results for our professmnal I:ablllty segment for the years ended Decemiber 31, 2003
and 2002 are summarized in the tab!e below

Year Ended December 31 - " Increase’

2003 2002 - (Decrease) - -
in Thousands
Revenues: } L _
" Gloss premiums written' W5 543323 6 461715 $ 81608
" Net premlums wntten _ $ 480,962 $ 376,702  $ 114,250
:'Premiums eamed e oo ‘ T 509,260 $ - 412 656 -3 06,604
Premiums céded - {56,014} {85,011) 28,997 .
Net premiums earned 453,246 327,645 125,601
Net investrnent income 63,099 66,790 (3,691)
Net realized investment gains (losses) 5,858 (6,099 11,957
Cther income 4,460 4,860 (500)
Total revenues 526,663 393,286 133,367
Expenses:
Loss and loss adjustment expenses 414,828 460,289 (45,461)
Reinsurance recoveries _ 24 540 (108,969) 133,509
Net losses and Joss adjustment expenses 429,368 351,320 88,048
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses 66,638 56,613 10,025
Total expenses 506,006 407,933 98,073
Income (loss) before income taxes ) $ 20,657 $ (14,637) $ 35204
Net loss ratio * 96.9% 107.2% {10.3%)
Underwriting expense ratio * 14.7% 17.3% (2.6%)
Combined ratio 111.6% 124.5% (12.9%)
Less: Investment income ratio * 13.9% 20.4% {6.5%)
Operating ratio 97.7% 104.1% . (6.4%)
December 31
2003 2002
Identifiable segment assels $ 2413043 % 2184676
Net reserves for losses $ 1298458 3 1,096,205

* Ratios shown are expressed as a percentage of net premiums earned.
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Premiums
Premiums written

Premiums written for the professional liability segment increased by $81.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the same period in 2002, principally due to rate increases. We
experienced premium growth from new business in states where competitors have left the professional
liability market. The growth in new business has largely been offset by policies that did not renew due to
higher rates and our. own underwriting decisions. :

‘ We have implemented and we plan to continue to implement rate increases based on loss trends:
however, our ability to implement those rate increases is subject to regulatory approval. Renewals in
2003 were at rates that are approximately 28% higher than 2002 rates. However, we do not expect
premium growth to reflect the full amount of the rate increases because retention of our insureds may he
-réduced by the higher rates. Also during 2003 we converted most of our remaining occurrence policies to
claims-made policies. We believe that a substantial majority of our occurrence policyholders accepted the
conversion {o claims-made coverage. First-year claims-made coverage has a significantly lower premium
than occurrence coverage due to lower loss exposure, and the conversion reduced 2003 premiums
written as compared to 2002 by approximately $13.5 million. The conversion of occurrence fo claims-
made will be completed in 2004,

Premiums earned

Premiums earned for the professional liability segment increased $96.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 as compared to the same period in 2002. Premiurns are earned pro rata over the
entire policy period (generally one year) after the policy is written. The increase in 2003 earned premiums
therefore reflects on a pro rata basis the changes in written premiums that occurred during both 2003 and
2002. Thus earned premiums have increased for the reasons discussed in the section on premiums
written.

Premiums ceded

- Premiums ceded represent the premiums we must ultimately pay to our reinsurers for their
assumption of a portion of our losses. Premiums ceded decreased by $29.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 as compared fo the same period in 2002. This decrease is primarily becatise we
have reduced the portion of our losses that we cede to our reinsurers. Under reinsurance contracts that
became effective in October 2002, our retention levels for insured medical liability events became $1.0
million in all states whereas previously our retention in many states was as low as $250,000. Premiums
‘ceded have decreased both in fotai dollars and as a percentage of premiums earned because we are
ceding a smaller portion of our risk. ' R ' : '

Some of our reinsurance agreements adjust the premium due to the reinsurer based upon the
losses reimbursed under the agreement. In 2003, as discussed in more detail under “Losses and Loss
Adjustment Expenses” we reduced our estimates of certain prior yéar gross losses, as well as the related
reinsurance recoveries. Consequently the estimate of ultimate ceded premiums was reduced by $5:4
million.as a result of this change. As discussed in the section on Critical Accounting Policies, adjustments
in the estimates of ultimate ceded premiums are reflected in current operations.

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
Net Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

Calendar year losses may be divided into three components: (i) actuarial evaluation of incurred
losses for the current accident year; (i) actuarial re-evaluation of incurred losses for prior accident years;
and (iii) actuarial re-evaluation of the reserve for the death, disability and retirement provision (DDR) in

our claims-made policies.
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Accident year refers to the accounting period in which the insured event becomes a liability of the
insurer. For occurrence policies the insured event becomes a liability when the event takes place; for
claims-made policies the insured event becomes a liability when the event is first reported to the insurer.
We believe that measuring losses on an accident year basis is the most indicative measure of the
underlying profitability of the premiums earned in that period since it associates policy premiums earned
‘with our estimate of the losses incurred related to those policy premiums. Calendar year results include
the operating results for the current accident year and, as discussed in critical accounting policies, any
changes in estimates related to prior accrdent years.

The following table summarizes professmnal net losses and net loss ratios for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002. The net loss ratios shown are calculated by dl\ndlng the appltcable net
tosses by calendar year net premtums eamed

Year ended December 31
2003 2002
_In Thousends

- Net losses: -, '
Current accident year - S ~$ 439418 $ 333,160
" - ‘Change in prior accident year net losses ' (50) 18,160

Change in DDR reserves

Calendar yoar net Losses $ 439,368 $ 351,320

Net loss ratio atfributable to: - .. o _
Current accident year ;. - 96.8% 101.7%
Change in prior acmdent year IOSSes ] - 55%
"Change in DDR : - ‘ ) = :

Calendaryear net toss rat|o ' ‘ _- i - _ 66.9% 107.2%

Current Accident Year Net Losses

. Net losses increased by $106.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2002. There is little change in the number of insured risks during 2003 as
compared to 2002 fiet losses increased during 2003 primarily because of higher loss costs. The current
accident year net loss ratio for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased to 96.9% as compared fo
107.2% for the same period in 2002. The 2003 logs ratio s’ Iower than the 2002 ratio because premlum
rates mcreased at a faster pace than did loss costs

Change in Prior Accident Year Lossés and Change in DDR Reserves

We decreased our estimate of professional liability prior year net losses by $50,000 in 2003 and
increased our estimates by $18.2 million in 2002. These adjustments were in response to actuarial
evaluations of loss reserves performed durlng the period. No significant change was made to our
estimates of the reserves required for death, disability and retirement during 2003 or 2002.

Assumptions used in establishing our . reserves are regularly reviewed and updated by
management as new data becomes available. Any adjustments necéssary are reflected in current
operations. Due to the size of our reserves, even a small percentage adjustment to the assumptlons can
have a material effect on our results of operations for the period in which the change is made.
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Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses / Reinsurance Recoveries

Our actuarial analysis indicates that our claims severity has continued to increase as expectedin
our retained layers. However, we have not experienced the high level of losses In our reinsured. layers
that we originally anticipated and for which we established reserves. Accordingly we reduced our
estimates of prior accident year gross loss and loss adjustment expenses by approximately $63.8 million
during the year ended December 31, 2003. Since these losses were reinsured, we reduced ‘expected
reinsurance recoveries by approximately the same amount.. The reduction of $74.2 million for: prior
accident years more than offset current accident year recoveries of $49.4 miltion, thus creating-a non-

traditional relationship between gross losses and recoveries for 2003. These changes in estimates had a
nominal effect.on 2003 net losses. .

Net Investment Income and Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses)

Our professional liability segment investment income.is primarily derived from the interest income
eamed by our fixed maturity securities but also inciudes .interest income from short-ferm and cash
equivalent investments, dividend income from equity securities, increases in the cash surrender value of
business owned executive life insurance contracts, and rental income earned by our commercial real

‘estate holdings. Investment fees and expenses and real estate expenses are deducted from investment
income. : : : :

Investment income is a substantial revenue source for the professional liability segment because,
on average, premiums are collected some years before the related losses are paid. However, prevailing
market interest and equity yields have been at historically low levels in recent years. Our net investment
income decreased by $3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the same
period in 2002, The decrease occurred even though our average invested funds increased in 2003. The
positive effect of additional invested funds was more than offset by the effect of lower average yields. The
weighted average tax equivalent book yield (tax adjusted gross earnings divided by the average quarterly
ending book value) of our professional fiability segment fixed maturity investments is 4.7% for the year
ended December 31, 2003 as compared to 6.1% for the same period in 2002. The average yield is
reduced as compared to 2002 because market rates available- for the investment of new and matured
funds were lower in 2003. Also, in the fourth quarter of 2002 we sold a significant portion of our fixed
maturity portfolio in order to realize capital gains and these proceeds were reinvested during 2003 at
substantially lower rates.

Investment income declined from 20.4% of premium earned in 2002 to 13.9% in 2003. The
decline in investment income somewhat offset the improvement in our combined ratio.

Net realized investment gains (losses) include gains and losses realized on sales of investment
securities and realized losses for other than temporary impairments in the fair value of investment
securities, as shown in the following table.

Year ended Decamber 31
2003 2002
In Thousands

Net gains (losses) from sales $ 5,857 $ 15205
Other than temporary impatment losses {322) (21,304)
Holding gains (losses) on trading portfolio 323 -
Net realized invesiment gains {losses) $ 5,858 $ (6,099
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Underwriting, Acquisition and Insurance Expenses

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses increased by approximately $10.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the same period in 2002. These éxpenses. are
comprised of variable costs, such as commissions and premium taxes that are directly related to
premiums earned, and fixed costs that have no direct refationship to premium volume, such as salaries,
benefits, facility costs and guaranty fund assessments. The 2003 increase in expenses is primarily due fo
-higher variable costs incurred as a result of premium growth. Guaranty fund assessments were lower by
approximately $1.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the same period in
2002. Also, late in the second quarter of 2003 we ceased to provide medical credentialing. services.
Expenses associated with this business activity were $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003
as compared to $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,

The underwriting expense rafio is the total of underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses
divided by net premiums earned. This ratio is 14.7% for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared
to 17.3% for the same period in 2002. The ratio decreased because there was no significant change in
our fixed costs, other than the previously discussed decrease in guaranty -fund assessrients, while
premiums earned increased in 2003. ' ' S -

 Guaranty fund assessments are amounts we are required to contribute o state insoivency or

guaranty fund associations when so assessed by the state. Such assessments can and do vary from
year to year. Co . Lo -
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PERSONAL LINES SEGMENT

Our personal lines segment is comprised of the operations of a single insurance company,
MEEMIC Insurance Company Selected financial data for our personal Ilnes segment is summanzed in
the table below. ‘

Year ended December 31 Increase
2003 2002 (Decreass)
In Thousands
Revenues: B
Gross premiums written $ 196,787 $ 174,441 $ 22346
Net premiums written $ 177,957 $ 160,421 $ 17,536
Premiums earmed $ 489,087 $ 163,758 $ 25329
Premiums ceded (18 819) {13,995) (4,824)
Net premiums earned 170,268 149,763 20,505
Net investment income. o 10,253 10,071 182
Net realized investment galns (Iosses) 134 793 {659)
Other income o . 2,055 1,787 268
Total revenues 182,710 162,414 20,296
Expenses
" *’Loss and loss adjustment expenses 161,215 108,810 ' 52,405
" Reinsurance recoveries’ - {49,207) * {(12401) - (37,108}
- - Netlosses and loss adjustmentexpenses 112,008 . - . 86,709 - ¢ 15209
. U_nderwr_img. acquisition and insurance expenses 37,578 .. 34.640- - 2,938
Total expenses 149,688 « 131,349 - -’"‘-‘18'.2'37
- Income before income taxes and minority interest $ 33124 . =31.;065 e 15 ‘-2,059

Ne{ Loss rauo . .. - 615.“8‘%.”“ L 6% 2%

: Undemﬁtmg expense ratio * 221% " 234% C{1.0%)
Combined ratio 87.9% 87.7% 2%
Less: investment income ratio * 6.0% 6.7% - % . {0.7%).
Operating ratio 81.9% 81.0% 0.9%

- December 31 i - s ta o
_ .2003 20020
identifiable segment assets $ 431,364 '3 372,086 '
Net reserves for losses $ 71,315 $ 64,251

" * Raflos shown are expressed as a parcentage of net premiums earned.
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Premiums
Prerniums writfen

Gross premiums wrrtten for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $22.3 mmron as

;:ompared to the year ended December 31, 2002. Premiums by line of business for each period are as
ollows. .

Year ended December 31

2003 2002
in Thousands '

" Automobile $ 161,389 § 147,168

Homeowners 34,571 26,600
Boat, umbrella, and other 817 673

$ 196,787  § 174,441

Automabile premrums are higher during 2003 primarily due to increases in the number of autos
msured .and increases . in the value of those autos. The number of insured. vehrcles increased from
181,280 at December:31, 2002 t0°191,633 at December 31, 2003. Automobile premiums’ also grew due
to a 2% rate increase that became effective on October 1 2002 and a 0. 6% increase that_became
effective on October‘! 2003. .. P

Homeowners _premiums are higher during 2003 primarily due to-a 22% rate i increase that became
effectrve on July 1, 2002 and a 7.6% rate increase that became effective April 1, 2003, Homeowners
premiums also grew due fo increases in the number of homes insured and the va[ue of those homes. The
number of msured homes rncreased from 55,480 at December 31, 2002 to 81 864 at December 31 2003.

Premrums eameo‘ '

Premrums earned mcreased by $20.5 milion for the year ended Decernber 31 2003 as
compared to the same period in 2002. Premiums are earned pro rata over the entire policy period after
the policy is written. The increase in 2003 earned premiums therefore reflects on a pro rata basis the
changes in written premiums that occurred dunng both 2003 and 2002. Thus earned premrums have
increased as dlscussed in the sectlon on premiums written. .

Premiums ceded
Premiums ceded represent the premiums we must ultimately pay to our reinsurers for their
assumption of a portion of our losses. Premiums ceded increased feor the year ended December 31, 2003

as compared to the same period in 2002. The increase is due to the increased volume of our busmess
and increased rates charged by our reinsurers.
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Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

. The following table summarizes-personal lines net losses and net loss ratios for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002 by separating losses between the current accident year and -all prior.

accident years. The net loss ratios shown are calculated by dtwdlng the appllcable net losses by calendar
year net premiums earned

Year ended December 31
2003 2002
in Thousands

Net losses: _
Current accidentyear © . $122838 ' 106440
Change in prior accident years net losses {10,830) {9,731)
Calendar year net losses ) $ 112,008 $ 96,709

 Net loss ratio atiributable to:. .. . S e e T
_Current accidentyear . - . - ¥ L 2% . . T1.1%.

: Change in prier accident years Iosses - ‘ (6.4%) 7 (6.5%)

Calendar year net loss ratio 65.8% 64.6%

- Current accident year net losses for the year ended December 31, 2003 are $122.8 mllllon an
increase of $16.4 million as compared to the year ended December 31, 2002 The 2003 increase is due
to a greater number of insureds in 2003, higher loss cost per claim, and an increase in reported claims..
The current accident year net loss ratios for 2003 reflect rate increases for auto'arid homeowners, offset
by increases in auto liability claims, homeowners property claims from an April 2003 isolated ice storm,
lncreaSed frequency in fires, and claims from the August 2003 Midwestern. power outage _

We reduced net tosses by $10 8 m|I||on and $9 7 mtIIlon respectlvely, dunng the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, as a result of favorable developments in our ‘estimates of prior years’ auto
liability reserves. We established initial reserves, particularly fiability reserves, at levels that considered
our estimates of rising costs and unpredictable litigation trends. More favorable results are recogmzed if
and when they materlallze :

Net Investment Incomo and Net Reallzed Investmant Gains (Losses)

Our net lnvestment income ‘is compnsed of the mterest and dmdend mcorne from our f‘ xed.:
maturity, short-term, cash equivalents and equity investments, net ‘of investment expenses. There'is-no
significant-change in our net investment income: for year ended December 31, 2003 as. compared.to
2002, primarily because increases in the size of the portfolio were offset by declines in ytelds Investment
income declined from 8.7% of premiums earned in 2002 to 6. 0% in2003.

The weighted average tax equivalent book yield (tax adjusted gross earnings divided by the
average quarterly ending book vaiue) of the personal lines segment fixed maturity investments is 5. 7% for
the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to 6.2%, for the year ended December 31, 2002. The
average yield is reduced as compared to 2002 because market rates available for the investment of new
and matured funds were lower in 2003.

Net realized investment gains and losses for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 did
not include any realized losses for other than temporary impairments.
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Underwriting, Acquisition and Insurance Expenses

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses consist of normal, recurring expenses such as
commissions, salaries and other expenses. These expenses increased by approximately $2.9 miilion for
the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2002, primarily due to
higher underwriting and acquisition costs from premium growth. The underwriting expense ratio is the
total of underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses divided by net premiums earned. This ratio is
22.1% and 23.1% for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and is lower for the

year ended December 31, 2003 due to operating efficiencies and a decrease in mandatory statufory
assessments.

Guaranty fund assessments total $221,000 in 2003 and $331,000 in 2002.

Corporate

We do not allocate cerfain revenues and expenses (investment income earned directly by the
parent hoiding company, interest expense and other debt costs related to long-term ‘debt held by the
parent holding company) to our operating segment. Unallocated amounts are-summarized below.

Year Ended December 31 Increase
2003 2002 (Decrease)
* In Thousands : '
. Revenues: v - - T A
--Investmentincome | . ... 267 .8 2
- Expenses: B o -
Debt retirement loss~ © 308 o - ' 305
Interest expense o 3,408 2,875 534
_ Unallocated expense in excess o . o
of undllocated reverives 3,447 - 2819 - 628

. Interest expense increased to $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to

$2.9 million for the same period in 2002. The increase results from higher-costs during the third and fourth
quarters of 2003 as compared to 2002 because the debentures issued in July 2003 carried a higher rate
than did the bank term loan- and because the total outstanding amount of debt increased: Management
elected to replace the term loan with the debentures because the debentures provided a longer-term
source of capital at a fixed interest rate. Interest expense was lower in the first six months -of 2003 as
compared to 2002 because both the average outstanding -balance on the term loan and the variable
interest rate on the term loan were lower in 2003. S S e '

1.
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Results of Operatlons Year ended Decemher 3, 2002 Compared to Year Endod December 31
2001

Our consolidated income before cumulative effect of accounting change is $10.5 million, or $0.40
per share, for the year ended December 31, 2002. The year ended December 31, 2002 includes
Professionals Group activity for the entire period, while the year ended December 31, 2001 includes’
Professionals Group activity only since June 27, 2001. Thus, when the two periods are compared,
significant variances are created because 2001 operating results do not include Professmnals Group

operating results for the first six months of 2001, Selected financial data for each period is summanzed in.
the table below. :

* Year Ended December 31 Increase
2002 2001 (Decrease)
in Thousands i R
Revenues: : - Do
Gross premiums written 3 636,166 § 388083 $ 247,173
Net premiums written $ 537,123 .§ 310,291 3 226832
Premiums eamed $ 576414 $ 381,510  § 194,904
Premiums ceded” - - - {99,006) (68, 165) (30,841);
Net premiums earned ‘ . 477 408 © 313,345 164,063
Net investment income 76,918 59,782 17,136
Net realized investment gains (losses) (5,306) 5,441 (10,747)
Other income ' _ _ , 6,747 3,987 2,760
Totat revenues o 556,767 382,555 173,212
Expenses: ‘ ) = C
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 569,099 344,202 .; 224,897
Reinsurance recoveries ) : - (121,070} (45,644) {75,426)
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 448,029 208,558 - .- 149,471
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses _ 91,253 70,437 20,816
Interest expense , 2,875 2,591 . 284
Total expenses ‘ 542,157 371,586 _ 170,571
Income before income taxes 13,610 10,969 2,641
Provislon for income taxes (benefit) ‘ (188} (2,847) 2,659
Income before minority interest and S '
. eumuldtive effect of accounting change 13,798 13,816 B (1
" Less: Minority interest c 3285 4366 - 1,919
fncome {loss) béfore cumulative effect of ’ : ’
" - accounting change - 10,613 12,450 (1,937)-
" Gumulative effect of accounting change, ‘ ]
" net of tax . ' o 1,694 : - - 1694
Net Income (loss) ' $ 12,207 § 12,450 $ (243)
Net loss ratio * 93.8% 95.3% (1.5%)
Underwriting expense ratic * 19.1% _22.5% (3.4%).
Combined ratio 112.9% 117.8% (4.9%)
Less: Investment income rafio * 16.1% 18.1% {3.0%)
Operating ratio 96.8% 98.7% (1.9%)
December 31
2002 2001
Total assets $§ 2586650 § 2,238325
Net reserves for losses ' $ 1.160,456 $ 1,068,285

* Ratios shown are expressed as a percentage of net premiums earned.
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We discuss the bperatinﬁz"résults of ééch of ou'r' reportable industry segments separately in thé
following sections. Revenues and expenses are allocated to the operating segments with the exception of

corporate income, which consists.of investment income earned. directly by. the parent holding company
and interest expense related to long-term debt held by the parent.

: We recognized tax benefits .bf $188,000 and $2.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. Our effective rate for both years is significantly lower than the expected 35%
statutory rate because approximately 25% in 2002 and 37% in 2001 of our investment income was

eamed from tax-exempt sources. After adjustment for tax-exempt income, we experienced a taxable loss
for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. '

‘Minority interest in both 2002 and 20'01 relates entirely to the minority interest in the income of
MEEMIC Holdings.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY SEGMENT

Operating resuits for :ouy professional liability segment for. the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001 are summarized in the table below. : '

Year Ended December 31 _ Increase
2002 2001 (Decrease)
L in Thousands )
Revenues:
Gross premiums written $ 461,715 $ 315698 $ 146,017
_'Net premiums wntten : 3 376,702 - § 2381867 - $ 137,835
" Premiums eamed . - $ 412656 $ 310222 § 102434
Premiums ceded = AR {85,011) - . (66,307 . (18,704)
‘Net premiums earried - 327,645 243,915 83,730
Net investment income o €6,790 54,339 12,451
Net realized investment gaing (losses) (6,099) 5,441 (11,540}
Other income . 4,960 3,130 1,830
Total revenues o . 303206 308,825 86,471
Bpensest” o S | | 7
Losses and loss adjusiment expenses - 460,289 - 279,248 181,043
Reinsurance recoveries ‘ {108,269) (28,989) (79,980}
© Net losses and logs adjustment expenses 351,320 250,257 101,063
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses 56,613 . 55,021 - 1,692
Total éxpenses S 407,933 305,278 102,655 -
Income (loss} before income taxes $ (14637) & ‘ 1,547 $  (16,184)
Netloss ratio * ' ' 107.2% 102.6% 4.6%
Underwriting expense ratio * ] 17.3% 22.6% (5.3%)
Combined ratio T ; 124.5% 125.2% (0.7%)
- Less: Investment income ratio * S 20.4% 22.3% (1.9%)
Operating ratio ) 104.1% 102.9% 1.2%
December 31
2002 2001
Identifiable segment assets $ 2,184,676 $ 1,813,559
Net reserves for losses ‘ ' . $ 1006205 $ 1,004,462

* Ratios shown are expressed as a percentage of net premiums eamed.
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Premiums
.Premiums wriften

Qur professional liability} segment principally provideé liability insurance for providers of medical
and other healthcare services, and to a limited extent providers of legal services (Professional

Coverages). The professional liability segment also includes accident and health and workers
compensation insurance (Other Coverages).

Premiums written for the professional liability segment for the year ended December 31, 2002
were $461.7 million, which is an increase of $146.0 million as compared to the samie period of 2001 This
increase is comprised of a $184.7 million increase related to Professional Coverages offset by a $38.7
million decrease related to Other Coverages. ,

Professional .Coverages premiums written increased to $457.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The increase is primarily due to the consoclidation with Professionals Group but also
reflects the beneficial effect of rate increases implemented during 2002 and 2001. We have implemented
rate increases based on loss trends and have experienced some loss of insureds due to the higher rates.
in 2002, our premium renewals and new business at the higher rates have more than offset the effect of
non-renewals. We estimate that, on average, 2002 renewals were at rates that were approximately 28%
higher than 2001 rates.

Gross written premiums for Other Coverages were approximately $4.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 as compared to $43.2 million for the same period in. 2001, Our Other Coverages
premiums were primarily written in conjunction with and through third parties as a means of utilizing our
capital. During the latter half of 2000 we decided to significantly decrease our commitment to these
‘programs and have since allowed existing contractual relationships to expire. The decline in Other
Coverages premlums is the expected result of this decision.

Premiums eamad

Premiums earmed for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased by $102.4 million as
compared fo the year ended December 31, 2001. As with written premiums, this increase is comprised of
an increase related to Professional Coverages offset by a decrease r'elatgd tq'che.r'Covgrages.

Our Professional Coverages premiums earned for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased
by $132.4 million to $404.0 million. The increase is primarily due to the additional premiums earned as a
result of the consolidation but, as with written premiums, also reflects the beneficial |mpact of rate
increases. Rate increases implemented after Jantary 1, 2002 are not fully reflected in premlums earned
since premiums are earned over the entire policy period (usually oné year) after'the. pollcy is written.

Other Coverages premiums earned for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $8.7 million, a

decrease of $37.0 million as compared to the year ended December 31, 2001 reflecting our decreased
commitments to the programs that generated these premiums, as. prev[ously dlscussed
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Premiums ceded

- Premiums ceded for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased by $18.7 million as compared
to the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase is comprised of a $23.4 million increase related to
Professional Coverages offset by a $4.7 million decrease related to Other Coverages. -

Professional Coverages premiums -ceded were $78.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2002. The primary reasons for the increase are the growth in premiums earned that resulied from the
consolidation with Professionals Group and rate increases, h

Other Coverages premiums ceded were $6.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2__002,-

reflecting the decline in related earned premiums, as previously discussed. -~
Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (Losses) . '
" The following table summarizes net losses and net loés Tatios for 2002 and 2001 by iype of

‘coverage and by separating losses between the current accident year and all prior years . The net loss
ratios shown are calculated by dividing the applicable riet losses by net premiums earned.

Year ended December 31
2002 C2001
“In Thousands

Current accident year net losses; - C
Professionat Coverages =~ © "~ *° 7" -7 . T & 331404 0§ - 231,480

. ©.Other Coverages = E I L s 1,668 S 231597
,“.Ch_angeg in priqfadéiden’tjéénnet losses* . o L. 860 L 13818 o
Change in DDR reserves . Ny s e = ] {18,647} .
Galendar year net losses o s $ - 351,320 - § - 250257
Current accident year net loss ratio: ‘ - . S
Professional Coverages 101.8% 108.8%
.. -Other Coverages S e L T78% . 75.9% .
“Net loss ratio attributable to: - S _ S T o
. Currentaccidentyearnetlosses . - . - 7 . . S 1017% - 104.6% -
Prior accident year net losses: =~ . SR ' 55 - o B57% .
. Ghange in death, disability and retirement reserves - {7.7%)
: o C 107.2% Co - 102.6%

A . ) " i

> Alil'ibssels'incu"rred in. 2001 related to the book of business. acquired from Profgssiona'ls‘Gr'qup‘ are
considered to be current accident year losses because there was no liability for these losses prior .

to the consolidation transaction. -
Professional Coverages -

Current accident year net losses related to Professional Coverages for the year ended December
31, 2002 increased by $100.0 million as compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. Our
consaclidation with Professionals Group and the resulting increase in premiums is the primary reason for
the increase. The current accident year net loss ratio for Professional Coverages for the year ended
December 31, 2002 as compared to the same period in 2001 has decreased from 108.8% to 101.8 %.
The improvement in the loss ratio primarily reflects the effects of a more adequate premium structure as a
resuit of rate increases implemented during 2002 and 2001.
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Other Coverages

Current accident year net [osses related to Other Coverages decreased by $21.9 miflion for the
year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to the same periods of 2001. The decrease resulted from

the termination of the programs that generated these losses, as previously discussed with respect to
.Other Coverages premiums.

Change in Prior Accident Year Losses / Change' in Death, D_i"sabiﬁty and Retiremient Reserves

We increased our current year net losses by $18.2 million during 2002. in 2001, we increased our
estimates of prior year losses by $13.8 million. In both periods, our estimates of losses related to prior
year weré adjusted based upon actuanal evaluatlons performed durlng the period. .

- In 2001, we decreased our estimate of the reserves required for death, disability and retirement
by $18.6 million. The. decrease was prlmarliy related to the ProNational book of business and was
prmclpaily the result of an mcrease ln the prem:um rate Ioads and a decrease in the number of insureds.

The assumptlons used in establlshlng our reserves are regularly reviewed and updated by
management as new data becomes available. Any adjustments necessary are ‘reflected in then current
operations. Due fo the size of our reserves, even a small percentage adjustment to the assumptions can
have a matenal effect on our, resu[ts of operatlons for the perlod in which the change is made.

Nat Investment Income and Not Reahzed Investment Gains (Losses)

Qur professional liability segment investment income is prtmarlly derived from the interest income
earned by our fixed maturity securities but also includes interest income from short-term and cash
equivalent investments, dividend .income from equity securities, and rental income earned by our
commercial real estate holdmgs Investment fees and expenses’ and real estate expenses are deducted
from investment income. Our net investment income for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased
‘by . $12. 5 million as compared ‘tb the same penod in 2001.. The primary reason for the ‘indrease is the
addrt:onai mvestment income. eamed as aresult of the consolidation wrth Professuonals Group '

Durrng 2002, we experlenced a decline in overall mvestment_yrelds as a‘r,esu,lt of‘ lower market
interest rates, both short and long-term. Our investment opportunifies for new and matured funds have
been at rates that are less favorable than the rates available in recent years. Our average investment in
jower ytetdlng short—term and overmght cash mvestments mcreased durlng 2002 due to a lack of more
desu'able long-term mvestment opportumtles

interest income from f xed maturity mvestments compnsed 93% of our total investment income in
2002 and 88% of our total investment income in 2001. The weighted average tax equivalent book yield
(tax adjusted gross earnings divided by the average quarterly ending book value) of our professional
liability segment fixed maturity investments was 6.1% for 2002 as compared to 6. 6% for the year ended
December 31, 2001.
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Net realized mvestment gains (losses) includes gains and losses réalized on sales of investnient

securities and realized losses for other than temporary rmpalrments in the fair value of rnvestment
securifies, as- shown in the-following table .

2002 - - 2001

Net gains from sales $ 15,205 $ 5,850
Cther than temporary impaimment losses , (21 304) _ (409)
Net realized investment gains (losses) $ (6,009) s 5,441

Approxlmately $18 2 nillion of the impairments recognlzed durmg 2002 were related fo our eqmty
securltles approximately $3.1 miflion of the impairments weré rélated to fixed maturity securrttes '

Approxrmately $147 mlllton of our net galns from sales were from sales of f xed matunty
securities. We purchase fi xed maturlty securities with the initial mtent to. hold. such securities until their
maturity, hoWever, we may’ dispose of securities prior to their respectlve matuntles if we béileve such
disposals are consistent with our overall investment objectives, including maximizing. total yieids over
time, maximizing after-tax profits and disposing of securities that n6_ionger meet. our risk management
'cnterla Throughout 2002; but part:cularly in the latter half of 2002 bond prices increased substantlally.
both in response o historically’ low market mterest rates and; in response ‘to, unoerta:nty in the equrty
market. In response to these market conditiohs we undértook a signifi icant restructuring of our’ fixed
maturity portfolio during the fourth quarter Most of the galns recogmzed for 2002 resulted from these
restructunng activities.

Un:dewvrltlhg, Acquisition and lns‘uratnite Expenses |, AR

: Underwrttlng, ach|S|t|on and msurance expenses morease by mrllron for the year ended
December 31,°2002 .as. compared to the sdime period in 20 “,'Expenses related to. Professional
Coverages premrums earned increased by $15.9, million; howeve ,‘this mc;rease was largely offset by a
$14.3 million decrease in expenses related fo Other Coverages premiums earned. The increase in
_Professional Coverages expenses primarily reflects the additiénal six moriths of Professionals ‘Group
activity that is included in 2002. The decrease in Other Coverages expenses is due to the termmatlon of

these programs as prevrously dlscussed ' . .

) " The underwntmg expense ratlo (underwritlng, acqwsmon and msurance expenses dlwded by net
premiums earhed) decreased as compared to 2001. The ratio’ for the year ended Deoember 31,2002 is
17.3% as compared to 22.6% for the same period in 2001. Lowér acquisition costs reiated to the decline
in Other Coverages premiums reduced the rafio by 3.5%, The remaining .1.8%. decrease in the ratio is
prlmanly due to operating efﬁctencres reahzed in 2002 and”the effect of ra e mcreases R

‘Guaranty fund assessments for the years ended De',"_f:',___‘ber 31 2002 and 2001 were

-approximately $1.9 million and $1. 3 mitlion, respectively.
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PERSONAL LINES SEGMENT

Our personal lines segment is comprised of the operations of a single insurance company,
MEEMIC Insurance Company, acquired as a part of the consolidation with Professionals Group. The year
ended December 31, 2002 includes twelve months of MEEMIC operations while the year ended
December. 31, 2001. includes only six months of MEEMIC operations. Selected financia! data for our
personal lines segment is summarized in the table below. : '

Year ended December 31 - lncréase
2002 2001 {Decrease)
in Thousands
Revenues: :
Gross premiums written I ' $ 174,441 $ 73,285 $ 101,156
Net premiums written $ 160,421 $ 71,424 § 88,997
Premiums eamed o o $ 163,756 - § 71,288 $ 92,470
Premiums ceded (13,995) {1,858) (12,137}
Net premiums eamed ’ 149,763 68,430 80,333
Net investment income . 10,071 5,003 5,068
Net realized investment gains {losses) - 793 - 793
.Qther income 1,787 857 930
- Total revénué_s S _ ‘ - 162,414 75,290 - 87,124
“Loss and loss adjustient expenses ' 108,810 64,956 . 43,854
Reinsurance recoveries : (12,101} (16,655) - . - 4554
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 96,709 48,301 48,408
- Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses .- L 34,640 15416 . . - 19,224
_To[a[expenses e o ' E T B '131,349 63,‘717 .A : 67,63-2
7 Incoma (loss) before income taxes and minority interest $ 31,065 $ 11,573 $ 19.492__
Netlossmtio* . . , o  64.6% 69.6%  (5.0%)
“'Underwriting expense ratio * T D L 234% - 229% T 0.9%,
~ade Y Combined ratio - S . oo T B8 T% T 9M8% T {41%)
.. kess: Investment incomeratio*<.:- - - e e 6% T2% - . . (5%
Operating ratio - B1.0% . B4.6% _(BEW
Decamber 31
. : o : o ... 2002 . 2001
identifable ségment assets E : : '$ 372,086 $ 324,719
Netresarves for losses .. - L $ 64,251 $ 63.823

* Ratios shown are expressed as a percentage of net premiums eamed.
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Premiums
Premiums written

Gross written premiums increased by $101.2 million to $174.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2001, For all fines, the principal
reason for the increase is the inclusion of an additional six months of MEEMIC activity in 2002.
Premiums by line of business for each year are as follows.

_ Year ended December 31
2002 2001
in Thousands

Automobilé $ 147,168 $ 62422

Homeowngm o : 26,600 10,637
Boat, umbrella and other 673 226
$ 174,441 $ 73,285

. Automobile premiums also increased due to growth in the number of policyholders, an increase in
the value of autos insured and an increase in the MCCA mandatory statutory assessments that are
passed through. to automobile policyholders. During 2002 the number of vehicles .insured grew by
approximately 4.5%. e e

] . .Homeowner premiu_m's.als‘o increased due to average rate increages’of dpproximately 20%, an
_increase in the value of homes insured and growth in the number of policyholders. During- 2002 the
number of homes insured grew by approximately 14.5%. : ‘

 Premiums eamed

Premiums- earned for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased by ”$!§2.5}';.mzillion as
" compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. As with written premiums, this increase is primarily due

to. the inclusion of an additional six_months of MEEMIC activity in 2002 :but also-increased due to the
. effects of rate increases and growth in the number of insureds. T

Premiums ceded

Premiums ceded are the portion of our earned premiums due to reinsurers in return for the
transfer of a portion of our risk to them. Premiums ceded for the year ended Degember 31, 2002
increased by $12.1 million as compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. Approximately $11.2
million of this increase is atfributable to an increase in the premiums due to a single reinsurer, the MCCA.
The remainder of the increase is primarily attributable to the additional six months of MEEMIC activity in
2002,
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Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The following table summarizes personal lines net losses and net loss ratios for 2002 and 2001 -
by separating losses between the current accident year and all prior accident years.The net loss ratios

shown are calculated by dividing the applicable net losses by current calendar year net premlums
earned

Year ended December 31
2002 2001
In Thousands

Net losses: ‘ ’ .
Current accident year ’ $ 106,440 $ 48,301
_Change in prior accident vear net Iosses * {9,731)- —

Calendar year net losses $ 96,709 $ 48,301

Net loss ratio attributable to: : . :
Current accident year net losses 71.1% 69.6%

Prior accident year net losses (6.5%)
" Galendar year net oss ratio 64, 6% 69.6%

. AII losses incurred in 2001 are considered to be. current accident year losses because there was-no habll:ty for-
personal lines losses prior to the consolldaﬂon transaction.

. .-Calendar year net losses increased from $48.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001
to $96.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, an increase of $48.4 million.  The principal
reason for the increase is the inclusion of an addltlonal six months of MEEMIC activity in 2002, The
2002 current accident year net loss ratio (current accident year net Loss and LAE divided by net earmned
premiums) is 71.1% and reflects our estimates regarding the frequency and severlty of auto liability
..clalms and the positive effect of mild weather conditions during 2002.

We reduced losses by $9.7 miilion during the year ended December 31, 2002 as a result of
favorable developments in our estimates of prior years aufo Fabllity reserves. We established initial
‘reserves, particularly liability reserves, at levels that give consideration to rising costs and unpredictable
litigation trends. More favorable results are recognized if and when they materialize.
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Net Investment Income and Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses)

~ Our net investment income is comprised of the -interest and dividend income from our fixed
~ maturity,  short-ferm, cash equivalent and equity investments, net of investment expenses. Net
investment income increased by approximately $5.1 milfion for the year ended December 31, 2002 as

compared fo the year ended December 31, 2001, primarily because 2001 includes only six months of
personal lines activity.

Interest income from fixed maturity investments represents more than 86% of our net investment
income. The tax equivalent book yield (tax adjusted gross earnings divided by the average guarterly
ending book value) of the personal lines segment fixed maturity investments for the year ended
December 31, 2002 is 6.1% as compared to 6.2% for the year ended December 31, 2001. The average
yield is reduced because market rates available for the investment of new and matured funds were lower
in 2002,

Net realized investment gains and losses for the year ended December 31, 2002 of $793,000 did
not include any realized losses for other than temporary impairments.

Underwriting, Acquisifion and llnsurance Exﬁénses

Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses consist of normal, recurring expenses such as
commissions, salaries and other expenses. Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses for the year
_ended December 31, 2002 were $34.6 million as compared to $15.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2001. The increase is primarily due to the additional six months of MEEMIC activity in 2002 but also is
due to higher underwriting and acquisition costs resulting from premium growth. The underwriting
expense ratio (underwriting, acquisition and insurarice expenses divided by net premiums earned) for the
year ended December 31, 2002 was 23.1% as compared-to 22.2% for the year ended December 31,
2001. The increase in the ratio-is primarily ‘due to an increase in our statutory and guaranty furd
assessments'in 2002.- - e o o T

Guaranty fund assessments total $331,000 in 2002; there were no.guaranty fund assessments in
2001.
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CORPORATE

We do not allocate certain revenues and expenses (investment income earned directly by the
parent holding company, interest expense and other debt costs related to long-term debt held by the
parent holding company) to our operating segments. Unallocated amounts are summarized below.

" Year Ended December 31 ' Increase
2002 2001 (Decrease)
In Thousands

Revenues: ) ’ :

Investment income 57 440 (383)
Expenses:

Interest expense 2,875 2,501 284

+.Unallocated expense in excess

. of unallocated revenues. 2,818 2151 667

Interest expense of $2.9 million in 2002 and $2.6 million in 2001 relates entirely to the bank loan
that provided financing for the consolidation with Professionals Group. The debt bears interest at a
variable rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR), or at our €lection, the bank’s base
rate. The interest rate is 2.9% on December 31, 2002. We initially borrowed $110 million on June 27,
2001 to finance the consolidation. We repaid $22.5 million on the loan in September 2001 because the
cash requirements of the consolidation were fower than we originally anticipated. o o
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We believe that we are principally exposed to three types of market risk related to our investment
operations. These risks are interest rate risk, credit risk and equity price risk.

The term market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market retes and’
prices, such as interest rates, equity prices and foreign currency exchange rates.

As of December 31, 2003, our fair value investment in fixed maturity securities was ‘$1 791

miliion. These securities are subject primarily to interest rate risk and credit nsk We have not and
currently do not intend to enter into derivative transactions. :

- Interest Rate Risk

Our fixed maturities portfolio is exposed to interest rate risk. Fluctuations in interest rates have a
direct impact on the market valuation of these securities. As interest rates rise, market values of fi xed
income portfolios fall and vice versa. We believe we are in a position to keep our fixed income
investments until maturity as we do not invest in fixed maturity securities for trading purposes.

- 2003 - 2002 -

" Portfollo  Changein  Modified . Portiolio ' Modified

. L _ Value Value Duration  Value Daration
“Interest Rates ' $ Millions____$ Millions Years $ Milions _ Years

. 200 basis point rise o $ 1,664 $ (127) 373 $ 1,227 VTR
100 basis point rise $1,727 $ (64) 3.63 $ 1,281 4.00
Cument rate * $ 1,791 $§ - 3.54 $ 1,329 372
100 basis point decline $1,854 $ 63 3.45 $ 1,379 3:67
200 basis point decilne $1,919 $ 128 3.52 $ 1,430 3.91

*Current rates are as of December 31, 2003 and 2002

At December 31, 2003, the fair value of our investment in preferred stocks was $26.3 miI'Iion,
including net unrealized gains of $1.4 million. Preferred stocks are primarily subject to interest rate risk
because they bear a fixed rate of return. The investments in the above table do not include preferred
stocks

Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous
assumptions, including the maintenance of the existing level and composition of fixed income security
assets, and should not be relied on as indicative of future results.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the computation of the
fair value of fixed rate instruments. Actual values may differ from those projections presented should
market conditions vary from assumptions used in the calculation of the fair value of individual securities,
including non-parallel shifts in the term structure of interest rates and changing individual issuer credit
spreads. .

ProAssurance's cash and shoriterm investment portfolic at December 31, 2003 was on a cost

basis which approximates its fair value. This portfolio lacks significant interest rate sensitivity due to its
short duration.
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Credit Risk

We have exposure to credit risk primarily as a holder of fixed income securities. We control this
exposure by emphasizing investment grade credit quality in the fixed income securities we purchase.

As of December 31, 2003 99.8% of our fixed income portfolio consisted of securities rated
investment grade. We belleve that this concentration in investment grade securities reduces our exposure
fo" credit risk - ‘on these fixed income investments to an acceptable level. However, in the current
envifonment even investment grade securities can rapidly deteriorate and result in significant Iosses

Eg ity Price Rlsk .

At December 31 2003 the fair va!ue of our mvestment m common stocks was. $21 7 m:thon,
which inciuded net unrealized gains of $2.9 million and net hoiding gains of approximately $300,000.
-These securities are subject {o equity price risk, which is defined as the potentlal for loss in market value
due to a decline in equity prices. A hypothetical 10% increase in the market prices as.of December 31,
2003 would increase the fair vaiue of these securities to $23.9 million; a hypothetical 10% decrease in the
price of each of these marketable securities would reduce the fair value to $19.5 miffion. The selected
hypothetlcal change does not reﬂect what could be: consuiered the best or worst scenanos

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The Consolidated Financial Statements and. Fmanmal Statement Schedules of ProAssurance.
Corporation and subsidiaries listed in Item 15(a) have been included herein beginning on page 63. The
Supplementary Financial Information required by ltem 302 of Regulation S-K is included i in Note 18 of the
Notes to' Gonsohdated Fmanc:al Statements of ProAssurance and its SUDSIdlaI‘EES

ITEM 9 'CHANGES IN AND DISAGR‘EEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

Not Applicable. .
ITEM A/ CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

“Under the Supervision and with the participation of management, incliding the Chief Exécuitive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and
operation of our disclosure controls and procedures within ninety (90) days of the filing of this Annual
‘Report on Form 10-K. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that these controls and procedures are effective. There were no significant changes in
the internal controls or in other factors that could’ s1gmt‘ cantly affect these controis subsequent to the date
of the:r evatuatlon .

Disclosure controls and procedures are the Company’s controls and other procedures that are
designed to ensure that information, required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or
- submits under the Exchange Act, is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.
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PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information required by this Etem regarding executive officers is included in Part | of the Form ‘-
10K (Pages 19, 20 and 21) in accordance with Instruction 3 of the Instructions to Paragraph, (b) of Item
401 of Regulation S K.

The information required by this Item regarding directors is incorporated by reference pursuant to:"
General Instruction G (3) of Form 10K from ProAssurance’s definitive proxy statement for the 2004

Annual Meeting of its Stockholders to be filed with the Secunt(es and Exchange Comrnlsslon pursuant to
Regulatlon 14A on or before Apri 29, 2004 L

ITEM 11. EXECUT.IVE COMPENSATION

‘The lnformatlon required by this Item is mcorporated by reference pursuant to General Instructlon‘
G (3) of Form 10K from ProAssurance’s definitive proxy statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of its

Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commrssron pursuant to Regulation 14A,0n or
before April 28, 2004, ‘

ITEM 12." SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.

“The mformatlon reqmred by this ttem is mcorporated by- reference pursuant to. Generat Instructlon
G (3) of Form 10K from ProAssurance’s definitive proxy statément for. the 2004 Annual Meetmg of its
‘Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and. Exchange Commlsswn pursuant fo Regulation 14A.on or
before April 29, 2004. S

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference pursuant to General. Instrur.:tlon
G (3) of Form 10K from ProAssurance’s definitive proxy statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of its
Stockholders to be filed with the Secuntles and Exchange Comm:ss:on pursuant to Regulatlon 14A on or
before Aprrl 29 2004 ' . o . ‘

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
. The mformatron requlred by this ltem is mcorporated by reference pursuant to General Instruction'.
G (3) of Form 10K fromi ProAssurance’s definitive proxy statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of its

Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A on or -
before April 29, 2004. _
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMtENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.

(a)

(v)

{c)

Financial Statements. The following consolidated financial statements of ProAssurance

Corporation and-subsidiaries afe mcluded herem in accordance with: ttem 8 of Part Il of this
report. . ,

Report of Endependent Auditors
-Consolidated Balante Sheets < December 31, 2003 and 2002

_Consolldated Statements of Changes in Capital — years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001 - C

= Consohdated Statements of. Inccme years ended December 31 2003 2002 and 2001

[N

,Consotidated Statements of Cash Flows — years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 .
Notes to Conso!rdated Fmanclal Statements

Financiai Statement Schedules. - The followmg consolldated financial statement schedu!es of'
ProAssurance Corporatlon and subsidiaries are included herein in accordance with item 14(d}):

Bl

Schedulel —Summary of Investments Other than Investments in Related Parties i

Schedule Il — Condensed Fmanmal Information of ProAssurance Corporatlon (Regrstrant
' Only)

- “Schedule lll — Supplementary Insurance Information
~ "Schedule IV - Reinsurance
. '-“S'ct;edd!e VI — Supplementary Property and"CasuaIty Insurance Infcrmat'i'o’n "

AII 6ther schedules to the consolidated financial statements required by Article 7 of Regulation.
8-X are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable and therefore have been

_omrtted

Regorts on Form 8-K.

ProAssurance filed a Current Report on Form 8-K .on November 12, 2003 that furnished

information publicly released on that same day announcing its financial results for its quarter
ended September 30, 2003,

ProAssurance filed 2 Current Report on Form 8-K on December 19, 2003 that furnished the
information publicly released on that same day regarding its decision to terminate an inter-
company reinsurance agreement between two of the Company's subsidiaries, The Medical
Assurance, Inc., and Medical Assurance of West Virginia. The release also reports on Standard
& Poor's declslon to downgrade the rating of Medical Assurance of West Vlrgmla

The exhlbzts requu‘ed {o be filed by ltem 15(c) are Ilsted hereln in the Exhibit Index
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reqmrements of Section 13 of 15(d) of the Securmes Exchange Act -of 1934, the
‘Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behaif by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized, on this the 10" day of March 2004.
PROASSURANCE CORPORATION

.- By: fsl . A Derrill-Crowe; M.D. .
_A. Derrill Crowe, M.D.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securatles Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Reglstrant and in the capacmes and an the dates indicated.

Name Title : ' Date '
fs/A. Derrill Crowe, M.D. Chlef'Exédu'ilve. Officer ' 0 'March."'io. 2004
A, Derrill Crowe, M.D. _ (principal executive ofﬁcer) e

- - . _and Dlrector ] .
sHoward H. Friedman _ ChiefFinancial Officer . . March 10, 2004
Howard H. Friedman ' : " (ptincipal financial officer) ’ LT
{siVictor T. Adamo. Esq. Director o * March 10, 2004

Victor T. Adamo, Esq.

/s/Paul R. Bufrus___ : Director : L * 'March 10, 2004
Paul R. Butrus

{s/Lucian F. Bloodworth Director March 10, 2004
Lucian F. Bloodworth R y B

Is/Robert E. Flowers, M.D. : Director ... March 10, 2004
Robert E. Flowers, M.D. - } : B

Isfdohn . McMghon. Jr.. Esq. Director March 10, 2004
John J. McMahon, Jr., Esq. :

fsfJohn P. Noith, Jr.. - Difector . I Y ‘March 10, 2004
John P. North, Jr. . : Ceo .

{stAnn.F. Putallaz, Ph.D. Director March‘ 10, 2004
Ann F. Putallaz, Ph.D. . ‘ SRR

fs/William H. Woodhams ' Director - S .+ March 10, 2004
William H. Woodhams g L : S

Is/Wilfred W, Yeargan, Jr. ~ Director | | March 10, 2004
Wiltfred W. Yeargan, Jr. : S ‘ : L
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Report of Independent Auditors - . -

The Board of Directors
ProAssurance Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of ProAssurance Corporation
and subsidiaries (ProAssurance) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated
statements of changes in capital, income and cash flow for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at
ltem 14(a). These financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of ProAssurance's

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedules
-based onh our audits. -

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as -
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, -the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, -in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of ProAssurance Corporation ‘and subsidiaries at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flow for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002 ProAssurance changed
its method of accounting for goodwill and intangible assets.

o : Ernst & Young LLP
February 20, 2004
Birmingham, Alabama
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

Assets -

Investments: - R
. Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value
Equity seclrities available for sale, at fair value
Equity securities, trading portfolio, at fair value
Real estate, net
Short-term invesiments
“Other - -
. Business owned life insurance

' Total i_n\iestfngnts

~ Cash and cash equivalents
... Premiums.receivable
.. - Receivahle from reinsurers on unpaid losses
.. .. &nd loss adjustment expenses
_ Prepaid reinsurance premiums
Deferred taxes a
- Other assets

See accompanying nofes.
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December 31

December 31
2003 2002
$ 1,790,778 $1,328,897
42,136 60,552
5,863 -
17,262 17,549
109,680 252,854
38,247 19.645
- 51,708 -
2,065,672 1,670,497
47,132 143,306
132,255 111,028
444,811 462,012
17,651 21,204
73,118 73,091
108,713 96,422
$ 2,879,352 $2,586,650



ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share data)

December 31 December 31

2003 2002
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Policy liabilities and accruals:
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $1,814,584 $1,622,468
Unearned premiums ' 290,134 248,371
Reinsurance premiums payable 68,510 62,549
Total policy liabilities 2,173,228 1,933,388
Other liabilities 55,030 45,198
Long-term debt 104,789 72,500
Total liabilities 7 2,333,047 2,055,086
Minority interest ' - 26,370
Commitments and contingencies . - -
Stockholders' Equity:
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share
100,000,000 shares authorized;
29,226,774 and 28,998,917 shares , o
issued, in 2003 and 2002, respectively 292 290 -
Additional paid-in capital 312,030 308,501
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of o
deferred tax expense of $18,537 and $19,612, respectively 34,422 35,545
Retained earnings 199,617 160,914
546,361 505,250
Less treasury stock, at cost, 121,765 shares (56) {56)
Total stockholders' equity 546,305 505,194
' $2,879,352 $2,5886,650

Seg accompanying noles.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Revenues:
Gross premiums written $ 740,110 $ 636,156 $ 388,983
Net premiums written $ 668,909 § 537,123 $ 310,291
Premiums earned $ 688,347 $ 576,414 $ 381,510 -
Premiums ceded {74,833) {98,006) (68,165)
Net premiums eamed - 623,514 477,408 313,345
Net investment income - 73,619 76,918 . 59,782
Net realized investment gains (losses) . 5,992 {5,306) 5,441
Other income 6,515 . 6,747 _ 3,987 -
Total revenues 709,640 . 555,767 3-82-,555
Expenses: . T
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 576,043 . 569,099 344,202
Reinsurance recoveries (24,667) (121,070} (45,644)
Net fosses and loss adjustment expenses 551,376 448,029 298,558
Underwriting, acqguisition and insurance expenses 104,216 91,253 70,437
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . 308 - -
Interest expense 3,409 2,875 ——2;591
Total expenses ' 650,306 .. 542157 _ 371,586
Income before income taxes, minority interest and ] L
cumulative effect of accounting change 50,334 13,610 - 10,969
Provision for income taxes: = . : . g '. .
Cutrent expense {benefit) 11,357 (275) -{(4,567)
Deferred expense (benefif) - 93 87 - 1,720 -
11,450 {188) oo (2,847)
} : . .
Income before minority interest and cumulative ‘ L Ce -
effect of accounting change : 38,884 13,798 . 13,816
Minority inferest | _ (181) _(3,285) (1,366)
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change 38,703 © 10,513 12,450
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax - 1,694 =
Net income ' $ 38,703 $ 12,207 $ 12,450
Earnings per shate (basic):
Income hefore cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.34 $ 0.40 $ 0.51
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax — 0.07 —
Net incomne $ 134 $ 0.47 $ 051
Earnings per share (diluted):
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.33 $ 0.39 3 0.51
Cumutative effect of accounting change, net of tax = 0.07 . -
Net income $ 1.33 $ 0.46 $ 0.51
Weighted average number of common share outstanding
Basic 28,956 26,231 24,263
Diluted 29,144 26,254 24,267

See accompanying notes. 69



ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
(in thousands)

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
Operatlng Activities
Net income $ 3873 $ 12207 $ 12450
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation 3,804 4,337 3,243
Amortization 19,708 10,707 8,603
Incréase in cash surrender value of business owned life insurance {1,706) - -
Net realized capital (gains) losses (5,992) 5,306 (5,441)
Defermred income taxes a3 87 1,720
Policy acquisition costs deferred net of related ameortization (874) (7,241) 545
Other . - (577) 812) (655)
Changes in assets and liabilitias, net of the effects from the
consolidation with Professionals Group:
“Trading portfolio securitiss, excluding net holding gains (5,540) - -
Premiums receivable {21,227) (32,963) 18,726
Receivable from reinsurers 17,201 (67,956) (8,633)
Prepaid reinstirance premiums 3,643 (1,029) (9,496)
-Other assets {4,777) 8,275 4,109
‘Reserve for losses and loss adjustment §Xpenses 192,116 . 180,127 21,148
- Unearned premiums 41,763 . .59,742 7,471
Reinsurance premiums payable 5961 - 13,845 12,236
" Other liabilities 321 9,044 (6,131)
Minority interest in net income 181 3,285 1,366
Net cash provided by operating activities 282,801 176,961 61,261
Investing Activities
Purchases of; '
Fixed maturities available for sale (1,082,573} {897,928) (656,101)
Equity securities available for sale (3,019) - (10,932) (5,787)
Cther investments {18,110) (15,000) - -
Business owned life insurance {50,000) - -
Procgeds from sale or maturities of:
Fixed maturities available for sale 612,480 900,641 681,219
Equity securities available for sale 26,296 20,235 25,286
Neat decrease (increase) in short-term investments 143,174 (116,841) (15,801)
Cash used in consolidation, net of cash acqmred of $72,245 - - {124,059)
Other-. 6,905 2,785 - (3,666
Net ca_sh (used by) investing activities (379,657) (122,610) (98,819}
Financing Activities
Proceeds from stock issuance S 46,499 -
Proceeds from long-term debt 104,641 - 110,000
Repayment of debt (72,500) (10,000) (27.500)
Purchases of treasury stock - - {1.337)
Purchase of minority interest (33,304) {707) -
Other 1,845 - 1,108
Net cash provided by financing activities 682 35,792 82,271
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (96,174) 90,143 44613
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 143,306 53,163 8,550
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 47,132 $ 143,306 g 53163
Supplementat Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Net cash paid (received) during the year for income taxes $ 14,312 ] (8,884 $ 706
Net cash paid during the year for interest $ 3,136 § 2714 $ 2,442

See accompanying notes.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

1. Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

'I_“he accompanying consolidated financial staternents include the accounts of ProAssurance
Corporation (a Delaware corporation) and its subsidiaries (“ProAssurance”). All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions between consolidated companies have been eliminated.

Basis of Presentation .

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. : -

Certain reclassifications have been made to conform the 2002 financial statements to ihe_ 2003
presentation. These changes had no effect on previously reported results of operations or shareholders’
equity.

The significant accounting policies. followed by ProAssurance that materially - affect. financial
reporting are summarized in these notes to the consolidated financial statements. . '

Segrﬁent Information

ProAssurance operates in the United States of America (U.8.) in two reportable industry
segments. As discussed in Note 3, the professional liability segment principally provides professional and
general liability insurance for providers of health care services, and to a lesser extent, providers of legal
services. The personal lines segment provides private passenger automobile, homeowner, boat, and
umbrella insurance products primarily for educational employees and their families exclusively in the state
of Michigan. _ ' : :

Investments
Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities Avaifable for Sale

ProAssurance considers all fixed maturity securities as available-for-sale. Equity securities are
considered as either available-for-sale or trading portfolio securities. Available-for-sale securities are
carried at fair value, and unrealized gains and losses on such available-for-sale securities are excluded
from earnings and included, net of related tax effects, in stockholders’ equity as “Accumulated other
‘comprehensive income {loss)" until realized.

Fair values for fixed maturity and equity securities are based on quoted market prices, where
available. For fixed maturity and equity securities not actively traded, fair values are estimated using
values obtained from independent pricing services.

Investment income includes amortization of premium and accretion of discount related to debt
securities acquired at other than par value. Debt securities and mandatorily redeemable preferred stock
with maturities beyond one year when purchased are classified as fixed maturities.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

1. Accounting Policies (continued)
Equity Securities, Trading Portfolio

ProAssurance has designated certain equity security purchases as trading portfolio securities. A
trading portfolio is carried at fair value with the holding gains and losses included in realized investment
gains and losses in the current period. Fair values are based on quoted market prices.

-Real Estate

Real estate properties, inciuding certain leasehold improvements, are classified as investment
real estate. All balances are reported at cost, less allowances for depreciation. Depreciation is computed
over the estimated useful lives of the related property using the straight-line method. Rental income and
expenses are included in net investment income. - ‘ ' o

Short-term Investments _

Short-term investments, which have an original maturity of ‘one year or less, are primarily
composed of investments in U.S. Treasury obligations and commercial paper. All balances are reported
at cost, which approximates fair value. o ' ‘

Other Investments

Other investments are primarily. comprised of equity interests - in non-public investment:
partnerships/limited liability companies. Interests where ProAssurance has virtually no influence over the
operating and financial policies of the entity and for which there is no readily determinable fair value are
accounted for using the cost method. Interests where ProAssurance has a greater than minor inferest in
the entity are accounted for using the equity method.

Business Owned Life Insurance (BOLI)-

ProAssurance owns life insurance contracts on certain key management employees. The life
‘insurance contracts are carried at their current cash surrender value. Changes'in the cash surrender
value are included in income in the current period as investment income. Death proceeds from the
contracts are recorded when the proceeds become payable under the policy terms.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated balance sheets and statements of cash flow, ProAssurance
considers all demand deposits and overnight investments fo be cash equivalents. ‘

Realized Gains and Losses

Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are recognized on the specific identification
basis. ‘
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

1. Accounting Policies (continu'ed)

Impairments

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Eqmty Securities,” ProAssurance evaluates its investment securities on
at least a quarterly basis for declines in market value below cost for the purpose of determining whether
these declines represent other than temporary declines. A decline in the fair vaiue of an available-for-sale
security below cost judged to be other than temporary is recognized as a loss in the then current period
and reduces the cost basis of the security. In subsequent periods, ProAssurance measures any gain or
loss or decline in value against the adjusted cost basis . of. the security. The following factors are
considered in detefmining whether an investment's decline is other than temporary:

* the extent to which the market value of the security is less than its cost basis,
= the length of time for which the market value of the security has been less than its cost basis,

v the fi nanclaiﬁcondlt;on and nearterm nrospects of the' securitys issuer, taking into
consideration the economic prospects of the issuer’s industry and geographtcal reglon to the
extent that information is publicly available, and.

*»  ProAssurance’s ability and intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient {o allow
for any antlclpated recovery in market value

Reinsurance

' ProAssurance enters .into reinsurance agreements whereby other insurance entities agree to
assume a portion of the risk associated with the policies issued by ProAssurance. In return,
ProAssurance agrees to pay a premium to the reinsurer..ProAssurance purchases (cedes) reinsurance to
provude for greater diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to potential losses
arising from large risks, and provide additional capacuty for growth.

Receivable fromi. reinsurers is the estimated amount of future loss payments that will be
recoverable from reinsurers. Reinsurance recoveries. are the portion of losses incurred.during the period
that are estimated to be allocable to reinsurers. Premiums ceded are the estimated premiums that will be
due to reinsurers with respect to premiums earned and losses incurred during the period.

These estimates are based upon management’s estimates of ultimate [osses and the portion of
those losses that are allocable to reinsurers under the terms of the .refated reinsurance agreements.
Given the uncertainty of the ultimate amounts of losses, these estimates may vary significantly from the
eventual outcome. Management regularly reviews these estimates and any adjustments. necessary. are
reflected in period in which the estimate is changed. Due to the size of the receivable from reinsurers,
even a small adjustment to the estimates could have a material effect on ProAssurance’s results of
operations for the period in which the change is made.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve ProAssurance from its obligations to policyholders. A
contingent liability exists with respect to reinsurance ceded to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet
the obligations assumed under the reinsurance agreements. ProAssurance continually monitors its
reinsurers to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies. Any amount found fo
be uncollectible is written off in the period in which the uncollectible amount is idenified.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

1. Accounting Policies (cbntinued)
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired
(i-e., goodwill). In accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, goodwill is not
amortized. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. ProAssurance regularly reviews its goodwill and
other intangibles to determine if any adverse conditions exist that could indicate impairment. Conditions
that could trigger an impairment include, but are not limited to, a significant adverse change in legal
factors or business climate that could affect the value of an asset or an adverse action or assessment by

.a regulator. ProAssurance does not believe that any of its recorded goodwill or intangiblé assets has
suffered impairment. -

Deferred Policy Acauisition Costs

Costs that vary with and are directly related fo the production of new and renewal premiums
(primarily premium taxes, commissions and underwriting salaries) are deferred to the extent they are
recoverabi_e against unearned premiums and are amortized as related premiums are earned.

Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (“Reserve for Losses”)

ProAssurance establishes its reserve for loss and loss adjustment expenses (“reserve for losses”)
based on estimates of the future amounts necessary to pay claims and expenses {“losses™ associated
with the investigation and settlement of claims. The reserve for losses is determined on the basis of
individual claims and payments thereon as well as actuarially determined estimates of future losses
based on past loss experience, available industry data and projections as to future claims frequency,
severity, inflationary trends, judicial trends, legisiative changes and settlement patterns:

ProAssurance believes that the methods it uses fo establish the reserve for losses are
reasonable and appropriate. Independent actuaries review the reserve for losses of each insurance
subsidiary at least semi-annually and prepare reports that include recommendations a5 to the level of
reserves. ProAssurance considers these recommendations and other factors, such as known, anticipated
or estimated changes in frequency and severity of claims, loss retention leveis and premium rates in
establishing its reserves. Estimating casualty insurance reserves, and particularly fiability reserves, is a
-complex process. Claims may be resolved over an extended period of time, often five years or more, and -
may be subject to litigation. Estimating losses for liability claims requires ProAssurance to make and
revise judgments and assessments regarding multiple uncertainties over an extended period of time. As a
result, reserve estimates may vary significantly from the eventual outcome. Reserve estimates and the
assumptions on which these estimates are predicated are regularly reviewed and updated as new
information becomes available. Changes to estimates of previously established reserves are included in
earnings in the period in which the estimate is changed. Due to the size of ProAssurance’s reserve for
losses, even a small percentage adjustment fo the actuarial or other assumptions used to estimate
reserves could have a material effect on eamings in the period in which the change is made. '

Recognition of Revenues

Insurance premiums are recognized as revenues pro rata over the terms of the policies.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to-Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Stock-Based Compensation

ProAssurance accounts for stock options under the recognition and measurement principles of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued fo Employees, and related
interpretations ("APB 25"). The foilowing table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share
as if ProAssurance had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No: 123, Accounting for

Stock-Based Compensation, to outstanding options. See Note 13 for additional information regarding
outstanding options. :

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
In Thousands, except per share data

Net income as reported ‘ . 0§ 38703 § 12207 $ 12,450

" Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
recognized under APB 25 related to the exercise of
options, net of tax : 130 - . -

" Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation
- axpense determined under fair value based method

* for all awards, net of related tax effects ‘ : - (69N — (564) : ~

. Proformanetincome . . $ 38135 § 11,643 . $ 12,450
"~ Eamings per share:

Basic—as reported $ 134 $ 0.47 $ 051

Basic~-pro forma $ 132 § 0.44 $ 051

Diluted-—as reported $ 133 $ 0.46 $ 051

Diluted-—-pro forma $ 131§ 0.44 $ 0.51

Income Taxes

ProAssurance files a consolidated federal income tax return. Deferred income taxes are provided
for temporary differences between financial and income tax reporting relating primarily fo unrealized gains
on securities, discounting of losses for income tax reporting, and the limitation of the unearned premiums
deduction for income tax reporting.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounting Changes

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Financial
Interpretation No. (FIN) 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, An Interpretation of ARB No. 51.
FIN 46 defines variable interest entities (VIEs) as those entities or activities that distribute either profits or
losses to beneficiaries through established contractual, ownership, or other interests. The interpretation
intfroduced a new consolidation model which determines control (and consolidation) based on primary
beneficiary status of a VIE. The primary beneficiary is defined as that interest that receives over half the
expected losses, or over half of the expected returns. ProAssurance has adopted FIN 46.

The adoption of FIN 46 did not have a material impact on ProAssurance's financial statements.
‘ProAssurance holds passive investments in certain limited partnerships/iimited liability companies that are
considered to be a VIE under FIN 46 guidance. ProAssurance does not believe it is the primary
beneficiary relative to these entities and is not required to consolidate the entities under FIN 46. These
investments are included in Other Investments and total $37.1 million at December 31, 2003 and $19.6
million at December 31, 2002,

On May 15, 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, "Accounting for Certain Financial
Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 requires certain financial
instruments that embody obligations of the issuer and have characteristics of both liabilities and equities
to be classified as liabilities. For public companies, SFAS No. 150 is effective for all financial instruments
created or modified after May 31, 2003 and for other instruments at the beginning of the first interim
period beginning after June 15, 2003:. The adoption of SFAS 150 had no effect on ProAssurance's
financial condition or results of operations.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financiat Statements
December 31, 2003

2. Consolidation of Medical Assurance and Professionals Group

ProAssurance Corporation began operations on June 27, 2001 in a transaction referred to
hereafter as the consolidation (“consolidation”). ‘ '

The consofidation of Medical Assurance, Inc. (“Medical Assurance”) into ProAssurance was in the
form of a corporate reorganization and was treated in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. Upon
consummation of the consolidation, each outstanding share of Medicat Assurance common stock, par
value $1.00 per share, was converted into one share of ProAssurance common stock, par value $0.01
per share. Approximately 22.6 milfion ProAssurance shares were issued to Medical Assurance
shareholders. ' ' : :

The consolidation of Professionals Group, Inc. (“Professionals Group”) into ProAssurance was
-treated as a purchase transaction. Each outstanding share of Professionals Group common stock was
converted into the right to receive, at the holder's election, either (a) 0.897 of a share of ProAssurance
common stock plus $13.47 'in cash, or .(b) $27.47 in cash. Aggregate consideration paid to the
Professionals Group shareholders consisted of approximately $196 million in cash and 3.2 million shares
of ProAssurance common stock, valued at approximately $50 million: The fair value of ProAssurance
.shares issued was $15.59 per share based on the average Medical Assurance common stock price for a
few days prior to June 27, 2001. ProAssurance funded the cash requirements of the consolidation with
the proceeds of a $110 million term loan facility and with internal funds generated from dividends paid to
. ProAssurance by Medical Assurance and Professionals Group at the time of closing. The term loan
facility was repaid in full in 2003, see Note 11.

The total cost of the purchase transaction of approximately $252 million has been ailocated to the
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on ‘estimates of their respective fair values. The
‘estimated fair value of identifiable assets acquired totaled $1,165 million and the estimated fair value of
the liabilities assumed totaled $931 million. The estimated excess of the total cost of the acquisition over
the fair value of net assets acquired of approximately $18.4 million was recorded as goodwill. -
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

2. Consolidation of Medical Assurance and Professionals Group {continued)

ProAssurance was required fo incorporate the activity of Professionals Group commencing upon
the effective date of the consolidation. The unaudited pro forma information below presents combined
results of operations as if the consolidation had occurred on January 1, 2001 after giving effect to certain
adjustments, including increased interest expense on debt related to the acquisition and lower investment
income due to cash used to fund a portion of the consolidation, and related tax effects. Professionals
Group's nonrecurring and transaction related expenses were excluded from the pro forma financial
information. The unaudited pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations
of the combined company had the acquisition occurred at the beginning of the periods presented, noris it
necessarily indicative of future results (in thousands, except per share data). :

. ProFomma Resulis
Year Ended
December 31, 2001

Revenues | . _% 533310
Net loss - " $ {4,992
- Net loss per share:

Basic and diluted $ 0.18
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subslidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

3. Segment Information

ProAssurance operates in the U.S. and, prior to the consolidation, operated in only one reportable
industry segment, the professional liability insurance segment, that principally provides professional
liability insurance and reinsurance for providers of health care services, and to a fimited extent providers
of legal services. The principal operating insurance subsidiaries of this segment are: The Medical
Assurance Company, Inc., ProNational Insurance Company and Red Mountain Casualty Insurance

Company, Inc. ProAssurance also writes professional liabflity insurance through Medical Assurance of
West Virginia, inc.

in June 2001, ProAssurance engaged in an additional segment, which is providing personal
property and casualty insurance to individuals (the personal lines segment). MEEMIC Holdings, Inc.
(MEEMIC Holdings} is an insturance holding company that provides perscnal auto, homeowners, boat and
umbrella. coverages primarily to educational employees and their families through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, MEEMIC Insurance Company (*"MEEMIC™). As discussed in-Note 10, ProAssurance increased
its ownership percentage of MEEMIC Holdings from 84% to 100% in January 2003.

The accounting policies of each segment are consistent with those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies in Note 1. Identifiable assets of ProAssurance are primarily cash and
marketable securities. Other than cash and marketable securities owned directly by the parent company,
the identifiable assets of ProAssurance are attributable to the reportable operating segments. Other than
investment income earned directly by the parent company and interest expense attributable to long-term
debt held by the parent company, all revenues and expenses of ProAssurance are attributable to the
operating segments for purposes of SFAS No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information. Revenue is primatily from unaffiliated customers and the effect of transactions
between segments has been eliminated.
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ProAssurance Corporation and ‘Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statéments
Déecember 31, 2003

3. Segment Information (continued)

The table below provides a reconcmat:on of segment information to total consolidated information.
Year ended December 34

2003 2002 2001
In Miflions

Revenues: .

Professional liabifity lines ‘ - $ 5266 $ 3933 $ 3068
Personal lines 182.7 162.4 . 753
Corporate investment income 0.3 0.1 0.5

Total re\,renues ) o ) ] $ 70906 $ 555.8 $ 3826

Income {loss) before cumulative eﬁect

.of accounting change: . o
Professional liabifity lines : . % 175 $ (6.3) $ 68
Personal lines , 23.4 ) 186 7.1

"Corporate "~ - 2 : 1(2 2) {1.8) ] (1.4)

Total ' $ 387 % 105 - $ 125

Net income {loss):

' Professional liability lines’ T $ 175 $ 48 $ 6.8
Personal lines . . - R . 234 18.6 - 71
Corporate - o . (2.2) (1.8) . (1.4}

- Netincome ° L : % 387 § 122 $ 125

December 31
2003 2002
Identifiable assets:
Professional liability lines $2,4131 $2,184.6
Personal lines 431.3 3721
Corporate 35.0 30.0
Total assets $2,879.4 $2,586.7
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ProAssurance Corporatton and SubSIdlanes
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

4. Investments

" The amortized cost and estimated fair valug of available for sale fixed maturities and equity
securities are as follows: .

December 31, 2003

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
‘Cost - Gains {Losses) Value

In Thousands

‘Fixed Maturities ‘ i
. LS. Treasury secuntles ] $ 305564 $ 247 $ (839) $ 307,196 -

State and municipal bonds 377,823 18,063 (211) 395,675
Corporate bonds 597,514 26,919 {2,752) 621,681
‘Asset-backed securities ¢- 460,048 6,215 {1,107) 485,156
OCther 1,069 1 — 1,070
1,742,028 53,659 {4,909) 1,790,778
Equity securities ) 37,923 4,303 (90) 42,136

. $1779951  $ 57982 $  (4,999)  § 1,832,914

December 31, 2002

: Gross Gross Estimated
Amorlized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains (Losses) Value

In Thousands

Fixed Maturities i
U.8. Treasury securitiss $ 131,542 $ 3,786 $ (12) $ 135316

State and municipal bonds ~ ~ 390,899 17,370 (481) 416,788
Corporate bonds ' 386,510 23,986 (1,727) 418,769
Asset-backed secuntles 346,984 10,554 B8 - 357,454
Other : 570 - - 570
. T 1,275,505 55,696 (2,304) 1,328,897

Equity securities = . 58,718 3,594 {1,760 60,552

$ 1,334,223 $ 59,290 $ (4,084 $ 1,389,449

. ProAssurance held certain avallable for sale securities in an unrealized loss position at December
31, 2003, as summarized in the following table. Afler an evaluation of each security, Management
concluded that these securities have not suffered an other than temporary impairment in value. Each
fixed maturity security has paid all scheduled contractual payments. Management believes that each
issuer has the capacity to meet the remaining contractual obligations of the security, including payment at
maturity, and that ProAssurance has the capacity to hold the security until the scheduled maturity date.
Management also believes each of the equity securities, given the characteristics of the underlying
company, industry, and price volatility of the security, has a reasonable expectation of being valued at or
above book value in the near term.
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4. Investments (continued)

Total Less than 12 months More than 12 months
Failr Unrealized Fair ‘Unrealized Fair Unreatized
Value Loss Value Loss Value . Loss

in Thousands

Fixed Maturities, available for sale

U.S. Treasury securities $ 80,945 $ (839) $80,945 $ (839) $ - $§ -
State and municipal bonds 19,643 (211) 18,672 (211) 971 —
Corporate bonds 123,252 (2,752) 121,478 (2,676) 1,774 (76)
Asset-backed securities 137,900 {1,107} 136,010 (1,100} 1,890 LEd)
361,740 {4,900y 357,106 (4,326) 4635 - (83)
Equity securities ‘available for sale 1,754 (90) = - . 1,754 " {90)
Avaitable for sale securities held
with unrealized losses $363,494 $ (4,999) $357,106 $(4,826) $ 6,389 $ (173)

The amottized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturities at December 31, 2003, by
contractual maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
ProAssurance uses the call date as the contractual maturity for prerefunded state and municipal bonds
‘which are 100% backed by U.S. Treasury obligations.

Estimated
Amortized . Fair
Cost Value
In Thousands
Due in one year or less $ 84,930 $ 85686
Due after one year through five years : 606,771 822,276
Due after five years through ten vears 449,200 470,773
Due after ten years 141,079 146,887

Asset-backed securities 460,048 465,156
o $ 1,742,028 $ 1,790,778

Excluding investments in bonds and notes of the U.S. Government, a U.S. Government agency,
or prerefunded state and municipal bonds which are 100% backed by U.S. Treasury obligations, no
investment in any person or its affiliates exceeded 10% of stockholders' equity at December 31, 2003.
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4. Investments (continued)

At December 31, 2003 ProAssurance had available-for-sale securities with a carrying value of
$11.4 million on deposit with various state insurance departments to meet regulatory requirements.

Business Owned Life Insurance

During 2003-ProAssurance purchased BOL! policies on certain executive employees at a cost of
-approximately $50 million. The primary purpose of the program is to offset future employee benefit
expenses through earnings on ‘the cash vélue of the policies. ProAssurance is the owner and principal
beneficiary of these policies; however $50,000 of each death benefit is payable to beneficiaries
designated by the insured employee. ' -

Real Estate
Real estate consists of land held for investment and income producing properties. Accumulated

depreciation was. approximately’ $8.7. million and $7.9 milion at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. e T L
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4. Investments {continued)
- Net Investment Income / Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses})
investment income by investment category is as follows:

Year ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
In Thousahds

' Fixed maturities ' : '$ 68,381 - § 73008 $ 52419

| Equities L 2,510 3,435 3,062
‘Rea} estate : ’ 1420 1,428 1,496
Short-term investments ] 2,637 2,922 4,786
Other invested assets 1,864 - -
Business owned life insurance 1,706 - -
Other — 174 1,237

: . - 78,018 - - 80,967 - 63,000
Investment expenses . (1,399) . {4,049) (3,218)
Net investment income ’ ’ $ 73619 $ 76,918 § 59,782

Gross investment gains and losses are primarily from sales of investment securifies. Net realized
Jinvestment gains (losses) are as follows:

Year ended December 31 :
2003 . 2002 2001
In Thousands _
Gross gains ' $ 9388 $ 26040 $ 8619
Gross losses . (3,397) {10,042) (2,769}
Other than temporary impairments {322) (21,304) (409).
Trading portfolic gains 323 - -
Net realized investment gains (losses) $ 59902 $ (5,308) $ 5441

Realized gains and losses from available-for-sale securities were reclassified, net of related
taxes, from “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” included in stockholders’ equity to “Net
realized investment gains (losses)” in the Consolidated Statements of Income, as shown below:

Year ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
in Thousands
Net realized investment gains (losses) $ 5,992 $ (5,306) $ 5,441
Related tax expense (benefit) 2,087 {1,857) 1,804
Reclassifled gains (losses) $ 3,895 $ (3,449) $ 3,537

Proceeds from sales (excluding maturities and paydowns) of available-for-sale securities were
$358.5 million, $646.4 milfion and $565.3 million during 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.
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5. Reinsurance

) ]P_{oAssurance has various quota share, excess of loss assumption, .and cession reinsurance
agreements. Historically, professional lines per claim retention ievels have varied between the first
$200,000 and the first $2 million depending on the coverage year and the state in which business was
written. ProAssurance insures some large professional liability risks that are above the limits of its basic
reinsurance treaties. These risks are reinsured on a facultative basis, whereby the reinsurer agrees to
insure a particular risk up to a designated limit. Personal lines retention levels historically have been
$250,000 per loss. Individual property risks are covered up to $1 million per risk and casualty risks are
covered on an excess of loss basis up to $3 milfion per occurrence.

The effect of reinsurance on premiums written and earned is as follows:

2003 Premiums 2002 Premiums ~ © " "2001 Premiums

Written Earned Written Eamed _  Written Eamed

: ] In Thousands )
Direct © % 73602 § 695839 634,142 § 573423 § 368,804 $ 358,183
Assumed 2,508 2,508 2,014 2,991 20,179 23,327
Ceded __AM201) . (74,833) (99,033) (99,006) (78,692) (68,165)
- Net Premiums $ 668,909 ¢ 623,514 $ 537,123 § 477408 - $ 310201 . $ 313345

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve ProAssurance from. its obligations to policyholders. A
contingent liability exists with respect to reinsurance ceded to the extent that any reinsurer does not meet
the obligations assumed under the reinsurance agreements. ProAssurance continually monitors its
reinsurers to minimize its eéxposure to significant losses from reinsurerinsolvencies. -

At December 31, 2003, all reins'u,rancé'recoverabtes are consid'el_'éd collectible. As required by
the various state insurance laws, reinsurance recoverables totaling approximately $15.8 million are

collateralized by lettefs of credit or funds withheld. =

At Decembér 31, 2003 amounts due from individual reinsurers that exceed 5% of stockholders’
equity are as follows:

Amount Due
Reinsurer From Reinsurer
in Millions
Michigan Catastrophic Claims Association $ 865
Hannover Rueckversicherung AG $ 538
General Reinsurance Corp $ 43.7
PMA. Capital insurance Company $ 289
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6. Income Taxes

Deferted income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes.
Significant components of ProAssurance's deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

December 31
2003 .. 2002
in Thousands

Deferred tax assels

Unpaid loss discount 64,843 60,737
Unearned premium adjustrment 20,186 17,266
Net operating losses - _ 3,526
Alternative Minimurn Tax Credits 8,440 7,894
Tax basis in mtangtbles 8,588 10,337
Other : 3,697 9,055
Total deferred tax assets 106,754 108,815

Deferred tax liabilities. o L o
Deferred acquisition costs $ 8,261 L] 7.727

B . Unrealized gains on investments, net ) 18,637 18612 - . S
- . Other -~ 7 6,838 . . 8,385- - ‘ Lo
Total déférfed-ta_x liabllities 33,636 ) 35,7_24“-
Net deferredtaxassets . ‘ $ 73118 $ ?3,091

In the opmlon of managemient, it is more I:ke!y than not that ProAssurance will reahza the beneﬂt
of the deferred tax assets, and therefore, no valuation allowance has been establrshed ‘
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6. Income Taxes (continued)

A recongciliation of “expected” income tax expense (35% of income before income faxes) to actual
income tax expense in the accompanying financial statements follows: . - - : o

Year ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
In Thousands

Computed “expected” tax expense $ 17617 $ 4784 $ 3839

Tax-exempt income . (5,307) (5,757) (6,544)
Other o .____.(860) 805 (142)
Actual tax (credit) " $ 11450 & (188) (2.847)

ProAssurance, after adjustment for its tax Iiabiiiiy for the year ended December 31, 2003, has
available approximately $8.4 millicn in Alternative Minimum Tax (AMT) credit carryforwards that can be
applied against any future regular tax payable. The AMT credit carryforwards have no expiration date.

7. Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

_ Underwriting and insurance costs directly related to the production of new and renewal premiums
are considered as acquisition costs and are capitalized and amortized to expense over the period in
which the related premiums are earned. As is common practice within the industry, reinsurance ceding
" commissions due ProAssurance are considered as a reduction of acquisition costs, and therefore reduce
the total amount capitalized. L '

Amortization of deferred acquisition costs amounted to approximately $54.9 million, $41.8 million,
and $37.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Unamortized
deferred acquisition costs are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets and amounted
to approximately $23.6 million and $22.7 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

8. Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustmént Expensés

ProAssurance establishes its reserve for losses based on estimates of the future amounts
necessary to pay claims and expenses associated with the investigation and settlement of claims. These
estimates consist of case reserves and bulk reserves. Case reserves are estimates of future losses for
reported claims and are established by ProAssurance’s claims department. Bulk reserves, which inciude
‘a provision for losses that have occurred but have not been reported to ProAssurance as well as
anticipated changes {o losses on reported claims, are the difference between (i) the sum of case reserves
and paid losses and (i) an actuarially determined estimate of the total losses necessary for the ultimate
settlement of all reported and incurred but not reported claims, including amounts already paid.
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8. Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (continued)

The reserve for losses is established based on estimates of individual claims and actuarially
-determined estimates of future losses based on ProAssurance’s past loss experience, available industry
data and projections as to future claims frequency, severity, inflationary trends and setilement patterns.
Estimating reserves, and particularly liability reserves, is a complex process. Claims may be resolved
over an extended period of time, often five years or more, and may he subject to litigation. Estimating
losses for liability claims requires ProAssurance to make and revise judgments and assessments
regarding muitiple uncertainties over an extended period of time. As a resulf, reserve estimates may vary
significantly from the eventual outcome, The assumptions used in establishing ProAssurance’s reserves
are regularly reviewed and updated by management as new data becomes available. Changes to
estimates of previously established reserves are included in earnings in the period in which the estimate
is changed.

ProAssurance believes that the methods it uses to establish reserves are reasonable and
appropriate. Each year, ProAssurance obtains an independent actuarial review of the reserve for losses
of each insurance subsidiary. The independent actuaries prepare reports that include recommendations
as to the level of reserves. ProAssurance considers these recommendations as well as other factors,
such as known, anticipated or estimated changes in frequency and severity of claims and loss retention
levels and premium rates, in establishing the amount of its reserve for losses. The statutory filings of each
insurance company with the insurance regulators must be accompanied by an actuary’s certification as to
their respective reserves in accordance W|th the requrrements of the National Association of Insurance
Commlssmners (NAIC)

~ Activity in the reserve for losses and Ioss adjustment expenses is summarlzed as fo[fows
Year ended December 31

2003 - 2002 2001
In Thousénds '

Balance, beginning of year ' .. § 1622468 $ 1442341 § 659,659 -

Less reinsurance recoverables 462,012 374,056 166,202
Net balance, beginning of year ' 1,160,456 1,068,285 493,457
Net reserves acquired from Professionals Group . - : - ' 557,284
"Net losses: . ‘ RS - .
Current year - : ’ . : 562,256 439,600 303,387
Unfavorable (favorable) devetopment of reserves

established in prior years (10,880) 8,428 ' 13,818

Decrease in death, disabilify and retirement reserve — — (18,647)
Total ' ’ 551,376 448,023 298,558

Paid related to:

Current year (94,824) {84,376) (137,121)
Prior year (247,235} {271,482) (143,893)
Total paid (342,059) {355,858) (281,014}
Net balance, end of year 1,369,773 1,160,456 1,068,285
Plus reinsurance recoverables 444,811 462,012 374,056
 Balance, end of year - $ 1,814,584 % 1,622,468 $ 1442341
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8. Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses (continued)

ProAssurance recognized changes to (development of) reserves established in prior years in
each of the three years presented. In 2003, ProAssurance recognized $10.9 million of favorable
development, substantially all of which related to the personal lines segment. In 2002, ProAssurance.
recognized unfavorable development of $18.1 related to its professional liability segment which was
partially offset by favorable development of approximately $9.7 million related to ProAssurance's personal
lines segment. In 2001, ProAssurance recognized unfavorable development of $13.8 million related to its
professional liability segment “These adjustments to the reserve for losses dre included in earnings in the
period in wh1ch the estlmates are changed

As discussed above, estimating reserves requires many assumptions. As time passes and
ultimate losses for prior years are either known or become subject to a more definite estimation,
ProAssurance increases or decreases the reserve estimates established in prior periods. The
development recogrized in 2003, 2002 and 2001 increased (decreased) the net loss reserve at end or
the prior year by 0.9%, (0.9)%, and 2.8% , respectively, and reflect adjustments to prior estimates. The
-favorable personal lines development primarily resulted from loss costs for Fability coverages that were
lower than previously estimated. The unfavorable professiona! lines development recognized in 2002 and
2001 was recognized in response to actuarial reviews that indicated loss costs for prior years would be
higher than the prior estimates of those loss costs.
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9. Commitments and Contingencies

_ ProAssurance is involved in various 'legal actions arising. ptimarily from claims related to
insurance policies and claims handling, includinig but not limited to claims asserted by policyholders, The
legal actions arising from these claims have been considered by ProAssurance in estabiishing its
-reserves. While the outcome of all legal actions is not . presently determinable, ProAssurance's
management is of the opinion, based on consultation with legal counsel, that the resolution of these
actions will not have a material adverse effect on ProAssurance's financial position. However, fo the

‘extent that the cost of resolving these actions éxceeds the corresponding resérves, the legal actions
could have a material effect on ProAssurance's results of operations for the period in which any such
action is resolved, ‘ ‘ -

ProAssurance is involved in a number of operating leases primarily for office space, office
equipment, and communication lines. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments for
operating leases that had initial or remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of
December 31, 2003. ' . -

Operating Leases
in Thousands

2004 $ 3,655
2005 3,171
2006 . 1,727
2007 504
2008 . 376
Thereafter . 54
Total minimum lease payments $ 9,487

ProAssurance had rent expense of $4.3 million in the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
and $2.8-million in the year ended December 31, 2001.

20



.ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

10. Minority interest

On_January 29, 2003 ProAssurance’s indirect subsidiary, MEEMIC Holdings, Inc. (MEEMIC
Holdings) repurchased. aII of the outstanding shares of its common stock that were not owned by
ProAssurance’s subsidiary, ProNational Insurance Company MEEMIC Holdings used its internaf funds in
the approximate amount of $34.1 million to acquire 1,062,298 shares of its common stock, to pay for
outstanding options representing 120,000 shares, and to pay the expenses of the transaction. The funds
were derived from MEEMIC Holdings' cash and investment resources. As a result of the transaction
MEEMIC Holdings is fiow a wholly-owned indirect subSIdlary of ProAssurance. ProAssurance recognized
goodwill of $7.6 million related to the transaction. Income for the year ended December 31, 2003 was
reduced by the income attributable (16%) to the MEEMIC HoIdmgs minority interest for the period from

January 1, 2003 to January 29, 2003. MEEMIC Holdings is the 100% owner of MEEMIC Insurance
Company

1. Long-term Debt

'In'-early‘ July 2003; ProAssurance issued $107.6 million of 3.9% Convertible Debentures
(‘Debentures”) in a Private Offering transaction, net of an initial purchaser’s discourit of $3.0 million.
‘ProAssurance ‘used the net proceeds to pay off its existing ferm loan having an outstanding principal
balance of $67.5 million. The term loan was part of a credit facility provided under the terms of a credit
agreement that also provided for a line of credit in the amount of $40 milion. ProAssurance did not

borrow any funds under the revolving line of credit and did not renew the llne when it explred in May
2003.

“Summarized information regarding the structure and terms of the Debentures fo[lews:

issue Price. The Debentures were issued at 87.25% of their principal amount and each
“Debenture has a pnnc:pal amount at maturity of $1,000.

Maturity Date. June 30, 2023.

Ranking. The Debentures are unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of payment

“with” all " other existing and future ‘unsecured and unsubordinated obligatioris. The
"Debentures are not guaranteed by any of ProAssurance's subsidiaries and; accordingly,
the Debentures are effectively subordinatéd to the indebtedness ‘and other fiabilities of
ProAssurance S subS|d|anes including insurance pollcy-re!ated liabilities.

Interest. lnterest is payable on June 30 and December 30 of each year, beginning
“Decémber 30, 2003, at an annual rate of 3.90%. In addition, ProAssurance may be
requnred to pay contmgent interest, as set forth below under Contingent Interest

Contmgent Interest. Contingent interest is due to the holders of the Debentures during
‘any’ sm—month penod from June 30 to December 29 and from December 30 to June 29
"commencmg with the ‘six-month penod beginning June 30, 2008, if the average market
" price of a Debenture for the five trading days -ending on the second “trading day

immediately preceding the relevant six-month period equals 120% or more of the

principal amount of the Debentures. The amount of contingent interest payable in respect
“of any six-month period will equal 0.1875% of the average market price of a Debenture
“for the five trading day period referred to above.
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11. Long-term Debt (continued)

- Conversion Rights. At December 31, 2003 the debentures are not eligible for conversion;

-however, holders may-convert the Debentures at any time prior to stated maturrty from
and after the date of-the followrng events

. 7"1f the sale price of ProAssurances common stock for at least 20 tradrng

days in the 30 tradlng-day period ending on the: last trading day of the o '

lmmedrately preceding fiscal quarter exceeds 120% of the conversion
price on that 30th trading day, ~ ©
*  if ProAssurance calls the Debentures for redemptron or
*  upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions.

For each $1, 000 prrnclpal amount of Debentures surrendered for conversion, holders
initially will receive 23.9037 shares of .common stock. This represents an initial
conversion price of approximately $41.83 per share of common stock. The conversion
_rate may be adjusted for certain reasons, but will not be adjusted for accrued interest or

contmgent interest, if any. Upon conversron holders. will- generally not receive any cash .

payment representlng accrued interest or contingent interest, if any. Instéad, accrued
.. interest and contingent interest will be deemed paid by the common stock received by the" _

holders on conversion. Debentures. called . for redemption- may . be surrendered for

conversion until the close of business two business days prior to the redemphon date.

Upon conversion, ProAssurance has the right to deliver, in lieu of common stock, cash or
a combination of cash and shares of common stock. :

'Paymant at Matunty Each holder of $1 000 Debentures w:li be entltled to recelve $1 000
at maturity, plus accrued interest, including contmgent interest, if any

Sinking Fund. None.

Optional ‘Redemption. ProAssurance may not redeem the Debentures prior to July 7
2008. ProAssurance may redeem some or, all of the Debentures for cash con or after. July
7, 2008, upon at least 30 days but not more than 60 days notrce by mail to. holders at par.

Repurchase Right of Holders. Each holder of the Debentures may require ProAssurance
-to repurchase all or a portion of the holder's Debentures.on June. 30, 2008, June 30,
. 2013 and June 30, 2018 at a purchase price equal to the pnnCIpaI armount of the

Debentures plus accrued and unpaid interest, including contingent mterest if any, to the

date of repurchase. ProAssurance may choose to pay the purchase price in cash, shares

of common stock, .or a combination of cash and shares of common stock. If

ProAssurance elects to-pay all or a portron of the repurchase prrce in gommon stock the

* shares of common-stock will be valued at 97.5% of the average saIe pricé for the 20
trading days immediately preceding and mcludlng the third day prior to the repurchase
date. ‘

Change of Control. Upon a change of control of ProAssurance, holders may Tequire
ProAssurance, subject to conditions, to repurchase all or a portion of the Debentures.
Depending upon the date at which the change of control occurs, ProAssurance will pay a
purchase price equal to a varying percentage of the applicable principal amount of such
Debentures plus accrued and unpaid interest, inciuding contingent interest and additional
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11. Long-term Debt (continued)

amounts, if any. The percentage ranges from 110% for dates before June 29, 2004 to

. 100% for dates after June 30, 2008. ProAssurance may choose to’ pay the repurchase

- price in cash, shares of common stock, shares of common stock of the surviving

corporation or a combination of cash and shares of the applicable common stock. If

ProAssurance elects to pay all or a portlon of the repurchase price in shares of common

stock, the shares of the applicable common stock will be valued at 97.5% of the average

~ sale price of the applicable common stock for. 20 trading days commencing after the third
_ tradmg day following notice of the occurrence ofa change of control.

"Events ‘of Default. If there is an everit of default under.the Debentures, the principal
amount of the Debentures, plus accrued interest, including contingent interest, if any,
may be declared immediately due and payable. These amounts automatically become

.. due and payable if an event of default relating to certain events of bankruptcy, insolvency.
OF reorganization occurs.

Registration Rights. On-December 15, 2003 ProAssurance filed a shelf registration
- statement with the SEC with respect {o the resale of the Debentures and the shares of
. common stock issuable upon. conversion of the Debentures pursuant to a registration.

- rights . agreement. ProAssurance has agreed to keep the shelf reglstratlon statement -
. . effective untit the earliest of: - , , \ .

«  fwo years after the [ast date of orlglnal issuance of any of the _
Debentures,
» the date when the holders of the Debentures and common stock issuable
- upon conversion of the Debentures are able to seli ali such securitles
_ immediately pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act, - -
* the date when all of the Debentures and common ' stock issuable upon’
conversion of the Debentures are reglstered upon the shelf registration
" statement and sold in accordance with it, or "
= the date when all of the Debentures and common stock issuable upon
conversion of the Debentures have ceased fo be outstanding. ‘

' The Debentures do not require ProAssurance te maintain minimum financial covenants.
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12. Stockholders’ Equity

At December 31, 2003 ProAssurance had 100 million shares of authorized common stock and 50
million shares of authorized preferred stock. The Board of Directors has the authorization to determine
the provisions for the issuance of shares of the preferred stock, including. the number of shares to be
issued and the designations, powers, preferences and rights and the qualifications, limitations or
resfrictions of such shares. At December 31, 2003, the Board of Directors had not authorized the
issuance of any preferred stock nor determined any. provisions for the preferred stock. . -

At December 31, 2003 approsimately 1.7 million of ProAssiranée’s authorized shares of common
'stock are reserved by the Board of Diréctors of ProAssurance for the award or issuance of shares under
the ProAssurance Incentive Compensation Stock Plan and the Professionals Group, Inc.'s 1996 Long-

term Stock Incentive Plan, as discussed iri Note 13.

“Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” shown in the Consolidated Statements of
Changes in Capital is solely comprised of net unrealized gains (lossés) on securities available for sale,
net of taxes. s

On'November 13, 2002, ProAssurance sold 2.65 million shares at an offering price of $16.55 per
share. The offering generated net proceeds of $40.6 million. ‘ProAssurance used ‘the net foceeds from
the sale of the newly issued shares to support the growth of its professional liability insurance business
and for general corporate purposes. The underwriting agreement granted the underwriters a ‘thirty-day
over-allotment option for up to 375,000 shares that was exercised on December 4, 2002 and that
generated additional net proceeds of $5.9 million.

13. Stock Options

_ ProAssurance has an Incentive.Compensation Stock Plan. (the “ProAssurance Plan”) available to
provide performance-based compensation to employees..of ProAssurance and its subsidiaries. All terms
" and conditions of any grants under the ProAssurance Plan are at the discretion of the compensation
committee. At December 31, 2003 there were ‘approximately 923,000. options outstanding under the
ProAssurance Plan. All options have been granted at a pricé equal to thé market price of the stock on the
date of grant. The stocK options that were granted in 2003 and 2002 expire after ten years and vest ata
rate of 20% each year, beginning six months after the ‘grant date. The femaining options expire in fen
years and were fully vested at the grant date. o

Additionally, as a part of the consolidation with Professionals Group, ProAssurance assumed all
options outstanding under Professionals Group, Inc.'s 1996 Long-term Stock Incentive Plan (the
“Professionals Plan™). At December 31, 2003 there were approximately 71,000 options outstanding under
the Professionals Plan. The options assumed were fully vested. No additional options are expected to be
issued related to the Professionals Plan.
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13. Stock Options (continued)

information regarding ProAssurance outstandmg options under both plans for the years ending
December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 follows: -

Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise . Exerclse o Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares - Price
2003 2002 2001
Outstanding at beginning of year 1,103,037 $ 1946 719,313 $ 20.82 398,625 - $24.28
Granted 303,000 $ 22,00 - 415,000 3 16.80 ) - -
Options assumed - - - - 458,680 16.74
Exercised (348,815) $ 18,23 (31,276} $ 15.54 (137,992) $17.23
Forfeited {63,646} $18.72 - - L - -
Outstanding at end of year 993,576 $ 20.72 1,103,037 $ 19.46 719,313 $ 20.82
Options exercisable at end of year §52,176 $ 2175 771,037 $ 20.60 719,313 $ 20.82
Outstanding ProAssurance options as of December 31, 2003 consisted of the following:
Optlons Outstanding Options Exeréisable
- Walghted
Average Woelghted
Remalning Average Welghted
Range of Contractual Exercise Average
Exerclse Prices Numbers Life Price Number Exerclse Price
$ 9.57 - $14.27 26,256 6.7 years $ 12,95 26,266 $ 12.85
$16.80 - $%$18.66 361,716 - 7.6 years $ 16.89 142,716 $ . 17.04.
$21.01 - $26.03 605,604 6.5 years _ $ 23.33 383,204 $ 241
All 993,576 6.9 years $ 2072 652,176 £ 2175

The weighted average fair value of options granted dunng 2003 and 2002 was $8.46 and $6.97,
respectively. The fair value of the options was estimated on the date of grant using. the Black Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions.

Risk-free interest rate
Expected volatility
Dividend yield

Expected average term (in years)

2003 2002
31% 4.6%

0.34 0.34
0% 0%

6
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31,2003 =

14. Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

SFAS No. 141 eliminated the pooling-of-interest method.of accounting for business combinations.
This statement also includes guidance on the initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other
intangible assets in a business combination. SFAS No. 142 addresses how goodwill and other intangible
assets should be accounted for in financial statements upon acquisition and how these items should be
accounted for subsequent to acquisition. SFAS No. 142 requires goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful fives to be tested at least.annually for impairment. If goodwill and intangible assets are
deemed to be impaired, the change is included in then current operations. ProAssurance adopted SFAS
Nos. 141.and 142 effective January 1, 2002.

In accordance with SFAS Nos. 141 and 142, in 2002 ProAssurance discontinued amortizing its
‘recorded goodwill and deferred credits and recognized the unamortized balance of deferred credits of
$1.7 million that existed at December 31, 2001 related to business combinations completed prior o July
1, 2001. The write-off has been recoghized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.
There is no tax effect related to the write-off because the deferred credits were not amortizable for tax
~ purposes. : : g

The table below presents comparative income for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001, reflecting the pro forma effects of SFAS Nos. 141 and 142 on 2001 data:

: _~Year ended December 31
-, 2003 2002 . 2001
In Thousands .

Reported incd‘me before cumulative effect of accounting change e $ 38,703 $ . 10,513 $. 12,450

Amortization of deferred credits, net of goodwill amoertization . - - 164
Adjusted income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 38,703 $ 10,513 $ 12,604

Adoption of SFAS Nos. 141 and 142 did not have a significant per share effect.

At December 31, 2003 goodwill and intangible assets from business combinations, net of
accumulated amortization, are approximately $29.2 million. ProAssurance does not believe that any of its
recorded goodwill or intangible assets has suffered impairment.

15. Pension Plans

ProAssurance and its subsidiaries currently maintain several defined contribution employee
benefit plans that are intended to provide additional income to eligible employees upon retirement.
ProAssurance’s contributions to these plans are primarily based on various percentages of
compensation, and in some instances are based upon the amount of the employees’ contributions to the
plans. ProAssurance's expense under ali benefit plans was $3.1 million, during each of the years ending
December 31, 2003 and 2002 and $2.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2001.
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ProAssurance Carporation and Sybsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

16. Earnings Per Share

The foliowing represents a reconciliation from the basic to the diluted numerator and denominator
used in calculating the diluted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31 ,
2603 2002 2001

- ) : . in thousands, except per share data
Basic eamings per share calculation: . -

Numerator: .
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 38,703 $ 10,513 § 12450
Cumulative effect of accounting change . = 1,694 ‘ -
Net income . $ 38,703 $ 12,207 $ 12,450 -
Denominator: ) :
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 28,956 26,231 24 263
Basic eamings per share:. '
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.34 $ 0.40 $ 0.51
Cumulative effect of accounting change - 0.07 —
Netincome . $ 1.34 3 0.47 $ 0.51
Diluted eamings per share célcufation:

Numerator: :
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 38,703 $ 10513 $ 12,450
Effect of MEEMIC Holdings stock options held by IR

mincrity stockhalders - v {210) (82)
income before cumulative effect of accounting change — . L

diluted computation 38,703 10,303 12,368
Cumulative effect of accounting change - 1,684 -
Net income—diluted computation $ 38703 $ 11,997 § 12368
Denominator:
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding 28,856 26,231 24,263
Assumed conversion of dilutive stock options and awards 188 23 4
Diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding 29,144 26,254 24 267
Diluted eamnings @.r sharé:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 1.33 3 0.39 3 0.51
Cumuiative effective of accounting change - 0.07 ‘ -
Net income $ 1.33 $ 0.46 3 0.51

In accordance with SFAS 128 “Earnings per Share”, the diluted weighted average number of
shares outstanding includes an incremental adjustment for the assumed conversion of dilutive stock
options. The adjustment is computed quarterly; the annual incremental adjustment is the average of the
guarterly adjustments. Stock options are considered dilutive stock options if the assumed conversion of
the options, using the treasury stock method as specified by SFAS 128, produces an increased number
of outstanding shares. Typically, options are not dilutive when the strike price of the option is very close
fo or below the average share price during the quarter. During years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001 certain of ProAssurance’s outstanding options were not considered fo be dilutive, primarily
‘because the strike price of the options was below the average ProAssurance share price during the
quarter. The number of options not considered to be dilutive during the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002, and 2001 averaged 83,500, 638,000 and 535,600, respectively.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

17. Statutory Accounting and Dividend Restrictions

ProAssurance's insurance subsidiaries are required to file statutory financial statements with
state insurance regulatory authorities. GAAP differs from statutory accounting practices prescribed or
permitted by regulatory authorities. Differences between financial statement net income and statutory net
income are principally due to: (a) policy acquisition costs which are deferred under GAAP but expensed
for statutory purposes; (b) statutory accounting prescribes the method for valuing investments in affiliates

and does not permit consolidation; and (c) deferred income taxes which are recorded under GAAP but
not for statutory purposes. : :

The NAIC specifies risk-based capital requirements for property and tasualty insurance
providers. At December 31, 2003, statutory capital for each insurance subsidiary was sufficient to satisfy
regulatory requirements. Statutory surplus and net income (loss) for each of ProAssurance's insurance
_subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 are as foliows: . o

- Statutory

“Statutory Surplus Net Income (Loss)
as of for the year ended

December 31, 2003 December 31, 2003
In Thousands e

The Medicai Assurance Company, inc. $ 238,740 $ 1718
- ProNational Insurance Company . 187,937 {8,971)-
. Red Mountain Casualty Insurance Company Inc. - - 16,786 = 963
" Medical Assurance of West Virginia, inc : 10,202 (42)
~ MEEMIC Insurance Company 116,780 ) 17,877
Statutory - .
Statutory Surplus Net Income (Loss) '
as of - for.the year ended

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2002
In Thousands

~ The Medical Assurance Company, Inc. $ 193,335 $ {19,006)

- ProNationai Insurance Company 196,955 9,915
Red Mouniain Casuaity Insurance Company Inc. 15,829 a7

. Medical Assurance of West Virginia, lnc. ‘ 9,998 563
" MEEMIC Insurance Company 95,514 15,870
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
: December-31, 2003

17. Statutory Accounting and Dividend Restrictions (continued)

Consolidated retained eamings are comprised primarily of subsidiaries’ retained
earnings. ProAssurance’s insurance subsidiaries are permitted to pay dividends of approximately
$62 million during the next year without prior approval However, the payment of any dividend
requires. prior notice to the insurance regulator in the state of domicile and the regulator may
prevent the dividend if, in its judgment, payment of- the dividend would have an- adverse effect on

the surplus of the insurance subsidiary.

18. Qdarterly Results of Oparations (uﬁau&iiet.:l) '

The following is a summary of unaudited quarterly results of operations (in thousands,

except per share amounts} for 2003 and 2002:

. 2003
st — 3rd 4th
Net premiums eamed $ 138196 $ 147684 $ 165430 $ 172,204
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 125,048 131,300 145,783 149,245
Net income . ‘6,349 8,792 8,736 13,827
Basic earnings per share 0.22 0.30 0.34 " 0:48
Diluted earnings per share 0.22 0.30 0.33 0.47
2002
1st 2% 3rd 4ih
"Net premiums eamed $ 110483 §$ 113,584 § 121947 § 131,378
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses 107,199 107,064 115,868 147,898
Income (loss} before cumulative effect 1,878 1,084 (4,524) 11,975
Net income (foss) 3,672 1,084 (4,524) 11,975
Basic earnings per share: _ ’
Income before cumulative effect 0.08 0.04 (0.18) . 0.44
Net income 0.14 0.04 {0.18) 0.44
Diluted earnings per share:
Income before cumulative effect 0.08 0.04 (0.18) 0.43
Net Income 0.14 0.04 {0.18) 0.43

The sum of the above amounts may vary from the annual amounts because of rounding.
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ProAssuréricé.Corporétidn, and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

19. Subsequent Events

On February 9, 2004 ProAssurance filed a universal shelf registration statement with the
Securities: and Exchange Commission, allowing up to $250 million in common stock; preferred
stock or. debt securities. ProAssurance ‘may' sell any class of the registered securities or
combinations thereof in one or more separate offerings at a total price up to the amount
registered with the amount, price and terms of the securities sold in each. offering to be
determined at the time of sale. ProAssurance has no present commitments to sell securities
under the shelf registration. ' 8 S
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- ProAssurance Corporation and- Sub9|d|ar|es :

Schedule | —Summary of Investments — Other Thah Investments in Related Parttes

December 31, 2003

Cost Amount
or At Which
. Amortized Fair Shown in the
Type of Investmant Cost Value Balance Sheet
In Thousands
Fixed Maturities: R U T :
U.8. Treasury securities $ 305,564 $ .. .307,196 $ 307,196
State and municipal bonds 377,833, . . . 385,675 - 395,675
Corporate bonds 597,514 621,681 621,681
Asset-backed securities 460,048 465,156 . - 465,156
Certificates of deposit 1,069 1,070 1,070 -
Total ﬁxed maturlties 1,742,028 $ 1,790,778 1,790,778
Equity secunties R i .
Available for sale 37,923 42,136 42,136
Trading 5,863 5,863 5,863
Total equity securities “$ 43,786 $ 47,998 $ 47999
Real Estate, net - 17,262 Cow o 17,262
Short-term Investments 109,680 109,680
Other Invested assets 38,247 38,247
Business owned life insurance 51,706 51,708

Total investments

$ 2002709 - -

101
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Schedule H - Condensed Financial Information.of Registrant

ProAssurance Comoration - Registrant Only

Condensad Balance Sheet

Assets

Investment in subsidiaries, at equity

. Fixed maturities available for sale, at fair value
Equity securities, trading porlfollo. at fair valug

- - Short-term investments

* Gash and cash equwalents
Other assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

" Liablities: ‘
Payable to subsidiaries
Other liabilities

-Long-term debt

Stockholders’ Equity:
* Common stock
Other stockholders’ equity, including urrealized
: gains (losses) on securities of subsidiaries

Total stockholders' equity

December 31

2003

2002

In Thousands

ProAssurance Corporatlon Registrant Only
Condensed Statements of Income

Revenues:
Investment income
Other Income

Expanses:

Loss on early extinguishment of debt
Interest expense
Other expenses

Loss hefore income tax (benefit) and equity in
net iIncome of subsidlaries

Income tax (bonefit)

Loss before equity in net income of subsidiaries

Equity in net income of subsidiarles

Net income

102

610,297 $ 532,118
5,501 -
5,228 -
23,440 e

878 30,013

30,215 19,467

675,557  § 581,599
23,868 $ 3,506

595 369

_ 104,789 72,500
129,262 76,405
202 20

| 546,013 504,004

545,305 505,194

675,567 $ 581,508

Year ended December 31

2003 2002

In Thousands
267 3 57
308 ~
578 57
305 -
3,409 2,875
1,702 1,441
5,416 4316
(4,841) {4,259)
(967} {1,491)
(3,874) (2,768)
42,877 14,975
38,703 $ 12,207




ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiarles
Schedule Il - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (continued)

ProAssurance Corporatlon Registrant Only
Condensed Statements of Cash Flow

Year ended Decaember 31

2003 2002
in Thousands
Cash used by operating activities $ (9,733) $ (6,533)
investing activities : o
Purchases.of fixed maturities (134,661) -
Proceeds from sale or maturities of fixed maturities 129,460 | -
Net purchases of shert-term investments "(23,440) -
Contribution of capital to subsidiaries {25,483) —~
. {54,424) -
Financing activities .
Proceeds from long-term debt : 104,641 -
Repayment of debt (72,500) (10,000)
Proceeds from stock offering - - 46,499
Other 2,881 _
35,022 36,499
tncrease {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {29,136) 29,966
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 30,013 47
Cash and cash equivaients, end of period o $ 878 $ 30,013

Notes to Condensed Financlal Statements of Registrant
1. Basis of Presentation

ProAssurance Corporation (PRA Holding) was formed for the purpose of consolidating Medical Assurance, Inc. (Medical
Assurance) and Professionals Group, Inc. (Professionals Group); the consolidation date was June 27, 2001. The
consofidation of PRA Holding and Medical Assurance was in the form of a corporate reorganization and was accounted

for in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. The consolidation -with Professionals Group was accounted for as a
purchase transaction. .

PRA Holding’s Initial investment in Medical Assurance is valued at the net book value of Medical Assurance on the
consolidation date. PRA Holding's initial investment in Professionals Group is valued at the fair value of the net assets
acquired as of the consolidation date. At December 31, 2003 and 2002 PRA Holding's investment in subsidiaries is stated
at the initial values described plus equity In the undistributed eamings of subsidiaries since the date of acquisition less
dividends received from the subsidiaries. The regisirant-only financial statements should be read in conjunction with
ProAssurance's consolidated financial statements.

2. Other Assets

Other assets includes goodwill of $18.2 million related to PRA Holding's acquisition of Professional's Group and goodwill
of $7.6 milion related to the 2003 acquisition of the minonty interest of MEEMIC Holdings, inc., a subsidiary of
Professionals Group.

3. Long-term Debt

PRA Holding issued $107.6 million of 3.9% Convertible Debentures {*Debentures”) in a Private Offering transaction, net of
an initial purchasers discount of $3.0 million, in July 2003. The Debentures are due June 30, 2023 but may be repaid or
called prior to that date. See Note 11 of the Nofes to Consolidated Financial Statementis of ProAssurance and its
subsidiaries included herein for a detailed description of the terms of the Debentures. PRA Holding used the net
proceeds of the Debentures to pay off its exustmg term loan having an outstandmg principal balance of $67 5 million.
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries .
Schedule ll - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (continued)

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements 6f Registrant (continued)
4, Related Party Transactions '

PRA Holding received no cash dividends during 2003 or 2002. In 2003, PRA Holding contributed capital of approximately
$45 million to subsidiaries of its professional liability segment.

All of PRA Holding's treasury shares are owned by its subsidiaries. In the registrant-only financial staternents,
stockholders' equily has been reduced by the cost of these treasury shares and PRA Holding's investment in subsidiaries
has been reduced by the cost of the treasury shares owned by the subsidiaries.

5. Income Taxes

Under terms of PRA Holding's tax sharing agreement with its subsidiaries, incomie tax provisibns for individual companies
are allocated on a separate company basis. .
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries _
Schedule Il - Supplementary Insurance Information
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

2003

Deferred poficy acquisition COstS. ... ovveeverveeeeess s e $ 23,603

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses .................. 1,814,584

290,134

: " 623,514

Premiums assumed from other COMPANIES cvvevrrearrivenaricncnionns 2,508

NEt iNVESMENt NCOME .....vvveevvoescseeeeeeeeeeeseere s seessesssse s 73,619

Net losses and loss adjustment @XPeRSes .......veeeeeeeevveveeie 551,376
Underwriting, acquisition and insurance expenses:

Amoriization of deferred poficy acquisition costs.........ovou...... 54,863

Other underwriting, acquisition and
insurance éxpenses ........................................................... 49,353
NEt PremiUms WIOERc..ooeevevrevet e essas i s b eeesesesnsesns 668,909

106

2002

In Thousarnds

22729 $
1,622,468
248,371
477,408

2,991

76,918
448,029

41,800

49,453
537,123

15,489
1,442,341
188,630
313,345
23,327
59,782

- 298,558

37,792

32,645
310,291



ProAssurance Corporation and Subsidiaries

Schedule IV-Reinsurance

Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

Property and Casualty
Premiums earned
Premiums ceded
Premiums assumed

Net premiums earned
- Percentage of amount assumed to net
Accident and Health
Premiums earmed

.Premiums ceded
- Premiums assumed

Net premiums earned
Percentage of amount assumed to net

Total net premiums eamed

2003 2002 2001
in Thousands
$ 695,839 $ 573,001 $ 357,394
(74,833) (98,918) (67,650)
2,495 2516 7429
$ 623,501 $ 476,689 $ 206,873
0.40% 0.53% . 2.40%
- 332 789. -
- (88) : (515)
13 475 16,198 -
$ 13 $ 719° 16,472
100% 66.06% 98.34%
$ 623,514 $ 477.408 $ 313,345
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ProAssurance Corporation and Subsndiaries
Scheduls VI — Supplementary Property and Casualty Insurance Information
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

2003 2002 2001
In Thousands o
Deferred policy acqulsmon costs .. e § 23,603 - § 22728 $ 15489
Reserve for Iosses and loss adjustment expanses - 1,814,584 1,622,468 1,442,341

Unearned premiums ........coocviiiiiiers v e renree e e e 200,134 248,371 188,630
Net premiums eamed ................................................... 623,614 477,408 313,345
Net investment income . ernriaEer s andat phe e gy et 73,619 76,918 59,782
Losses and loss adJusﬁ'nant expenses incurred ‘ - : o S

refated to current year, net of reinsSUrance .......covvevveeeees 562,256 © 439,600 284,740
Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred :

. related to prior year, net of reinsurance .is....:......5....... “(10,880) - 8429 13,818
Amorization of deferred policy acquisition costs ..........oven. 54,883 41,800 37,792
Paid losses and loss adjustment expenses related to : ’ - '

current year losses, net of reinsurance . (94,824) (84,376} (137,121).

Paid losses and loss adjustment expenses related to ) ‘ R ' a

prior year losses, net of reiNSUrance ..........eeceueeevesy oot (247,238) (271,482) (143,893)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Lo
Number Description
2.1 Agreement to Consolidate by and between Medical Assurancg, Inc.
: and Professicnals Group, Inc. dated June22, 2000 as amended as
of November 1, 2000. (1)
2.2 Agreement and P[an of Merger dated as of July 8, 2002 among K
ProNaticnal insurance Company, MEEMIC Merger Corp and
MEEMIC Holdings {2)-.
2.3 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger- dated 'a‘sbf ‘Ju!y'-*
SR 8, 2002 among ProNational Insurance Company, MEEMIC-Merger -
Corp. and MEEMIC Holdings, Inc. madeon September 18 2002 (3)
3;1('a) Certtﬂcate of Incorporatlon of ProAssurance (1) -
3.1(b) Certlf cate of Amendment of ProAssurance (4)
3.2 Bylaws of ProAssurance (1)
4.4 Purchase Agreement, r.lated July 1, 2003, between Registrant
and the representatives of the initial purchasers of the
Debentures (without exhibits) (5)
42 indenture dated July 7, 2003, between and among Registrant
and the initial purchasers of the Debentures (6)
4.3 Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 7, 2003, between and
among Registrant and the initial purchasers of the Debentures
(6)
10.1(a) Amendment and Assumption Agreement by and befween
ProAssurance and Medical Assurance, inc. {(4)
10.1(b) Medical Assurance, inc. Incentive Compensation Stock Plan
{formerly known as the Mutual Assurance Inc. 1985 Stock Award
Plan) (7)
10.1(c) Amendment and Assumption Agreement by and betwesn Mutual
Assurance, Inc. and MAIC Holdings, Inc. dated April 8, 1986 (8)
10.2 Professionals Insurance Company Management Group 1896 Long
Term Incentive Plan (9)
10.3 MEEMIC Holdings Stock Compensation Plan (10)
104 MEEMIC Incentive Plan Trust (4)
10.5(a) Release and Severance Agreement between Victor T. Adamo and

ProAssurance {11)
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10.5(b)

10.5{c)

10.5(d)

10.5(e)

10.5(9

10.6

10.7

10.8

211

23.1
31

31.2

Amendment to.Release and’ Severance Compensatron Agreement of
Vrctor T. Adamo (12)

Release and Severance Agreement between Lynn M. Kalinowski

and ProAssurance (13)

Release and SeveranceAgreement between Howard H. Friedman
and ProAssurance (12)

Release and Severance Agreement between James J Morelto and

'ProAssurance (12)

Release and Severance Agreement between Frank B. 'O'Neit and-
ProAssuranoe (3) :

“Employment Agreement of A;Derrill Crowe, as am'en'ded (12) '

Form of Indemnification Agreement between ProAssurance and

-each of the followmg named executrve oft' icers and drrectors of
- ProAssurance: (3) :

Victor T. Adamo
Lucian F: Bloodworth

“- ‘Paul R. Bufrus

A. Derrill Crowe
Robert E. Flowers

*' ‘Howard H. Friedman:

Lynn M. Kaliriowski
John J. McMahon -
James J. Morello
John-P. North

Frank B. O'Neil
Ann F. Putallaz

‘William H. Weodhams
- Wilfred W Yeargan

Descnptlon of Regrstrant's Executtve Supplemental Life Insurance

Plan ()

. Subsrdlanes of ProAssurance Corporatlon

Consent of Ernst & Young Report on Consotrdated Flnanolal

Statements of Registrant and Sub5|diarles

Certrt" catron of Prmmpal Executive Oft' icer of ProAssurance as
required under SEC Rule 13a-14(a)

Certification of Principal Financial Officer of ProAssurance
Corporation required under SEC Rule 13a-14(a)
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321

322

~ Certification of Principal Executive Officer:of ProAssurance as
required under SEC Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63
of Title 18 of the United States Code, as amended (18 u.s.C 1350)

Certification of Principal Fmanc:al Off icer of ProAssurance as
- required under SEC Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63
of Title 18 of the United States Code, as amended (18 U.8.C. 1350)

Footnotes:

(1
(2)
3
(4)

(5)

(6)

o)
. (8)
)
(10)

(11

(12)

(13)

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurance's Reglstreflon Statement on Fofrn S-4 (File No. 333-

49378} and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to Rule 12b-32 of the Secuntles
and Exchange Commlsswn ("SEC"). ‘ .

Filed as an Exhibit to PioAssurance's Quarterly Report on Form 10 Q for the period
ended June 30, 2002 (File No. 001- 16533) and incorporated herein by reference

‘pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32

Filed as an: EXhlbIt to ProAssurances Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002 {Commission File No. 001- -16533) and incorporated herein by
reference pursuant fo SEC Rule 12b-32.

Filed as an Exhibit fo ProAssurance's Annual Report on Form 10 K for the year ended
December 31, 2001 (File No. 001-16533) and mcorporated herein by reference pursuant
to SEC Rule 12b-32. »

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurance's Registration Sta_tement"on Fcrm 8-3 (File No. 333-

"109972) and incorporated by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32. -

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurance's Quarterly Report on Fon’nl 10-Q:-for the period
ended June 30, 2003 (File No. 001-16533) and incorporated- by reference pursuant fo
SEC Rule 12b-32. o

Filed as an Exhibit to MAIC Helding’s Registration Statement on:Form é—4 {(File No. 33-
91508) and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32.

Filed as an. Exhibit to-:MAIC Holding's Proxy Statement for the 1996 Annual Meeting (File
No. 0-19439) is incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32.

Filed as an Exhibit to Professionals Group's Registration Statement on Form $-4 (File -
No. 333-3138) and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32.

Filed as an Exhibit to MEEMIC Holding"s.; Regis_traﬁon Stafement on Form S-4 (File No.
333-66671) and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32.

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurance's Form 10-Q (File No. 001 16533) for the quarter
ended June 30, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-
32, . ‘

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurance's Registfatibn Statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-
100526) and incorporated herein by reference pursuant to SEC Rule 12b-32.

Filed as an Exhibit to ProAssurance's Form 10-Q (File No. 001-16533) for the quarter

ended September 30, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference pursuant o SEC Rule
12b-32.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, A. Derriil Crowe, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of ProAssurance Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; e :

4. The registrant's other c_ertifyihg_"ofﬁcer and | are résponsilile-for establishfng. and . maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange'Act'Rules 132-15(e) and 15d-15 (e)):

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information refating to the
registrant; including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known {o us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this reportis being prepared; -

" b} Evaluated the' effectiveness of the Fegistrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented
+"-in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the discldsure controls and procedures, as of
| the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and :

- ) c) Disclosed.in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
/ occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the
*case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the -

registrant’s internal control over financiat reporting; and
g J Al coniro ,

5; The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disciosed, based on our mostjrecéni evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant's
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): : S y

a) All significant deficiencies.and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which ‘are reasonably likely to-adversely affect the registrant's ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and Sl ' : _

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves nian'agerﬁént or othier employees who have a
significant role in'the registrant's internal control over fingncial reporting. Co ‘

Date: March 10, 2004 . - o - o
- [s{ A Derrill. Crowe, M.D.
A. Dertill Crowe, M.D.
‘Chief Executive Officer




~ Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Howard H. Friedman, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of ProAssurance Corpo'ration'

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make.the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by‘this report;

3. Based on my knowledge the financial statements, and other_financial rnformatron included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of
the regrstrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report

4 The- regrstrant's other certlfyrng off icer .and 1 are responsrble for establlshmg and maintaining
disclosure conirols and procedures {(as defined in Exchange -Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15 (e)):

a} Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such drsclosure controls and
-~ procedures to. be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
- .-registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
-particularly during the period in which this -report is being prepared;

: b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions. about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
~ the end of the period covered by this. report based on such evaluatron and

~c) Disclosed in this report any change in lhe registrant’s rnternal controi over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant'’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourih fiscal. quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and -

5. The registrant's other certifying officer.and { have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audat committee of registrant's
board of directors (or persons perfonnmg the. equivalent functions):

a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
“over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and Y

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the reglstrant's internal control over financiai reporting.

Date: March 10, 2004
/s/ Howard H. Friedman
Howard H. Friedman
Chief Financial Officer
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Investor Information

There were 29,105,971 shares of ProAssurance
Corporation common stock outstanding at
March 1, 2004. On that date, we had 3,605
shareholders of record. Our common stock
trades on The New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol PRA. Our stock is listed as ProAsr in
the stock section of USA Today and many major
newspapers, and as ProAssurance in The Wall
Street Journal. We also post the price of our
stock on our website, www.ProAssurance.com.

Our Transfer Agent is Mellon Investor Services,
LLC. You may phone them at (800) 851-4218,
and you may access their website at www.
melloninvestor.com. If you hold shares in certifi-
cate form, you may learn more about your share-
holdings by using Mellon Investor Services'
dedicated website, https://vault.melloninvestor.
com/isd/. This website will allow you to verify
your shareholdings and report address changes.

You also may report address changes by mail by
writing to:

Mellon Investor Services, LLC
P 0. Box 3338
South Hackensack, NJ 07606-1916

If you have a certificate to transfer, you should
obtain forms and instructions from Mellon

Designed by Curran & Connors, Inc. / www.curran-connors.com

Investor Services by phone or through their
website. Send the certificate(s) and required
form by insured, registered mail to:

Mellon Investor Services, LLC
Stock Transfer Department

P 0.Box 3312

South Hackensack, NJ 07606-1912

If you need to report lost or stolen stock certifi-
cates, please phone (800) 851-4218 or send a
registered letter to:

Mellon Investor Services, LLC
Estoppel Department

P 0.Box 3317

South Hackensack, NJ 07606-1917

How to learn about our

Corporate Governance

We post detailed information in the Corpo-
rate Governance section of our website,
www.ProAssurance.com. If you prefer, you may
request the information by mail or phone.

How to obtain financial information

We post detailed financial information, and
maintain archives of that information, along
with prior presentations and conference calls
on the Investor Relations section of our website,

www.ProAssurance.com. If you prefer, you may
request the same information by mail or phone
by contacting:

Frank B. O'Neil

Senior Vice President, Corporate
Communications & Investor Relations
Investor@ProAssurance.com

(205) 877-4461

How to contact us
You may write to us at:

ProAssurance Corporation
P. 0. Box 530009
Birmingham, AL 35259-0009

We also can be reached by phone, fax or through
our website:

Phone: (205) 877-4400 e (800) 282-6242
Fax: (205) 802-4799
www.ProAssurance.com

Annual Meeting

The 2004 Annual Meeting is scheduled for
10:30 a.m. on May 19, 2004 at the Harbert Center,
2019 4th Avenue North, Birmingham, AL.
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ProAssurance’s Professional Liability advertising
focuses on our financial strength and market leadership.
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